m ZHEMWARA A

China Resources Land Limited

(Stock Code g {7 {%55:1109)

Annual Report 2013 4EEE4E#

v T

: 5' — :
] 3 | |--‘J|_a_"-|
A ..‘."- Bt - K an0q™
A DR e =!
d A
‘ WL G | EEIC)
i . p - @ I&“. ﬂ@ -
3 e o . BET] LI __‘i% o 12,67
Y D s —
e Y ; | oo 'ﬁ' s@@\ r
b ) L— I 1 i x —
f __@ ;;f_"_ —=|1 - oy




Cor

NGIN-ve
R
Einls
BHRENX

D 14
ﬁ\

tents

~N R 0N

26
36
14
52
67
89
91
92
93
95
9
98
100
174
188

Corporate Information

Group Structure

Nationwide Presence

Major Investment Properties

Chairman’s Statement

Management Discussion and Analysis
Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
Corporate Social Responsibility

Corporate Governance Report

Report of the Directors

Independent Auditor’s Report

Consolidated Income Statement

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Statement of Financial Position

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Schedule of Principal Properties

Financial Summary

—E-ZFEFR
Annual Report 2013

1



ATEH

Corporate Information

ES

HITES
RAR(ZE)
E B(EFEEE)

E%Eﬁ(ﬂfﬁ)(ﬁ:g_ﬂ].ﬁfﬂ]ﬁ:«]L:Eg#—//f)

FUTES
YR
TER
&EH
R E

BUFATES
T A
far g
FiE

e

HEE

NAWE
BSN

%S
REAAERHTEHH

ROBFETIE
SEEEERAT

ERABR-TN\5
SEERL_TRE

(EZZ-WF=A=+AI)

BEERAER
—N\=FEMPL-T 8

(ZZ—mE=A=1+—H1#&)

SR
Ugland House
South Church Street
Post Office Box 309
George Town
Grand Cayman
Cayman Islands
British West Indies

BHER
BREFAZE0%
EEABLGE

@it

www.crland.com.hk

Directors

Executive Director
Wu Xiangdong (Chairman)
Tang Yong (Managing Director)
Wang Hongkun (Vice Chairman) (Resigned on 22 April 2014)

Non-Executive Director
Yan Biao
Du Wenmin
Ding Jiemin
Wei Bin
Huang Daoguo
Chen Ying

Independent Non-Executive Director
Wang Shi
Andrew Y. Yan
Ho Hin Ngai, Bosco
Wan Kam To, Peter
Ma Weihua

Company Secretary
Lo Chi Lik, Peter

Auditor
PricewaterhouseCoopers

Branch Share Registrar
Tricor Standard Limited
26th Floor, Tesbury Centre
28 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai, Hong Kong
(Until 30 March 2014)
Level 22, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen's Road East,
Hong Kong
(From 31 March 2014)

Registered Office
Ugland House
South Church Street
Post Office Box 309
George Town
Grand Cayman
Cayman Islands
British West Indies

Head Office
46th Floor, China Resources Building
26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Website Address
www.crland.com.hk

2 “E-ZFEFR
Annual Report 2013



EEZEE
Group Structure

EREREEBRLT
CHINA RESOURCES (HOLDINGS)

COMPANY LIMITED

67.96¢

EEEmARAR

CHINA RESOURCES LAND LIMITED

2 LEE S RAMR RERE

Property Development Investment Properties Value-added Services

“E-ZFEFR 3
Annual Report 2013



2EM R

Nationwide Presence

L 1) i | I T

g Mg 2=

4 “E-ZFEFR
Annual Report 2013



2E7% & Nationwide Presence

Development FAZE¥%

.\ properties

Investment X E Y

V. properties

Province with 24 BE41H
presence

2013 F R4
Contracted sales
in 2013

AE%06063.06&%
rRviB 66,306

million
EENRARE
MEBRERER
Total GFA of

operational investment
property reached

229EF 5%
2.29 million

square meters

“E-ZFEFR 5
Annual Report 2013



..ﬁ.i..; ARRELRERE

~

—FEFR

=g
Anniial Report 2013




-y .

NS R
Hangzhou the MIXc
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Chengdu the MIXc
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Egu#maa8 A% The MIXc Urban complex series
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Opened in 2004, Shenzhen MIXc is located in Bao'an Nan Road in Luohu
District with a total GFA of over 200,000 square meters. Shenzhen MIXc is a
mixed-use commercial complex comprising of retail, dining, entertainment,
leisure and culture elements. Customers can experience a brand new
consumption and lifestyle concept through this “one-stop” shopping solution.

Shenzhen MIXc Phase 1 houses more than 200 highly differentiated shops,
including anchor tenants such as Reel Department Store, Olé high-end
Supermarket, Golden Harvest cinema, World Ice Arena, Sundan, as well as
international luxury brands like Gucci, Prada, Burberry, Fendi, Bottega Veneta,
Valentino, Miu Miu, Boss, MaxMara, Alfred Dunhill, Emporio Armani,
Givenchy etc.
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B #mi58ZS] The MIXc Urban complex series
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Lease Maturity Profile (by GFA)
30.1% B 20144 %
Mature in 2014
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[ 201655
Mature in 2016
W 2017 ROMEEIE
15.2% Mature in 2017 or after

Shenzhen MIXc Phase 2 has an even higher-end positioning. It has a creative
landscape plan in the space extending from indoor to outdoor, with the
greenery and interior design further closing the distance between the shops
and the consumers. Tenants include top international luxury brands such as
Louis Vuitton, Hermes, Dior, Ermenegildo Zegna, Salvatore Ferragamo, Dolce
& Gabbana, Cartier, Bvlgari, Tiffany & Co., Mont Blanc etc., as well as
lifestyle, entertainment, dining elements.
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Opened in 2010, Hangzhou MIXc is located in the CBD of Qianjiang New City.
The complex brings together many of the world’s top brand names, presenting
fashion trends and a rich selection of merchandise. It offers a comfortable
shopping environment and a variety of gourmet restaurants. It also houses an
Olympic-standard ice-skating rink, Broadway cinemas, PageOne (voted the
“Best Book Store” in Hong Kong and Singapore on numerous occasions) and
so on, which brings unprecedented lifestyle experience to its customers.

12 —T-ZFEFR
Annual Report 2013



B #miaS8A% The MIXc Urban complex series
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Opened in 2011, Shenyang MIXc is located in the prime area in Jinlang and is
the third MIXc projects after Shenzhen and Hangzhou MIXc. With a GFA of
nearly 250,000 square meters, it houses nearly 200 shops. There is also a
B-storey carpark with nearly 2,000 parking spaces.

Shenyang MIXc comprises of retail, specialty dining, and entertainment
elements. Major tenants include many top international brands including
Hermes, LV, Prada, Miu Miu, Tod's, Fendi, Bvlgari, Burberry, MaxMara, Hugo
Boss, Ermenegildo Zegna, Cartier etc. In particular, Hermés is the only shop in
Shenyang; LV is the second largest in China in terms of operating GFA and is
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B #mi48ZS] The MIXc Urban complex series
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KIE - BAE RS » Prada 2B 2 £EIERAME  the flagship store in North Eastern China; Prada is the largest shop in

8 MiuMiuE RFEILE—JE + Ermenegildo Zegna ZERES Shenyang in terms of operating GFA; Miu Miu is the only shop in North

B R ARIEEERARNE R BHEEF%ZEE  Eastern China; and Ermenegildo Zegna is the largest shop in North Eastern

i BRI ERLWES — K E T ESanmy  China in terms of operating GFA. Moreover, the complex is home to a variety

Collections * LA K Novo * 7 for all Mankind & G 3T £, © of fashion brands including the first Sammy Collections in North Eastern
China, Novo, 7 for all Mankind etc.
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BSu#msA8A% The MIXc Urban complex series
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Opened in 2012 and is located in Chenghua District, Chengdu MIXc is home
to a variety of world-leading luxury brands including Hugo Boss, Armani
Collezioni, Coach, Thailand's Central Department Store, and Novo Conceptual
Store. Chengdu MIXc also features multi-faceted lifestyle elements including
0l¢ high-end Supermarket which focuses on imported food, World Ice Arena,
Broadway cinemas, Sisyphus Bookstore which is famous for great reading
experience, as well as Toys “R” Us that is full of joy and playful toys.

From Wang's Steak to stylish specialty restaurants, and from desserts to
authentic local snacks, more than 30 global dining brands in Chengdu MIXc
will bring customers on a gluttonous trip.
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Nanning MIXc is located in Qingxiu District and was opened in 2012,
attracting traffic of more than 210,000 shoppers on the first day of its grand
opening. This 280,000 square meters shopping mall is home to a variety of
world-leading luxury brands, specialty dining from around the world, an
Olympic-standard ice-skating rink, Parkson department store, Olé high-end
Supermarket that focuses on imported goods, Womei Theater with the
world’s fifth DMR hall, and encompassing shopping, dining, entertainment,
lifestyle and culture elements. Nanning MIXc was awarded 2013 CCFA
Golden Lily Award after its first year of operation, and is the first commercial
entity in Guangxi that won the award. The trendy and diverse shopping space
brings unprecedented shopping and lifestyle experience to customers in
Guangxi.
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Beijing Hib Living Mall is a regional commercial center and is Group's first
venture in China. Located at the north 5-ring road of Haidian District in
Qinghe District, Beijing Hi5 Living Mall has a GFA of approximately 200,000
square meters. Major tenants include Wal-Mart and an Olympic-standard ice-
skating rink, Korean CGV Theater and Snoopy Garden. The Group is
committed to creating a happy, warm, stylish, and festive one-stop living
mall. The multi-faceted flagship mall comprises fashion, shopping, dining,
entertainment, leisure, culture and sports elements, which brings
unprecedented lifestyle experience to its customers.

“E-CEEFR
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Driven by strong fundamental demand, China’s real estate market boomed in both investment
and sales throughout the year of 2013.
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FEHRE Chairman’s Statement
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After baptism of years of intense market competition, the Group’s business
strategy has gone through a continued process of refinement, adjustment and
optimization and is now better adapted to evolving market conditions. The
Group's differentiated business model of “residential development + property
investment + valued-added services” brings strong competitive advantages.
The Group's efforts in adjusting product mix in response to changes in market
demand, strengthening internal management for optimized cost controls, and
enhancing execution to improve development efficiency are fully reflected in
the annual results of 2013. During the year, the Group achieved satisfactory
growth in contracted sales, booked revenue, rental income, and core profit
contribution, and reached their historical highs in all those parameters.

Results Review

In 2013, the Group's consolidated turnover and profit attributable to the
owners of the Company reached HK$71,389 million and HK$14,696 million,
up by 60.9% and 39.1% respectively when compared with the prior year.
Specifically, turnover from the residential development business reached
HK$64,818 million, up by 68.3% year-on-year; rental income from investment
property business and hotel operations totalled HK$4,622 million,
representing a year-on-year growth of 27.4%.

As of 31 December 2013, the Group's earnings per share increased by 38.6%
year-on-year to HK252.1 cents, and net assets per share increased by 22.6%
from HK$11.86 to HK$14.54. The Board recommended a final dividend of
HK36.4 cents per share. Together with the interim dividend of HK7.3 cents
per share, the full year 2013 dividend amounted to HK43.7 cents per share,
representing an increase of 30.1% over the full year dividend of the year
ended 31 December 2012 ("Year 2012") which was HK33.6 cents per share.

Residential Development

Benefiting from favorable market supply and demand situation and a strong
growth of the Group's saleable resources, the Group's contracted sales
reached RMB66,306 million with a contracted gross floor area (“GFA”) of 5.78
million square meters, representing a year-on-year growth of 27.0% and
22.1% respectively.

As a key element of its differentiated business model, the Group continued to
expand its scale and coverage of its residential value-added services. The
Group’s emphasis on high quality further strengthens its position and
reputation in the market. During the year, the Group was awarded gold
medals of the “2013 Tien-yow Jeme Civil Engineering Prize” by the China
Civil Engineering Society in recognition of the fine engineering work of the
Group's Dalian Maritime and Chengdu Twenty-Four City projects.

—E-ZFEFR
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Investment Property

Premium investment property assets form the Group's core value and are the
cornerstone of the Group's long-term development. It is also a core element
in the Group's differentiated business model.

The Group currently operates five MIXc complexes and one Hi5 complex, and
its investment property portfolio continued to expand over the years. Total
GFA of operational investment property reached approximately 2.29 million
square meters as at the end of 2013. During the year, rental income grew by
27.4% year-on-year, due to increase in average rental levels, as well as
contribution from projects that newly commenced operation such as Beijing
Hib Phase 2.

The Group has ten years of successful experience in commercial real estate.
As a market leader, the Group still remains prudent about each project, and
strives for perfection in every aspect including design, market position,
construction, tenant recruitment and operation, in an effort to maintain its
leading position in the increasingly competitive commercial real estate
market. With the commencement of operations of various MIXc and Hi5
projects going forward, the value and scale of the Group’s investment
property portfolio will be elevated to a higher level.

Land Bank

Since the beginning of 2013 until end of February 2014, the Group continued
to accumulate quality land bank on a selective and prudent basis and in a
strategy-guided and disciplined manner, and has acquired 34 land parcels
with an attributable consideration of RMB39,536 million. The attributable
GFA was increased by 10.10 million square meters during this period,
including 4 MIXc complex projects in Shenzhen Qianhai, Taiyuan, Xiamen and
Shijiazhuang.

With the completion of the national strategic layout, the Group will focus on
reinforcing its operations in strategically core regions going forward. As of 28
February 2014, the Group has presence in 50 cities, with a total land bank
GFA of 35.81 million square meters, of which residential land bank was 29.32
million square meters, and land bank for investment properties under
construction and planning was 6.49 million square meters. The Group
currently has an adequate land bank to satisfy its development needs for the
next few years. The land bank portfolio also matches the Group's business
model in general.

“ER-CEEFR
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Finance Policies

While the core business achieved robust growth, the Group continued its
deleveraging process during the year that began since 2011. The Group's
debt ratios further lowered from the previous year, leading to a healthier
financial position. As at the end of December 2013, total interest-bearing
debt ratio and net gearing ratio stood at 41.0% and 39.2% respectively and
were significantly lower than 43.9% and 49.6% as at the end of December
2012. As at 31 December 2013, the Group's average funding cost of its
interest-bearing debt remained at industry low level at 3.76%.

Outlook

Looking forward in 2014, China’s real estate market is expected to face
challenges from liquidity squeeze in the capital markets and potential
changes in the government's tightening policies. However, China is still in its
middle stage of urbanization, and fundamental factors that support the
healthy growth of China’s property market like accelerating urbanization,
stable economy, and consumption growth still exist. These macro factors are
favorable to the Group’s healthy development going forward. The Group is
confident in the long-term development of China’s property market and future
prospects of the Group.

Along with the scheduled operations of various investment property projects
in 2014, a strong foundation is being laid for the Group’s implementation of
its strategy and business model. The Group will adhere to its business model,
continue to focus on the mainstream market, continuously optimize its
product mix, and improve operations of its investment properties, while
monitoring market risk at the same time. The Group is confident in continuous
value creation for its shareholders (the “Shareholders”) and achieving win-
win situation for all parties involved, including its customers, employees as
well as Shareholders.

Finally, | would like to take this opportunity to sincerely thank each and every
Shareholder. Your support over the years has helped to evolve the Group so
that we can become what we are today. We believe your continued support
will take the Group to an ever brighter future.
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In Year 2013, the residential development and investment property business
of the Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) both maintained
strong growth and achieved satisfactory performance. During the year,
performance in contracted sales and construction progress of projects were
in line with management’s expectations, leading to satisfactory results in
Year 2013, while laying down a solid foundation for a promising year in 2014.

Review of Residential Development Business in 2013
In Year 2013, the Group achieved contracted sales of RMB66,306 million with
GFA sold totalling 5.78 million square meters, up by 27.0% and 22.1% year-
on-year respectively, and well exceeding the Group’s 2013 full-year sales
target of RMB57 billion set at the beginning of the year.

In Year 2013, the Group derived its contracted sales from 76 projects in 43
cities in the PRC, of which 16.63% was from the sales of non-residential
saleables such as office spaces, street shops and car parks. A more
diversified portfolio of saleable resources in terms of geographic spread,
number of projects and product types facilitated strong sales growth and
lowered business risk.

Sales breakdown by regions during the Year 2013 are set out in the table
below:

AREHE HEER
Contracted Value Area Sold
AR®F T % TEHHK
RMB’'000 % Sgm
ItRES Beijing 7,685,695 11.6% 507,529 8.8%
LEES Shanghai 10,204,385 15.4% 426,716 7.4%
R Shenzhen 4,002,485 6.0% 268,845 46%
AP Chengdu 8,205,569 12.4% 867,348 15.0%
EER Shenyang 8,413,091 12.7% 931,487 16.1%
LFES Shandong 4,493,339 6.8% 401,283 6.9%
TEEE Jiangsu 10,756,562 16.2% 992,339 17.2%
RERS Wuhan 7,532,573 11.4% 938,561 17.1%
BERS Fujian 3,925,475 5.9% 346,598 6.0%
BRI Hainan 1,087,098 1.6% 51,545 0.9%
a5t Total 66,306,272 100.0% 5,782,251 100.0%
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Since the beginning of 2014, due to lack of new launches in the first quarter
and the seasonal effects in relation to Spring Festival and New Year holiday,
the Group's contracted sales slowed down during this period. In the first two
months of 2014, the Group achieved contracted sales of RMB5,784 million
with GFA sold totalling 0.57 million square meters. With a better seasonality
in the second quarter, together with more new launches, the Group's
contracted sales performance is expected to pick up accordingly. The Group is
confident to deliver a healthy year-on-year growth in full year contracted
sales for 2014.

Booking of Development Business in 2013

In 2013, the Group's residential development business recorded a turnover of
HK$64,818 million with a total GFA of 4,997,237 square meters being
delivered, representing a substantial year-on-year growth of 68.3% and

R - 91.7% respectively. GFA booked and turnover by regions in 2013 are set out
as follows:

HEEEE H#EEE

Turnover GFA Booked

75000 75K

HK$'000 Sgm

R Beijing 11,424,819 596,616
FEEE Shanghai 3,901,663 145,073
eI 15 Shenzhen 3,124,850 103,232
KR 1 Chengdu 11,500,647 1,057,254
el Shenyang 9,087,811 793,927
IWRE Shandong 848,290 109,998
AR Jiangsu 11,207,832 880,140
RERT Wuhan 8,401,445 964,515
BEEE Fujian 3,120,805 261,077
SRR Hainan 2,199,465 85,405
At Total 64,817,627 4,997,237

TE-CZEAKERFRERBNEEENRR
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In 2013, the Group’s gross profit margin of its residential business was
26.1%. The drop in margin is primarily due to the lagging impact of booking
of the low-margin sales contracted in the market downturns back in 2011 and
the first half of 2012.
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Together with unbooked sales of RMBGE7,381 million that were achieved in
Year 2013, the Group has accumulated a total of RMB73,165 million in
unbooked sales, as of 28 February 2014, that are ready for recognition in 2014
and years to come. Specifically, the Group has locked in RMB52,544 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$66,569 million) for residential revenue
recognition in 2014, exceeding the full year residential revenue in 2013 by
2.7%, thus laying down a solid foundation for promising financial results in
2014.

Review of Investment Property Business in 2013

As of 31 December 2013, book value of the Group's investment properties
totalled HK$59,611 million, accounting for 21.2% of the Group's total assets
value. In compliance with relevant accounting policies, during the year under
review, a revaluation gain of HK$5,252 million (net of taxation and minority
interests) was booked according to an appraisal conducted by an independent
third party on the Group’s investment properties, including projects under
construction. In Year 2013, the turnover of property leasing business including
hotel business amounted to HK$4,622 million, representing a year-on-year
growth of 27.4%.
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TE-CFIBREYELEBLTFHEMARENDM  The following table sets out the turnover and occupancy rates of the key

N investment properties in Year 2013:
&3 (% 000) T E (%)
Turnover (HK$'000) Average Occupancy Rate (%)
Investment Property 2013 2012 %Yoy 2013 2012 yoy
AYESRH Shenzhen MiXc 976,931 886,355 10.2% 99.6% 99.2% 0.4pt
MMER Hangzhou MIXc 468,463 = 399,318 17.3% 98.7% 98.6% 0.1pt
BEER Shenyang MIXc 375466 312,362 20.2% 97.9% 96.4% 1.5pt
P EE S Chengdu MIXc 185,209 58917  2144% 98.5% 98.7% —0.2pt
HEESH Nanning MiXc 385722 108901  254.2% 99.0% 93.0% 6.0pt
EBBEAESHE  Shanghai CR Times Square 142,949 141,462 1.1% 95.8% 100.0% —4 2pt
It RERE Phoenix Commercial 71,503 64,331 11.1% 99.5% 96.6% 2.9pt
IR AR Beijing Hi5 141,976 65,501 116.8% 95.6% 99.8% —4 2pt
Y EBRE Shenzhen CR Building 139,613 138,590 07%  100.0%  100.0% 0.0pt
EGEEAE Shenyang CR Building 98,974 77,506 27.7% 85.8% 64.4% 21.4pt
REEBAE Chengdu CR Building 45,831 22532 103.4% 50.6% 21.3% 29.3pt
EEES YN Nanning CR Building 25,440 8,102  214.0% 90.1% 50.0% 40.1pt
TRERRE Beijing CR Building 211,753 184,692 14.7% 95.4% 97.8% —2.4pt
LEBREEEFHE  Shanghai CR Times Square Office 106,106 106,451 —0.3% 91.9% 94.6% —2.7pt
It REEEMES Phoenix CR Plaze Office
BYE 310,385 232,542 33.5% 92.7% 85.0% 7.7pt
EFRRAMMEFE  Beijing Hib Office 27,521 N/A N/A  100.0% N/A N/A
it Others 246,450 246,187 0.1% N/A N/A N/A
RINEBIE Shenzhen Grand Hyatt Hotel 462,579 471,791 ~2.0% 66.4% 69.8% ~3.4pt
RIGEREE Shimei Bay Le Meridien Hotel 108,389 102,423 5.8% 40.4% 33.8% 6.6pt
BREUBE Shenyang Grand Hyatt Hotel 90,094 N/A N/A 49.8% N/A N/A
EENENE Shanghai The Bound of
BEAAE Bund Serviced Apartment 580 N/A N/A 15.2% N/A N/A
&3t Total 4,621,934 3,627,963 21.4% N/A N/A N/A
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ASETEBHEMESFIIOT : Details of the Group's key investment properties in the PRC are listed below:

F5E AREER  EEEEER

MEER BB (FRK) (EHXK)
Interest Attributable
Attributable to Total GFA GFA
Property Name i the Group (%) (Sqm) (Sqm)
EREFAE IR 100.0% 65222 65.222 BFE
Beijing CR Building Beijing Office
TRHAEE 514 98.6% 115,900 114,227 EES
Hi5 Commercial Beijing Commercial
AXVHETE IR 98.6% 13,000 12,812 BYiE
Hib Office Beijing Office
AXHEES IR 98.6% 69,500 68,497 FE5
Hib5 Car Park Beijing Car Park
EEE 51 97.2% 37,122 36,071 GES
Phoenix Commercial Beijing Commercial
BEEMESSTE R 97.2% 80,986 78,694 BFiE
Phoenix CR Plaze Office Beijing Office
BEEHESESES R 97.2% 13,242 12,867 FES
Phoenix CR Plaze Car Park Beijing Car Park
Het IR 15.3%~97.2% 269,588 178,280
Others Beijing
HERRES b 100.0% 97,139 97,139
Shanghai CR Times Square Shanghai
[EES 51,190 51,190 HE
Commercial Commercial
RTE 36,843 36,843 2K
Office Office
BE5 9,106 9,106 {FE5
Car Park Car Park
FEMNENBBEARE s} 100.0% 22,078 22,078 B
Shanghai The Bound of Bund Shanghai Hotel
Serviced Apartment
I L sl 100.0% 323,748 323,748
Shenzhen City Crossing Shenzhen
BEEH 159,585 159,585 [HES
MIXc Commercial
REBRE 40,990 40,990 BT
Shenzhen CR Building Office
AGUBE 67,506 67,506 BE
Grand Hyatt Hotel Hotel
[FE5 55,667 55,667 [FE5
Car Park Car Park
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F5E AREER  BEREER

MELR R (EFEXK) (£HXK)
Interest Attributable
Attributable to Total GFA GFA
Property Name i the Group (%) (Sqm) (Sqm)
il ESTYNES 3 100.0% 13,789 13,789 B
Shenzhen Huarui Building Shenzhen Hotel
PR EREE R L & 100.0% 312,260 312,260
Chengdu City Crossing Chengdu
E&M 152,098 152,098 GRS
MIXc Commercial
HEEBAE 73,660 73,660 BT
Chengdu CR Building Office
FE5 86,502 86,502 FER
Car Park Car Park
MMERE—H M 60.0% 242,845 145,707
Hangzhou MIXc Ph.1 Hangzhou
EXM 173,709 104,225 EES
MiIXc Commercial
FE5 69,136 41,482 FER
Car Park Car Park
BIHERR L e 100.0% 362,945 362,945
Shenyang City Crossing Shenyang
EXM 173,863 173,863 EES
MiIXc Commercial
BEERAE 55,500 55,500 BTE
Shenyang CR Building Office
BE 76,542 76,542 EEE
Car Park Car Park
EHURE 57,040 57,040 B
Grand Hyatt Hotel Hotel
B = 55.0% 206,092 113,351
Nanning City Crossing Nanning
BE&M 136,092 74,851 GRS
MIXc Commercial
FEG 70,000 38,500 FE5
Car Park Car Park
RIGELEEE EE 100.0% 41,926 41,926 B
Shimei Bay Le Meridien Hotel Wanning Hotel
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MELR

Property Name

BREEE

Total GFA Comprising:

Hep: [GES

Commercial
BT
Office
BEE
Hotel
He
Others

PN | HEEHEE EEREEE
BRI (FHK) (EHK)
Interest Attributable

Attributable to Total GFA GFA
the Group (%) (Sqm) (Sqm)
2,287,382 1,999,613

1,230,263 1,006,607

370,356 367,758

202,339 202,339

484,424 422,909
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As of 28 February 2014, the Group's investment properties under construction
and planning (including hotels) reached 6.49 million square meters in total
GFA, comprising of 11 MIXc malls, 24 Hi5 malls and 22 hotels and serviced
apartments.

Investment property business, commercial property in particular, is the
Group's primary focus going forward. The Group's investment properties in
the pipeline will come into stream in the next few years, with 2014 and 2015
being the peak years for new completions. In the future, the Group will keep
on looking for high quality commercial land bank, in its efforts to ensure
stable growth in the Group's recurrent rental income, to further enhance the
Group's resilience to industry cyclic fluctuations and to optimize the Group's
earnings sustainability.

Review of the Value-Added Services in 2013

Guided by customers’ needs, the Group has further strengthened its value-
added services, as a part of its efforts to further differentiate its business
model, by applying the standardized solutions to more projects while
continuing to launch pilot projects in new areas. Specifically, the “serialized
storage space solution” (including “flexible/adjustable furniture for small
apartments”) has been applied to more than 28,000 units in 40 projects with
a total GFA of 3.8 million square meters.
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Land Bank

Since the beginning of 2013 until end of February 2014, the Group acquired
34 parcels of land bank with an attributable consideration of RMB39,536
million, involving a total of 10.10 million square meters in the attributable
GFA. As of 28 February 2014, the total GFA of the Group’s land bank
amounted to 35.81 million square meters. Details are set out below:

BEEEE BREFEHE

(EHXK) (ERK)

Total GFA Attributable GFA

(Sqm) (Sqm)

FRES Beijing 3,284,450 3,248,880
BRI Shanghai 2,093,831 1,515,133
RN 5 Shenzhen 3,350,789 2,453,596
B #R [ 39 Chengdu 6,075,598 5,575,778
B i Shenyang 4,663,319 4,077,556
LR R Shandong 4 547 547 4,350,596
THRE Jiangsu 6,068,045 5,252,968
RER Wuhan 2,633,651 2,633,651
BERSE Fujian 1,394,624 1,099,004
BEEE Hainan 1,697,265 1,697,265
= Total 35,809,119 31,904,427
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Sufficient land bank further laid down a solid foundation for the Group's
sustainable growth in the future. The Group’s geographic presence has been
extended to 50 cities (with addition of Guangzhou, Yantai, Taiyuan, Linyi,
Liuzhou, Kunming, Guiyang, and Shijiazhuang since 2013).

Going forward, while maintaining healthy financial position and capital
structure, the Group will strictly follow its financial return targets in its
replenishment of quality and low-cost land bank. Acquisition of land bank will
be made on a selective basis and should be guided by its business
development strategies. The Group will focus on its core strategic cities in
terms of geographical reach, and will diversify its land bank acquisition
channels including formation of joint ventures. Further land bank acquisitions
will be funded by the Group's internal resources together with external
financing.
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Liquidity, Financial Resources, Borrowings and Asset
Pledge

Benefitting from strong operating cash inflow and prudent financial
management, the Group has further strengthened its balance sheet and
lowered its debt ratios during the year. As at 31 December 2013, the Group's
total debt was HK$64,901 million equivalent while its cash and bank balance
amounted to HK$28,239 million. The Group's net interest-bearing debt to
equity ratio (including minority interests) was substantially lowered to 39.2%
as at 31 December 2013 from 49.6% as at the year end of 2012.

The Group continues to strengthen its financial management and optimize its
debt structure. As of 31 December 2013, 30.7% of the Group’s interest-
bearing debt was denominated in RMB and 69.3% in HK$ and USS$.
Approximately 25.0% of the interest-bearing debt is repayable within one
year while the rest is long term debt. Interest capitalised by the Group during
the year in properties under development, investment properties under
construction and construction in progress amounted to approximately
HK$1,803 million. The Group has maintained its borrowing cost at a relatively
low level, with the weighted average cost of its total interest-bearing
borrowings at 3.76% as at 31 December 2013.

In February 2014, international credit rating agencies Moody's and Fitch
assigned the Group credit ratings of “Baal/stable” and “BBB+/stable”
respectively, both are the highest ratings assigned to Chinese real estate
companies. These ratings fully reflect capital market's view on the Group's
positive business outlook and its solid financial stability. On 21 February
2014, the Group successfully issued a b-year senior note with principal
amount of US$400 million and a 10-year senior note with principal amount of
US$700 million bearing interest rates of 4.375% and 6.000% per annum
respectively.

As of 31 December 2013, the Group had total loan facilities of RMB14,549
million through asset pledge with pledge period ranging from 1.5 to 15 years.
As of 31 December 2013, the Group’s total balance of asset-pledged loan
was RMB7,278 million.

Foreign Exchange Rate Risk

The Group's residential and investment properties are all located in Mainland
China and the Group has RMB as its functional currency. We expect RMB
exchange rate to show a narrow two-way volatility trend in the near future,
and we do not expect RMB exchange rate fluctuation to have material
negative impact on the Group's financial position.
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Employee and Compensation Policy

As of 31 December 2013, the Group has approximately 21,874 full time
employees in Mainland China and Hong Kong (including its property
management and agency subsidiaries). The Group remunerates its employees
based on their performance, experience and the prevailing market pay levels.
In addition, performance bonuses are granted on a discretionary basis. Other
employee benefits include provident fund, insurance and medical coverage.

Contingent Liabilities

Temporary guarantees are provided to banks with respect to mortgage loans
procured by some buyers of the Group’s properties. Such guarantees will be
released by banks upon the delivery of the properties to such buyers or on
completion of the property registration of relevant properties pertaining to
the mortgage, whichever is later. According to the Board, the fair value of the
financial guarantee contracts is insignificant.

“E-=FEFR 35
Annual Report 2013



EEREEEEASHE
Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management

ROREE  BeEmtAE
RoB-—EAAREAARATLR - RELBES
EETOYRRESERETEE 8 NEE  REA
ARBERACESAKT BB EASE e
BRE BRUISRAREE - QEARGEEASR
SERBNIRNBESLEN EEASRATRR
TERRERESABTHEBELS - LEER
—ANZEMAZB(EE)ERAT  TR-TTRE
MAKAT °

EELE memt-—%
RoE-—EAAREAARATNESALT BEL
EMEBNAEEE EEABETERAEASILE
FEELTES+ BN REAES ABIREE
SE+EM FAMERCECRSAANSS < BE
ER—AASENMAEHE (£B)ARAT  SEBRE
BNEARAT - BR-EE—EMAKAT -

TEBES  memtag
WoE—CEAPREAARATTR HIZEE
SRS  TREBEREASBTRES
RIEER M TELEM - TEAR—ANZEN
AEE(EH)ARAT  BIEH(EE)ERATLE
BEwEE  2EERARATIAY  EREERY
BRATES BARTRELTRETELS - BR
—E-—EMAKAT TAAER-E-NENA
o ABEAATNTEEREIT R -

Mr. Wu Xiangdong, aged 46

was appointed as the Chairman of the Company in June 2013. Mr. Wu leads
the Board of Directors and is responsible for the smooth operations of the
board committees. He strives to uplift the Company’s corporate governance
standard, and is also responsible for the Group’s overall business
development, strategic planning and risk management. Mr. Wu holds a
Double Bachelor’s degree in Construction Management and Engineering
Mechanics, as well as a Master’s degree in Municipal Engineering from
Tsinghua University in China and an MBA degree from the University of San
Francisco in the United States. Mr. Wu joined China Resources (Holdings)
Company Limited in 1993, and joined the Company in 2005.

Mr. Tang Yong, aged 42

was appointed as the Managing Director of the Company in June 2013, and
is responsible for the day-to-day operations of the Group. Mr. Tang has a
Bachelor's degree of Engineering in Industrial and Electrical Automation from
Tongji University, China and an MBA degree from the University of San
Francisco in the United States. Mr. Tang has experience in property
management and corporate management. Mr. Tang joined China Resources
(Holdings) Company Limited in 1993, and had worked for China Resources
Property Management Limited. He joined the Company in 2001.

Mr. Wang Hong Kun, aged 45

was appointed as the Vice Chairman of the Company in June 2013, he is also
the General Manager of China Resources Land Hainan Region. Mr. Wang has
a Bachelor's degree of Chemical Engineering and a Master’s degree in
Biochemical Industry, both from Tianjin University. Mr. Wang joined China
Resources (Holdings) Company Limited in 1993 and was the Deputy General
Manager of Enterprise Development Dept., and also was Vice President of
China Resources Vanguard Co., Limited, and a director of CRC Development &
Investment Company Limited, with comprehensive experiences in the
management of multi-industries as well as investment management. He
joined the Company in 2011. Mr. Wang has resigned as an executive Director
and the Vice-chairman of the Company on 22 April 2014.
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Mr. Yan Biao, aged 57

was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company in February 1996 and
was re-designated as a Non-Executive Director in February 2006. Mr. Yan is
the Director of Legal Affairs of the China Resources Group. He is also a Non-
Executive Director of China Resources Enterprise, Limited. Mr. Yan was
appointed Supervisor of China Resources Sanjiu Medical & Pharmaceutical
Co., Limited on 15 June 2011. Mr. Yan has a Bachelor of Laws degree from
the Peking University, China and an MBA degree from the University of San
Francisco in the United States. He joined China Resources (Holdings)
Company Limited in 1985.

Mr. Du Wenmin, aged 50

was appointed as a Non-Executive Director of the Company in August 2007.
Mr. Du is currently a Vice President and Chief Human Resources Officer of
China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited. Mr. Du is also the Non-
Executive Director of China Resources Enterprise, Limited, China Resources
Power Holdings Company, China Resources Cement Holdings Limited and
China Resources Gas Group Limited. Mr. Du is also a Non-Executive Director
of China Resources Microelectronics Limited, whose listing position was
withdrawn on 2 November 2011. He is also a Director of China Resources
Sanjiu Medical & Pharmaceutical Co., Limited, a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange, and China Resources Double Crane
Pharmaceutical Co., Limited, a company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange. Mr. Du has served as a Director of China Resources Construction
(Holdings) Limited, and an Audit Controller of China Resources (Holdings)
Company Limited. Mr. Du has an MBA degree from the University of San
Francisco in the United States. He joined China Resources (Holdings)
Company Limited in 1985.

Mr. Ding Jiemin, aged 56

was appointed as a Non-Executive Director of the Company in September
2008. Mr. Ding is currently an Assistant to the President of Tongji University,
the President of Tongji Architectural Design (Group) Co., Limited. He is also
the Chairman of Shanghai Tongji Science & Technology Industrial Co.,
Limited, which is listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange. Mr. Ding holds the
certificates of a China national class 1 registered structural engineer, a
registered consultant engineer (in investment), and a senior registered
structural engineer in British Royal Institution of Structural Engineers. He has
a Doctor’s degree in Engineering from Tongji University, China.
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Mr. Wei Bin, aged 44

was appointed as a Non-Executive Director of the Company in October 2010.
He was appointed as the Chief Financial Officer of China Resources (Holdings)
Company Limited with effect from 1 April 2011 and is the General Manager
of its Finance Department. He is also a Non-Executive Director of China
Resources Enterprise, Limited, China Resources Gas Group Limited, China
Resources Cement Holdings Limited, China Resources Power Holdings
Company Limited and China Resources Microelectronics Limited, which are
companies listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange except
China Resources Microelectronics Limited whose listing position was
withdrawn on 2 November 2011, and a Director of China Resources Sanjiu
Medical & Pharmaceutical Co., Limited, Shan Dong Dong-E E-Jiao Co.,
Limited, and China Vanke Co., Limited, which are listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange, and China Resources Double-crane Pharmaceutical Co.,
Limited which is listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange. Mr. Wei holds a
Bachelor's degree in Auditing from Zhongnan University of Economics in
China and a Master's degree in Finance from Jinan University in China, and is
a Senior Accountant and a Senior Auditor in China. He is also a non-practising
member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Wei
joined China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited in 2001.

Mr. Huang Daoguo, aged 59

was appointed as a Non-Executive Director of the Company in June 2012. He
joined China Resources Group in 2011 and is currently the Audit Director of
China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited. He has been a non-executive
director of China Resources Enterprise, Limited and China Resources Cement
Holdings Limited (both companies are listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange) since May 2012 and has been a non-executive director of China
Resources Power Holdings Company Limited and China Resources Gas Group
Limited (both companies are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange) since
June 2012. Mr. Huang graduated from the Renmin University of China in 1987
and specialized in finance. He obtained a Master’s degree of Regional
Economics from the Central China Normal University in 1996. He is a Certified
Public Accountant and a Senior Auditor in the PRC. He joined the National
Audit Office of the PRC (“CNAQ") in 2000 and was the Commissioner of the
Wuhan Resident Office and Guangzhou Resident Office of CNAQ, and
Director of the Department of Agriculture, Resources and Environmental
Protection Audit of CNAO.
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Mr. Chen Ying, aged 43

was appointed as a Non-Executive Director of the Company in June 2012. Mr.
Chen is the Chief Strategy Officer of China Resources (Holdings) Company
Limited. He is also a Non-Executive Director of China Resources Enterprise,
Limited, China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited, China Resources
Gas Group Limited and China Resources Cement Holdings Limited. Mr. Chen
is also a Non-Executive Director of China Resources Double-Crane
Pharmaceutical Company Limited and China Resources Sanjiu Medical &
Pharmaceutical Company Limited, which are listed companies in China. He is
also a Director of China Vanke Co., Limited, a listed company in China. Mr.
Chen has a Bachelor's degree in Architectural Management from Tsinghua
University, China and an MBA degree from the University of Oxford. Mr. Chen
joined China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited in 1993, and has worked
for China Resources Construction (Holdings) Co., Limited and the Company
successively.

Mr. Wang Shi, aged 63

was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company in
April 1997. Mr. Wang is the Chairman and Founder of China Vanke Co.,
Limited. Since he founded and led Vanke in 1984, he profoundly shaped
Vanke's corporate visions, ethics and management strategies. Under his
leadership, Vanke has grown quickly into China’s largest home developer, as
well as pioneer in green home construction. In 2004, he co-founded Society
of Entrepreneurs and Ecology, China’s largest environmental networks
involving private sector business leaders. He was elected Chairman of China
Entrepreneurs Forum in July 2011. Mr. Wang reached the peak of Mount
Everest from North and South in 2003 and 2010 respectively. He is the 11th
person in the world to accomplish “7+2" — reaching the Seven Summits in
2004 and North and South Poles in 2005. Mr. Wang is member of the board
of World Wildlife Fund US and the World Economic Forum Global Agenda
Council on Governance for Sustainability. Mr. Wang obtained a Bachelor of
Science Degree from Lanzhou Railway College in China. From 2011 to 2013,
Mr. Wang was a visiting fellow at Harvard University specializing in business
value and ethics. He is now a visiting fellow at Pembroke College at
University of Cambridge studying business value and Judaism. Mr. Wang is
also an Independent Non-Executive Director of SOHU.Com Inc., and Modern
Media Holdings Limited.
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Mr. Ho Hin Ngai, Bosco, aged 69

was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company in
September 2005. He also serves as the Chairman of the Company’s Corporate
Governance Committee. Mr. Ho is a graduate from the Department of
Architecture of University of Hong Kong. He worked in several renowned
architectural practices in UK and HK before founding HPA (previously known
as Ho & Partners Architects Engineers and Development Consultants Limited)
in 1980. He is Authorized Person (Architect) Hong Kong, Member of Hong
Kong Institute of Architects and of Royal Institute of British Architects. The
projects he designed can be found in Mainland China, Hong Kong, India,
South-East Asia and Middle East, he has published a book called “Building in
China”.

Mr. Andrew Y. Yan, aged 56

was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director in July 2006. He
also serves as the Chairman of the Company’s Remuneration Committee. He
is currently the Founding Managing Partner of SAIF Partners. Prior to joining
SAIF Partners, he was the Managing Director and Head of Hong Kong office
of Emerging Markets Partnership, responsible for investment in Northeast
Asia and Greater China from 1994 to 2001. From 1989 to 1994, he worked in
the World Bank, the Hudson Institute and the US Sprint International
Corporation as an Economist, Research Fellow and Director of Strategic
Planning and Business Development for the Asia Pacific Region respectively
in Washington D.C.. From 1982 to 1984, he was the Chief Engineer at the
Jianghuai Airplane Corp.. Mr. Yan received a bachelor’s degree in
engineering from Nanjing Aeronautic Institute in 1982. He studied in the
Master Program in Department of Sociology of Peking University from 1984 to
1986 and received a Master of Arts’ degree from Princeton University in
International Political Economy in 1989. He also studied advanced finance
and accounting courses at the Wharton Business School in 1995.

Currently, Mr. Yan is also an Independent Non-executive Director of Fosun
International Limited, China Mengniu Dairy Company Limited and China
Petroleum & Chemical Corporation; Non-executive Director of Digital China
Holdings Limited, China Huiyuan Juice Group Limited, eSun Holdings Limited
and Guodian Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited, all of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Other
than that China Petroleum & Chemical Corporation is also listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange, London Stock Exchange and New York Stock
Exchange. He is also an Independent Director of Giant Interactive Group Inc.,
(listed on the New York Stock Exchange); Director of Acorn International Inc.
(listed on the New York Stock Exchange), ATA Inc. (listed on Nasdaq) and
China Digital TV Holding Co., Limited (listed on the New York Stock
Exchange).
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Mr. Wan Kam To, Peter, aged 61

was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company in
March 2009. He also serves as the Chairman of the Company's Audit
Committee. Mr. Wan has been a practicing accountant in Hong Kong for over
30 years and has extensive experience in auditing, finance, advisory and
management. He is a former partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong Kong.
Mr. Wan is currently an Independent Director of Mindray Medical
International Limited (a company listed on the New York Stock Exchange,
USA), and RDA Microelectronics, Inc. (a company listed on the NASDAQ), and
the Chairman of their Audit Committees. Mr. Wan is also an Independent
Non-executive Director of several companies listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited and Chairman/member of their Audit Committees, namely,
Dalian Port (PDA) Company Limited, Fairwood Holdings Limited, Harbin Bank
Company Limited, Huaneng Renewables Corporation Limited, Kerry Logistic
Network Limited, KFM Kingdom Holdings Limited, S.Culture International
Holding Limited and Shanghai Pharmaceuticals Holding Company Limited. Mr
Wan had also served as Independent Non-executive Director of Real Gold
Mining Limited and GreaterChina Professional Services Limited. He is a
Fellow of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Accountants, the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Directors.

Mr. Ma Weihua, aged 65

was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company in
July 2013. Mr. Ma was the President and Chief Executive Officer as well as
an executive director of China Merchants Bank Co., Limited (a company listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange) from
March 1999 to 31 May 2013. He obtained a Doctor’s degree in Economics
and is a senior economist. Mr. Ma is a member of the Twelfth National
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference. He was
a director of China Merchants Group Limited, the chairman of CIGNA and
CMC Life Insurance Company Limited, and China Merchants Fund. He is
currently the chairman of Wing Lung Bank, as well as an independent non-
executive director of China Petroleum & Chemical Corporation, China Eastern
Airlines Corporation Limited and Winox Holdings Limited, all of which are
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. He has been an independent
director of Guotai Junan Securities Co., Limited since January 2013. He is
also a director of One Foundation Council, the vice chairman of China
Chamber of International Commerce, the executive deputy chairman of China
Entrepreneurs Association, a member of the Standing Council of China
Society for Finance and Banking, a member of the Standing Council of the
Ninth Council of Red Cross Society of China, a director of Shenzhen Soft
Science Development Foundation and an adjunct professor at several higher
educational institutions including Peking University and Tsinghua University.
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Mr. Zhang Dawel, aged 46

was appointed as a Senior Vice President of the Company in June 2013 and
is also the General Manager of the Company’s Shandong Region. Mr. Zhang
has a Bachelor's degree of Structural Engineering and a Master's degree of
Earthquake Engineering from Dalian University of Technology. Mr. Zhang has
extensive experience in property management and corporate management.
Mr. Zhang joined China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited in 1994, and
had worked for China Resources Construction Co., Limited. He joined the
Company in 2006.

Mr. Xie Ji, age 42

was appointed as a Senior Vice President of the Company in June 2013, and
is also the General Manager of the Company’s Shanghai Region. Mr. Xie has
a Bachelor's degree in Civil Engineering from Tongji University, and an EMBA
degree from China Europe International Business School, Shanghai, China.
Mr. Xie has extensive experience in real estate management and corporate
management. Mr. Xie joined China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited in
1993, and had worked for China Resources Construction Co., Limited. He
joined the Company in 2001.

Mr. Li Xin, aged 42

was appointed as a Senior Vice President of the Company in June 2013, and
he is also the General Manager of the Company’s Shenyang Region, in charge
of the overall business development of the Company’s North-east region of
China. He has a Bachelor of Management degree from Dongbei University of
Finance & Economics and a Master's degree in Engineering Management
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr. Li has experience in
corporate management and property development. He joined China Resources
(Holdings) Company Limited in 1994, and had worked for China Resources
Property Management Limited. He joined the Company in 2001.

Mr. Chi Feng, aged 41

was appointed as a Senior Vice President of the Company in June 2013, and
he is also the General Manager of the Company’s Jiangsu Region. Mr. Chi
has a Bachelor's degree of International Economic Law from Jilin University
and an EMBA degree from China Europe International Business School. Mr.
Chi joined China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited in 1999, and had
worked for China Resources Shanghai Co., Limited and China Resources Sun
Hung Kai Properties (Wuxi) Limited. He joined the Company in 2006.
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Mr. Wu Bingqi, aged 42

was appointed as a Senior Vice President of the Company in October 2013,
he is also the Director of Strategy of the Company and General Manager of
the Company’s Chengdu Region. Mr. Wu has a Bachelor's degree of Industrial
and Civil Architecture Engineering from Tongji University, China and an MBA
degree from the University of South Australia in Australia. Mr. Wu has
extensive experience in construction and decoration, hotel management,
advertising exhibition, furniture and property management. Mr. Wu joined
China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited in 1993, and had worked for
China Resources Property Limited and China Resources Construction
(Holdings) Limited. He joined the Company in 2007.

Mr. Yu Jian, aged 42

joined the Company in 2014 as a Senior Vice President and the CFO of the
Company. Mr. Yu, CFA, has his Bachelor’s degree in International Finance
from the University of International Business and Economics in China and an
MBA degree from the University of Michigan Ross School of Business in the
United States. He has nearly 20 years’ experience in financial management.
Mr. Yu joined China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited in 2009 and was
the Head of Treasury and Senior Deputy CFO of the Finance Department. Prior
to China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited, Mr. Yu had worked for 8
years in the strategic planning and treasury functions in BP Asia based in
Hong Kong and BP plc based in London, and spent 7 years in the financial
leasing area in CITIC in Beijing and Hong Kong.
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The Group adopts a brand philosophy of “quality brings changes to the city”,
and is committed to providing customers with industry-leading quality
products and services, building a better community environment, and bringing
lifestyle changes to its customers. In 2013, while achieving outstanding
operating performance, the Group continues to focus on corporate social
responsibility and sustainable development. It has also made pro-active
contribution to environmental protection and construction quality, public
welfare, staff training and development, as well as occupational health and
safety.

Environmental Protection and Construction Quality
Environmental Protection and Emission Contro

The Group continues to uphold the principles of “no corporate development at
the expense of environment; no sacrifice of the long-term interests of the
environment in exchange for short-term benefits; and no work space beauty
at the cost of employees’ health”. Hence, the Group strives to reduce
consumption of resources and energy, eliminate or reduce operational
pollution. The Group targets to achieve tangible results in energy-saving and
emission-reduction by 2015: capability in energy-saving and emission-
reduction, capability in technical support, promotion in management
expertise, and achieving an industry-leading position in the overall
management in energy-saving and emission-reduction.

The Group formulated seven systems regarding energy-saving and emission-
reduction, including “China Resources Land Energy-saving and emission-
reduction Regulations”, “China Resources Land Green Energy Project
Construction Management System” and “China Resources Land Property
Management Energy Saving Handbook”. The Systems specify the obligations
of energy-saving and emission-reduction at all levels of the Group:
organization construction, supervision and administration, implementation
and appraisal standards under the systems.

The Group actively promotes the use of new technologies, processes,
materials and products for the purpose of energy-saving and emission-
reduction, strengthens the management of energy-saving and emission-
reduction, conducts studies on its benchmarks, finds the gaps between its
benchmarks, formulates and implements improvement measures. Providing
more energy efficient residential properties and investment properties is a
key initiative for the Group to fulfill its corporate social responsibility. The
Group requires its projects to obtain green building design proof to fully
implement energy-saving and emission-reduction. Other energy-saving and
emission-reduction measures include specify energy-saving and emission-
reduction requirements; develop energy-saving and emission-reduction
systems; implement environmental risk management; identify and evaluate
environmental risk factors; conduct supervision and inspection, etc.
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In 2013, a number of commercial property and residential property projects
participated in the “Earth Hour” movement. During the year, key energy-
saving and emission-reduction projects include Jingtong boiler room clean
energy transformation project, energy-saving transformation in Beijing Xidan
Cultural Square thermal circulation pumps, frequency transformation for
escalators in Shenyang MIXc, and addition of variable-frequency drives for
the 2 sets of 2,000 tons cooling pumps in China Resources City Crossing
phase 1 and 2, etc.

Green Construction

In 2013, the Group officially released the “China Resources Land Projects’
Green/Energy Efficient Building Management Scheme” (“Scheme”). The
Scheme requires that all the new residential projects of the Group would fully
implement green star standard certification since 2013. The Group would
apply for green certification (starting from one star) based on local
requirements, customer demand, product line selection and government
requests. All new investment property projects since 2013 should focus on
energy-saving measures, by referencing to the green star standard, and the
decision to apply for green building certification would be based on customer
demand and government requests. The issuance of the Scheme further
demonstrates the Group’s commitment in developing green buildings and
promoting energy-saving and emission-reduction.

In 2013, 5 projects successfully obtained the certificates of green
construction, including Zone B of Shimei Bay Palace Phase 1, Beijing Oak Bay,
Chengdu Twenty-Four City Phase 5, Xian Twenty-Four City Phase 1, and
Mianyang Central Park Phase 3.
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BRE Construction Quality

ERGANEMEREYN KAEEHE2A3REMNE  As an integrated property developer, the Group regards construction quality

DR —E—ZF AEERGHETREEB51  as a core element of high quality. In 2013, the Group actively promotes lean

B RET-ZJBEEETENRE (EBEH  management of construction quality, and prepares a series of quality

TEBREEZE) (FE@ETREIREEVI0A  management standards and regulations: “China Resources Land Projects”

MEEIRM2RREIERES (V1.0)% - Quality Standards V2.0", “Residential Turnkey Engineering Materials
Specifications V1.0” and “Residential Engineering Design and Construction
Management Guidelines in Leakage Prevention (V1.0) “ etc.

\

>

TE-CF RESPEH - KT — 5% %  In 2013, Dalian Maritime Phase 2 and Chengdu Twenty-Four City Phase 2
“T-—EhHLATIRERAZESEENES  were awarded 2013 Gold Medal of Tien-yow Jeme Outstanding Residential
#) RHESH—HTIRLE - T——FF-F—= Community”. Chengdu MIXc Phase 1 was awarded the “2012-2013 Lu Ban
FEPHRRIRENE(EARELIR)] RYIEE  Prize (National High-Quality Construction)”. Moreover, Shenzhen Bay Sports
BERLOAEI-Z——FE-"T--FEHAZELETE Centre was awarded “2012-2013 National High-Quality Engineering Project
] o Prize”.

CD MIXC
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Public Welfare

Volunteering Services

In 2013, more than 2,500 of the Group’s staff participated in volunteer
activities, with 8,750 total volunteer hours. In particular, a charitable
autograph sales event called “Daddy’s Wooden Flower” was held in
Shenyang City, Liaoning Province, in which children with autism from Liaoning
Rehabilitation Centre were invited to the arts exhibition and all the proceeds
from the autograph sales were donated to the rehabilitation centre. The event
offered the autistic children more opportunities to know the outside world,
and feel the care from society.

Community Scholarship

In-line with its corporate cultural value of “gratitude and payback”, the Group
carried out various fundraising and donation activities in different cities every
year. In 2013, the Group organized a caring team in Binzhou city in Shandong
province, Nanchang city in Jiangxi province and other remote and poor areas.
The team donated RMB100,000 worth of books, stationery and funds to 22
children and a school in poverty. More than 500 of the Group's staff
participated in community service related to scholarships and school
donations, with over 2,000 cumulative volunteer hours.
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In-line with
Group’s strategy
on one hand and
with performance

on the other hand;

Talent
development and
organizational
capability as wings
from the main body

AT ER
Talent Development

BREXFHENR
Advanced professional seminar

EEXNHHERIFEI]
Internal professional
seminar modules

WEEEERE
Courses on real estate
value chain

SEEELBARR
Coaching for the Group's
direct managers

HEEE AN
Mid-level leadership training

B0 - EEBEERN
China Resources Land's 70's
courses; coaching for young leaders

HZEBBEET
Front-line staff training

HRBTEE R RE
Coaching and development of
experienced hires

X EBRIRE
Culture Evangelist Certification

BB EEE IR RS
Coaching and development of
graduate recruits

=A
Focus on
professional
upgrade

NER
Focus on
leadership
development

BEAUER
ET#RTA
Focus on
culture and
staff
development
platform

Organizational Capability

ne
Jmt

Performance execution =gt

BMNBARATERER

China Resources Land's segregated
talent development system

544812 A Top manager

EEEBAEE

(%E60- 70 - 8031)
Group’s manager training
(60's, 70's, 80's class)

EgE
China Resources Land's manager

S pACIF SN

FEBRIERN

BREETEIN

“The Way of China Resources
Management” leadership training
Coaching for young leaders
Advanced professional seminar

naE
Adding
height

NEE
Adding

" Z 5124 Mid-level manager
breadth

B EEE N

iR EEE NI

EBRRESNN

Mid-level leadership training in headquarter
Mid-level leadership training in each region
Leadership training for each business line

4 EE % Elementary manager

BNAE SRR
EHEEERERN MR
China Resources Land's coaching for Adding
front-line staff depth
Coaching for front-line staff in each region

& T [E Basic staff

[RRZE]

HABABLE

EEEBERN

“Future star”

Training for experienced hires
Coaching for front-line staff
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Employee Training and Development

Talent is the Group's most important asset and competitive advantage. To
support the Group’s achievement of strategic objectives, cultivating a team of
market-leading, organizational-advantage-creating, value-oriented,
passionate and responsible professionals is the Group’s ultimate goal in
talent pursuit. While the Group experiences solid business development, it
also provides staff with broad career opportunities, adheres to a strong
interaction between business and talent development, builds close
connection between personnel training and uses, and puts talent
development in a strategically high level. Hence, employees will be provided
with opportunities to learn, work, and challenge themselves.

Combined with the talent requirements of the Group's strategic development,
the Group has built a three-dimensional training system, and constantly
develops talent for the industry. This system includes leadership training,
professional training, front-line staff development platform, new employees
training, general skills training, cultural fostering and so on. In 2013, the
Group invested RMB48.49 million to improve its employees’ knowledge and
skills and completed training of 32,594 staff.

Leadership Training

In 2013, the Group selected a total of 25 managers with superior performance
and promising potential and completed two phases of a training program
called “The Way of China Resources Management” held by China Resources
University. Meanwhile, the Group’s headquarter coordinated with each region
and hosted a total of 17 “mid-level leadership” training courses, covering 679
staff, in order to match the Group's rapid growth with more reserve of mid-
level talents.

Professional Training

In 2013, China Resources Land Academy organized advanced professional
training courses in key points along the real estate value chain including
engineering, property management, designing, marketing, and commercial
real estate, in order to solve practical business issues of the Group. The
courses mainly take the forms of internal communication, external visits,
expert review, and project-based assignments. During the year, more than
270 staff participated in these courses.
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Front-line Staff Development Platform

The Group selects new staff with 2 to 3 years of experience with “good
performance, promising potential, and clear development path” to participate
in management training courses. The courses aim to develop the staff in-line
with China Resources corporate culture, equip them with the Group’s
strategies and operations, and nurture their self-management skills and team
management potential. Two courses were held in June and November 2013
respectively, with 50 staff for each course, covered 100 outstanding front-line
staff.

New Employees Training

The 2013 "Future Star” training camp was hosted by the Group’s Shenzhen
region together with China Resources Land Academy. The program has
completed training for 302 “future stars” of the Group.

Sunshine Corporate Culture

The Group has always been upholding China Resources Holdings' excellent
corporate culture, and strives to create simple, honest, and sunshine
organization climate. Emphasis is put on strictness to managers and caring to
staff. Through “being grateful and pursue values above profitability”, the
Group has formed a distinctive sunshine corporate culture.

First, the Group adheres to the core values of honesty and trustworthiness,
and abides by the operational principles of “people-oriented, population-
driven growth, respect for the human spirit, and improvement to people’s
lives”.

Meanwhile, the Group strictly enforces the “China Resources Land Regional
Works Contract Management System Guidelines” and “China Resources Land
Bidding Management System”, and gradually improves the “China Resources
Land Central Procurement Performance Evaluation Measures”, “China
Resources Land Vendor Performance Management Approach” and so on,
based on principles of sunshine and lean procurement, as well as value
creation. Moreover, “China Resources Land Sunshine Declaration”, “China
Resources Land Honest Procurement Practitioners Standards”, and “Suppliers
Honest Cooperation Agreement” has been incorporated in the Group's
centralized procurement process in the form of tender documents and
agreements.

All of the Group’s managers strictly comply with “China Resources Ten
Commandments”, which specify behaviors that are strictly prohibited and are
impassable bottom-lines. If a manager violates any of the commandments,
regardless of the outcome or his track record, immediate dismissal will result.
Moreover, he will be held liable for any consequences. During the year, no
breach of the commandments was observed.
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Occupational Safety and Health

The Group has built a construction lifecycle EHS management system based
on its operational features, and promotes the professional implementation at
all levels in the organization. The industry-based system will improve the
Group’s risk control capability, and the Group strives to become the industry-
leader in occupational health and safety management. The Group strictly
implements the “China Resources Land Occupational Health Management
System” and has refined the Group’s occupational health evaluation system.
The Group actively organizes various safety education activities, purchases
commercial insurance for the employees, and provides labor protective
equipments for on-site staff on a regular basis.

In 2013, the Group has developed a “China Resources Land three-year EHS
Management Plan”, which specified clearly the Group’s EHS strategies,
concepts and principles. The Group conducted 417 safety emergency drills, as
well as 1,665 on-site inspections. Through safety education and training,
sharing of typical site accident scenarios and management case studies,
cross-safety inspections, the Group has successfully strengthened the
communication and learning among the EHS management team. This in turn
will promote the professional development of the Group’s EHS Management
System, so as to effectively protect the safety and health of the employees.
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Corporate Governance

The Company and the Board are committed to establishing good corporate
governance practices and procedures. The Company recognizes the
importance of maintaining high standards of corporate governance to the
long-term stable development of the Group. The Company has adopted the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) set out in the Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Board is pleased to report compliance with the code provisions set out in
CG Code for the period from 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2013, except for
the deviations as disclosed in this annual report. A review of the Company’s
corporate governance in 2013 is set out as follows:

Deviation from CG Code

In respect of code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, due to other business
commitment, the Chairman of the Company did not attend the Company’s
annual general meeting held on 5 June 2013.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Board has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as code of conduct regarding securities transactions of the
directors of the Company (the “Directors”). All Directors confirmed that they
have complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code
regarding their securities transactions during 2013.

Board of Directors

Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is responsible for the formulation of strategies, objectives and
business plans for the Company, and to supervise and control the
implementation of strategies of the Company and its operations and financial
performance, and formulation of appropriate risk control policies and
procedures to ensure the achievement of the Company’s strategic objectives.
In addition, the Board is also responsible for maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance of the Company. The Directors are accountable for
promoting the success of the Company and making decisions objectively in
the best interests of the Company.
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In order to maintain a highly efficient operation, as well as flexibility and
swiftness in operational decision-making, the Board, when necessary, may
delegate its managing and administrative powers to the management, and
provide clear guidance regarding such delegation so as to avoid seriously
impeding or undermining the overall capabilities of the Board in exercising its
powers. The management meets regularly to review the strategic goals,
corporate structure, operating procedures, budget implementation, major
projects and business plans of the Company. Duties and authorities delegated
to the various hoard committees are described in the respective sessions
below.

The Board should have a balance of skills and experience appropriate for the
requirements of the business of the Company. A balanced composition of
executive Directors and non-executive Directors helps to ensure the
independence of the Board and enables the Board to make independent
judgments effectively. The operation and management of the Board and the
day-to-day management of the Company’s business should be clearly divided
at the Board level to ensure that there is a balance of power and authority
and that power will not be concentrated in any one individual.

Board Composition

With effect from 17 June 2013, the following changes to the Board took
place: (1) Mr. Wang Yin has resigned as Chairman of the Board and executive
Director; (2) Mr. Wu Xiangdong has been appointed as Chairman of the
Board; (3) Mr. Tang Yong has been appointed as executive Director and
Managing Director; (4) Mr. Wang Hongkun has been appointed as executive
Director and Vice Chairman of the Company.

With effect from 5 July 2013, the following changes to the Board took place:
(1) Mr. Frederick Ma Si Hang resigned as independent non-executive Director;
and (2) Mr. Ma Weihua was appointed as independent non-executive
Director.

As at 31 December 2013, the Board comprised 14 Directors, including 3
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Wu Xiangdong (Chairman), Mr. Tang Yong
(Managing Director) and Mr. Wang Hongkun (Vice Chairman), 6 non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Yan Biao, Mr. Du Wenmin, Mr. Ding Jiemin, Mr. Wei
Bin, Mr. Huang Daoguo and Mr. Chen Ying, and 5 independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Wang Shi, Mr. Andrew Y. Yan, Mr. Ho Hin Ngai,
Bosco, Mr. Wan Kam To, Peter and Mr. Ma Weihua. Members of the Board
are not related to each other and the Chairman is not related to the members
of the Board, including financial, business, family or other material
relationship. The number of independent non-executive directors represents
more than one third of the Board as required under Rule 3.10A of the Listing
Rules throughout the year ended 31 December 2013. Members of the Board
and their biographical details are set out in the biographical details of
Directors and senior management of the Company section on pages 36 to 43
of this report.

With effect from 22 April 2014, the following changes to the Board took
place: (1) Mr. Wang Hongkun resigned as executive Director and Vice
Chairman of the Company.
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As at the date of this report, the Board's composition under major diversified
perspectives was summarized as follows:
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Number of Directors

The Company has received an annual confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors confirming their independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Directors and Officers” Liahility Insurance is in place to protect Directors and
officers of the Group against their potential legal liabilities.

Directors’ Continuous Training and Development Programme
Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution to the
Board remains informed and relevant.

The Company has put in place an on-going training and professional
development program for the Directors.

With effect from 1 April 2012, all Directors have been provided with monthly
updates on the Group's business operation, position and prospects to enable
the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company
has sent reading materials to Directors on regulatory updates or information
relevant to the Group or its business.
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THEZEEES 2 The Company has received from all Directors records of their continuous
professional development trainings during the year. Details of which are set
out in below table:

BHEEXRR 2ER
Type of Continuous Professional Development
HEEEAEE HEEERR
FHEK 2B EHADR RESRE
EEERHEN EHEZER Mg
Reading

regulatory Attending
updates or seminar on
information Visiting the regulatory
relevant to the Company's development
Group or projects  and directors’

its business in the PRC duties

\Wu Xiangdong v v

Tang Yong (appointed with
effect from 17 June 2013)

Wang Hongkun (appointed with
effect from 17 June 2013)

Yan Biao

Du Wenmin

Ding Jiemin

Wei Bin

Huang Daoguo

Chen Ying

Wang Shi

Andrew Y.Yan

Ho Hin Ngai, Bosco

Wan Kam To, Peter

Ma Weihua (appointed with
effect from 5 July 2013)
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Board and General Meetings

Six regular meetings of the Board and one Annual General Meeting of the
Company ("AGM") were held during the year of 2013. The attendance of each
Director at the meetings is set out as follows:

EZEEE RRBFEAE

Esng Name of Director Board Meeting AGM
HTEE Executive Director

RAR Wu Xiangdong 5/6 A
B B Tang Yong* 3/3 0/0
TRE* Wang Hongkun* 2/3 0/0
FE Epe= Wang Yin** 2/3 0/1
IHITEE Non-executive director

A O Yan Biao 4/6 0/1
HXE Du Wenmin 5/6 11
TER Ding Jiemin 3/6 1/1
O Wei Bin 1/6 0/1
mEE Huang Daoguo 2/6 0/1
B E Chen Ying 2/6 01
BUINTEE Independent non-executive director

T A Wang Shi 1/6 0/1
B Andrew Y.Yan 1/6 0/1
o[ ZE5R} Ho Hin Ngai, Bosco 5/6 11
FH Wan Kam To, Peter 5/6 1/1
B g oes Ma Weihua*** 2/2 0/0
PR # Frederick Ma Si Hang** 3/3 0/1
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*

There were three board meetings and no AGM held during the tenure of the Director;

*x

There were three board meetings and one AGM held during the tenure of the Director;

KX

There were two board meetings and no AGM held during the tenure of the Director.

Chairman and Chief Executive

The roles of Chairman and Managing Director of the Company are held
separately by Mr. Wu Xiangdong and Mr. Tang Yong respectively. The
segregation of duties of the Chairman and the Managing Director ensures a
clear distinction in the Chairman'’s responsibility to manage the Board and the
Managing Director’s responsibility to manage the Company's day-to-day
business.

“E-ZFEFR
56 Annual Report 2013



¥ERI|E Corporate Governance Report

21 EEKER

2RESCRFARARARILEAZR TR - EHA
=5 RARBARRZEBERAEN6E KD
BFRARNRREFAS LABRREE R - RIEE

$ﬁééﬂék MRRREFAE EEERIAER 2
VRBREL - WEFGHBRZR  FAAREZER
Uk%*i@)Tﬁi%A ARREREAN EZ

#EFTXk%%Eﬁ—ﬁﬁu°

EZZEE

EREEE

ARRERRBE ((ERREE )R- AN\FAAK
AR R-F-=F+-A=1+—H FZEE2

BREORBUFNTESIHITES  DFHERL
E(XF) MBEREE  Bskt  BHELL BB

RE BERALLNRELL  MFHELALAESH

RAEXER -

ERZEE/RAREC LHXBRMRARA R -
DB -

F@@EFW ENZESRBRAMASE  BHAR
AELE= ZERNAZTREAEAREL-S—=
F+=-A= f AILFEZMBRE  HEBERS

AR - REBE B - IV$%km$ 7] Z A
EREHnERER RS

Appointment, Re-election and Removal

All Directors entered into formal letters of appointment with the Company for
a term of three years during the year and they are subject to re-election by
shareholders at AGM and at least once every three years on a rotation basis
in accordance with Article 116 of the Articles of Association of the Company.
A retiring Director is eligible for re-election and re-election of retiring
Directors at AGMs is dealt with by separate individual resolutions. Where
vacancies arise at the Board, candidates are proposed and put forward to the
Board by the nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) as more fully explained below under the section on Nomination
Committee.

Board Committees

Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) was
established on 4 September 1998. As at 31 December 2013, all members of
the Audit Committee are either independent non-executive Directors or non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Wan Kam To, Peter (Chairman), Mr. Ho Hin
Ngai, Bosco, Mr. Andrew Y. Yan, Mr. Ma Weihua, Mr. Wei Bin, Mr. Huang
Daoguo and Mr. Chen Ying, while Mr. Wan Kam To, Peter holds accounting-
related professional qualifications.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the website
of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee held two meetings to
review the financial statements of the Company for the six months ended 30
June 2013 and the year ended 31 December 2013, continuing connected
transactions, internal audit, re-appointment of auditors and advised the
management of the enhancement of internal risk control of the Company on
an on-going basis.
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EREEONERN_S—=FZHFELRHNT Attendance of members of the Audit Committee in 2013 is set out as follows:

A %

BB %
BUAHGEE
FRE(ZERZR)
WS

B

T A

(RZE—=F=A+HAHMT)
B

(R=ZE-—=F+ARBEZA)
%Hié—*

(R=Z—=FtAARET)

FHTEE

B
(RZZ—=F=A+HBEZEM)
HEH*
(R=Z—=F=A+hHBEZT)
B OE
(R=—E—ZE=-A1+HREZT)

AEFHNEET—NEH -

FWEES

Name of director Attendance

Independent non-executive director

Wan Kam To, Peter (committee chairman) 2/2
Ho Hin Ngai, Bosco 2/2
Andrew Y. Yan 2/2
Wang Shi

(resigned with effect from 15 March 2013) 0/0
Ma Weihua*

(appointed with effect from 5 July 2013) 0/1
Frederick Ma Si Hang*

(resigned with effect from 5 July 2013) 11

Non-executive director

\Wei Bin*

(appointed with effect from 15 March 2013) 11
Huang Daoguo®

(appointed with effect from 15 March 2013) 11
Chen Ying*

(appointed with effect from 15 March 2013) 11

* There was one meeting held during the tenure of the director.

Remuneration Committee

ARAHHEEE ((FMZES ) N-TTAFMA+  The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration

BRY -R_E—=F+_A=+—-8"

HMZE®@ X  Committee”) was established on 7 April 2005. As at 31 December 2013, a

BOKEBBUFNITES - BUMETETE  MEM  majority of the members of the Remuneration Committee are independent
KEBEMBRELE FHELRLE  BEZEXRERMX  non-executive Directors. Mr. Andrew Y. Yan is the Chairman and other

REL -

members include Mr. Ho Hin Ngai, Bosco, Mr. Wan Kam To, Peter, Mr. Ma
Weihua and Mr. Du Wenmin.

SHEEENBESED LHEPMTMRAATMIL - The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on the

LM#\EF;E

website of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee has determined
the policy for the remuneration of executive Directors, assessed performance
of Chairman, Managing Director and senior management and reviewed the
incentive mechanism of the Company. There was one meeting held by the
Remuneration Committee to approve the increase in salaries and payment of
discretionary bonus to executive Directors and senior management of the
Group during the year. In this regard, the Remuneration Committee made
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and senior management of the Group for final adoption.
The attendances at these meetings are as follows:

EERZ Name of director Attendance
BUINTEE Independent non-executive director
B w(ZEe+E) Andrew Y. Yan (committee chairman) 1/1
R Ho Hin Ngai, Bosco 171
FRE Wan Kam To, Peter 117
B Ma Weihua

(RZE—=FtARARZM) (appointed with effect from 5 July 2013) 1/1
Epss Frederick Ma Si Hang*

(RZZ—=5tARBEHE) (resigned with effect from 5 July 2013) 0/0
FHITEE Non-executive director
MR Du Wenmin

(M=Z—=F=A+HBEZT) (appointed with effect from 15 March 2013) 11
HITEE Executive director
T Wang Yin*

(M=ZT—=F=FA+HB&T) (resigned with effect from 15 March 2013) 0/0

REFTHNTERTEMEH

REE-T-=F+_A=1—RHILFE SEEEA
B ENHHAMMT :

There was no meeting held during the tenure of the director.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the details of the remuneration of the
members of the senior management were as follows:

(B%)

HK$

EoLEMEH Salaries and other benefits 23,048,780
RIKEFIE 212 Contributions to retirement benefit schemes 721,461
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The remuneration of the members of the senior management of the Group by
band is set out below:

AH

Number of persons

4,500,001 to 5,000,000 5

Further particulars regarding the directors’ emoluments and the five highest
paid individuals as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 to the
Listing Rules are set out in notes 7 and 8 to the financial statements.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 30 March 2007. As at 31
December 2013, a majority of the members of Nomination Committee are
independent non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Wan Kam To, Peter, Mr.
Andrew Y. Yan, Mr. Ho Hin Ngai, Bosco, Mr. Ma Weihua, one non-executive
director, namely, Mr. Du Wenmin, and the Chairman, Mr. Wu Xiangdong.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for making recommendations on
any proposed changes to the Board and identifying individuals suitably
qualified to become Board members based on their qualification, experience
and potential contribution to the Company. The terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee are available on the website of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.

On 23 August 2013, the Company adopted “China Resources Land Limited
Board Diversity Policy”. With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced
development, the Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and
its sustainable development. In designing the Board's composition, Board
diversity has been considered from a number of aspects, including but not
limited to cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge, gender, age, ethnicity and length of service. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge, gender, age, ethnicity and length of service.
The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board.
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During 2013, two meetings were held by the Nomination Committee at which
(1) Mr. Tang Yong was recommended to the Board to be appointed as
Executive Director and Managing Director of the Company, (2) Mr. Wang
Hongkun was recommended to the Board to be appointed as Executive
Director and Vice Chairman of the Company, and (3) Mr. Ma Weihua was
recommended to the Board to be appointed as independent non-executive
director. The attendances at these meetings are as follows:

HEL s
=g Name of director Attendance
RAR*(ZE2LE) Wu Xiangdong* (committee chairman)

(R=ZE—=F A TtHEZF) (appointed with effect from 17 June 2013) 1/1
B Andrew Y. Yan 2/2
{RR Ho Hin Ngai, Bosco 2/2
FiE Wan Kam To, Peter 2/2
HXR Du Wenmin

(R=—ZE—=F=A+HBEZRT) (appointed with effect from 15 March 2013) 2/2
R Ma Weihua**

(RZE—=FtAAREZM) (appointed with effect from 5 July 2013) 0/0
BT Frederick Ma Si Hang

(R=Z—=F+ AR AF) (resigned with effect from 5 July 2013) 2/2
T Wang Yin*

(R=BE—=FA+LBET) (resigned with effect from 17 June 2013) 1/1

REFEHNBT—REH -

REFTHNYERTAMES -

tREREES

ARz tXxERREE(RXEARREGIR-F
—ZFZANBRY cRZT-=F+ZA=+-8"
CEERREGIKEBIERBUFHTES HFE
BEE(ZR) FHELLE BUELE BRELL
R=2H18% HRAREL EBRERIZRE
# o

CEERZEBERAREC FRRBRMRALRH
U AHER]

*

There was one meeting held during the tenure of the director;

*x

There was no meeting held during the tenure of the director.

Corporate Governance Committee

The corporate governance committee of the Company (the “CG Committee”)
was established on 9 March 2012. As at 31 December 2013, a majority of the
members of CG Committee are independent non-executive directors, namely,
Mr. Ho Hin Ngai (Chairman), Mr. Wan Kam To, Peter, Mr. Andrew Y. Yan, Mr.
Ma Weihua, and three Executive Directors, namely, Mr. Wu Xiangdong, Mr.
Tang Yong and Mr. Wang Hongkun.

The terms of reference of the CG Committee are available on the website of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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During the year under review, there was one meeting held by the CG
Committee to review Corporate Governance Report of the Company and
Directors” continuous professional development training records and plans
during the year. The attendance of the meeting is as follows:

A2 %
EERZ Name of director Attendance
RMAR Wu Xiangdong 01
B B Tang Yong*

(RZZE—=F ATtHEZME) (appointed with effect from 17 June 2013) 0/0
FRE* Wang Hongkun*

(R=ZZE—=F ATtHEZE) (appointed with effect from 17 June 2013) 0/0
WBR(ZE2EE) Ho Hin Ngai, Bosco (committee chairman) 1/1
Aok Andrew Y. Yan 11
F Wan Kam To, Peter 11
BEE* Ma Weihua*

(RZZE—Z=F+LARBEZT) (appointed with effect from 5 July 2013) 0/0
Sz Frederick Ma Si Hang**

(RZZE—=FtARHET) (resigned with effect from 5 July 2013) 11
F g Wang Yin**

(RZE—Z=F A TtHEHT) (resigned with effect from 17 June 2013) 11

ZEFEHNLEFTEMEH

REFEHNET—REH -

BEGEER

HMBRE
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*

There was no meeting held during the tenure of the director;

*¥

There was one meeting held during the tenure of the director.

Accountability and Audit

Financial Reporting

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of the
annual reports, interim reports and financial statements of the Company to
ensure that the financial statements give a true and fair presentation in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards. The statement by
the independent auditor about its reporting responsibilities relating to the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 89 to 173.

Independence of Auditor

The Audit Committee reviews and monitors the independent auditor’s
independence and objectivity and effectiveness of the audit process. It
receives each year the letter from the independent auditor confirming their
independence and objectivity and holds meetings with representatives of the
independent auditor to consider the scope of its audit, approve its fees, and
the scope and appropriateness of non-audit services, if any, to be provided by
it. The Audit Committee also makes recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and retention of the independent auditor.
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Auditor's Remuneration

An analysis of the fees of PricewaterhouseCoopers and other independent
auditor is shown in Note 11 to the financial statements of the Company. In
the year ended 31 December 2013, a provision of HK$3,359,000 was made in
the financial statements for service fee payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers
for the annual audit and review of interim financial statements, there was no
non-audit service fee for the year ended 31 December 2013.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary, Mr. Lo Chi Lik Peter, is a practicing solicitor in Hong
Kong. Although the Company Secretary is not a full time employee of the
Company, he reports to the Board and in his capacity as Company Secretary
advises the Board on governance matters. The primary contact person of the
Company with the Company Secretary was Mr. Wang Guohua, the ex-Chief
Financial Officer of the Company. During 2013, the Company Secretary has
confirmed that he has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training.

Shareholders’ Rights

Convening Extraordinary General Meeting (“EGM”) and Putting
Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Pursuant to Article 72 of the Articles of Association of the Company, the
Board may, whenever it thinks fit, convene an EGM. General meetings shall
also be convened on the written requisition of any two or more members of
the Company deposited at the registered office specifying the objects of the
meeting and signed by the requisitionists, provided that such requisitionists
hold as at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company which carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company.

If the Board does not within twenty-one days from the date of deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting, the requisitionists
themselves or any of them representing more than one-half of the total voting
rights of all of them, may convene the general meeting in the same manner,
as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may be convened by the
Board provided that any meeting so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of 3 months from the date of deposit of the requisition, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.
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Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election
as a Director

Article 120 of the Articles of Association of the Company provides that no
person, other than a retiring Director, shall, unless recommended by the
Board for election, be eligible for election to the office of Director at any
general meeting, unless notice in writing of the intention to propose that
person for election as a director and notice in writing by that person of his
willingness to be elected shall have been given to the Company provided that
the minimum length of the period, during which such notices are given, shall
be at least 7 days. The period for lodgment of such notices shall commence
no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the notice of the meeting
appointed for such election and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of
such meeting.

Accordingly, if a shareholder of the Company wishes to nominate a person to
stand for election as a Director at a general meeting, the following
documents must be validly served on the Company Secretary at the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong within the period
specified in Article 120 of the Articles of Association of the Company, namely
(1) his/her notice of intention to propose a resolution to elect a nominated
candidate as a Director at the general meeting which must include the name
of the nominating shareholder of the Company, his/her contact details and
the number of the Company’s ordinary shares held by the nominating
shareholder; (2) a notice signed by the nominated candidate of the
candidate’s willingness to be elected; (3) the nominated candidate’s
information as required to be disclosed under rule 13.51(2) of the Listing
Rules; and (4) the nominated candidate’s written consent to the publication of
his/her personal data.

The aforesaid procedures have been uploaded to the Company’s website.

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to the Board
Shareholders of the Company may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board by addressing them to the Investor Relations Manager
of the Company. The contact details are as follows:

Investor Relations Manager

China Resources Land Limited

46th Floor, China Resources Building
26 Harbour Road

Wanchai, Hong Kong

Email: crbgw@crc.com.hk

Tel No.: 852-2877 2330

Fax No.: 852-2877 9068
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Investor Relations
During 2013, there was no change in the Company’s constitutional
documents.

In 2013, the Company participated in road shows in Hong Kong, Singapore,
Europe and the United States organized by various investment banks,
covering issues on the results announcement and presented to the investors
operating results, development strategies and latest business updates of the
Company.

At the same time, the Company participated in 23 investment conferences
held in Hong Kong, Beijing, Shanghai, Singapore, Macau, Tokyo etc., and
frequently met on an one-on-one basis with fund managers and investors in
Hong Kong and overseas, as well as arranged on-site visits to the Company's
properties to actively create opportunities for communication with the
investors, so as to enable them to timely understand the latest business
development of the Company and the industry environment of the real estate
business of China to enhance their understanding and confidence to the
Company.

The following table sets out the major investor relations activities of the
Company performed in 2013:

Activities

BNP Paribas HK/China Property Corporate Day
Nomura China Property Corporate Day

Credit Suisse Asian Real Estate Conference
11th Annual DB Access China Conference 2013
UBS 13th Greater China Conference

=R DB EFEEE

March ERhY
*EEEBENATEERE
BB MIINEERE

Announcement of the 2012 annual results

* Press conference

* Briefing with analysts and fund managers
Post Results Roadshow in HK and Singapore

B8/ PEMER

DBS Vickers Pulse of Asia Conference —
HK China Property Day
UBS Hong Kong/China Property Conference 2013

mA ERBIENRIREESS —

April WERITNREEE/TEMEREESS
A FT-ETRARREESS

May ERIANENEREEES

BEERITNBFF4ETMNREESE

ErfzonEREERR

The 11th BOCI Investors Conference

Morgan Stanley Fourth Annual Hong Kong Investor Summit
4th Annual DB Access Asia Conference 2013

Barclays Capital Pan-Asia Real Estate Conference

A EREHFER/TEBER
June EERITEANEREE SR

CLSA HK/China Property Access Day
Citi Asia Pacific Property Conference
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Activities

+A EREMKPEMER BofAML Greater China Property Corporate Day
July

NA A 2013 FFEEE Announcement of the 2013 interim results
August BRGNS * Press conference

FEPRENLEERE
BE MR RRERERE

* Briefing with analysts and fund managers
Post Results Roadshow in HK, Singapore and USA

A ANBRREESE Daiwa Investment Conference in HK

September

+A Iz BlwmiE Credit Suisse China Forum

October

+—A BENBERRERCOLE GS Greater China CEO Summit 2013

November EHREMPERELZES BofAML China Conference
TEEBITN3EREKEESE Citi China Investor Conference 2013
ERIMBFIE 12 EEAREES Morgan Stanley 12th Annual Asia Pacific Summit
BREFRE/PRMER CLSA HK/China Property Access Day
i8R TE —EZ i E Mizuho 2nd Pan-Asia Property Day

+=A FiREEmE Nomura Investment Forum

December
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Looking ahead, we will continue to improve and perfect the communication
with investors and to provide them with more opportunities to understand the
business of the Company as well as to enable the management of the
Company to have a better understanding of the requirements of the market
on the Company, with an aim to continue to enhance the internal
management, profitability and governance of the Company.

Internal Controls

The Board has overall responsibility for and is highly concerned with the
Group's system of internal control and assessment and management of risks.
In meeting its responsibility, the Board seeks to increase risk awareness
across the Group’s business operations and has put in place policies and
procedures, including parameters of delegated authority, which provide a
framework for the identification and management of risks. It also reviews and
monitors the effectiveness of the systems of internal control to ensure that
the policies and procedures in place are adequate.

Internal Audit Department is responsible for assessing the Group's internal
control system, formulating an impartial opinion on the system, and reporting
its findings to the Audit Committee, the Chairman and the senior
management concerned as well as following up on all reports to ensure that
all issues have been satisfactorily resolved. In addition, a regular dialogue is
maintained with the Group’s external auditor so that both are aware of the
significant factors which may affect their respective scope of work. During
the year under review, the Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control system.
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Report of the Directors

The directors of the Company (the “Director”) have pleasure in submitting to
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) their report and audited
financial statements of the Company and the Group for the year ended 31
December 2013.

Principal Activities
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the activities
of its principal subsidiaries and associates are shown on page 160 to 165.

The segment information of the Group is set out in note 5 to the financial
statements.

Group Profit
The consolidated statement of comprehensive income set out on page 92
shows the Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2013.

Dividends

The Board recommends the declaration of a final dividend of HK36.4 cents
(2012: HK27.3 cents) per share, together with the interim dividend of HK7.3
cents per share, dividends per share for the year amount to HK43.7 cents. The
final dividend is payable on 3 July 2014 to the Shareholders whose names
appear on the Register of Members of the Company on 13 June 2014.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Movements in property, plant and equipment during the year are set out in
note 15 to the financial statements.

Properties
Schedule of the principal properties of the Group is set out on pages 174 to
187.

Share Capital
Movements in share capital during the year are set out in note 30 to the
financial statements.

Distributable Reserves at the Company

The Company’s reserves available for distribution represent the share
premium and retained profits. Under the Companies Law (Revised) Chapter 22
of the Cayman Islands, the share premium of the Company is available for
paying distributions or dividends to Shareholders subject to the provisions of
the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and provided
that immediately following the distribution or dividend, the Company is able
to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business. Reserves
of the Company available for distribution to Shareholders as at 31 December
2013 amounted to HK$28,131,111,000 (2012: HK$31,550,544,000).
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Directors
The Directors who held office during the year and at the date of this report
are:

Chairman
Mr. Wu Xiangdong
Mr. Wang Yin (resigned on 17 June 2013)

Managing Director
Mr. Tang Yong (appointed on 17 June 2013)

Vice-Chairman
Mr. Wang Hongkun (appointed on 17 June 2013)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Yan Biao

Mr. Du Wenmin

Mr. Ding Jiemin

Mr. Wei Bin

Mr. Huang Daoguo

Mr. Chen Ying

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wang Shi

Mr. Andrew Y. Yan

Mr. Ho Hin Ngai, Bosco

Mr. Wan Kam To, Peter

Mr. Ma Weihua (appointed on 5 July 2013)

Mr. Frederick Ma Si Hang (resigned on 5 July 2013)

After the date of this report, Mr. Wang Hongkun resigned as Executive
Director of the Company with effect from 22 April 2014.

According to the Article 99 of the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr.
Tang Yong and Mr. Ma Weihua shall hold office only until the annual general
meeting to be held at 6 June 2014 ("AGM") and shall be eligible and offer
themselves for re-election.

Pursuant to Article 116 of the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Wu
Xiangdong, Mr. Du Wenmin, Mr. Wang Shi, Mr. Ho Hin Ngai, Bosco and Mr.
Wan Kam To, Peter shall retire from office by rotation at the AGM and shall
be eligible and offer themselves for re-election.

The Company has received the annual confirmation of independence from all
the independent non-executive directors, and considers that all the
independent non-executive directors are independent of the Company.

“E-ZFEFR
68 Annual Report 2013



EEEY

k% Report of the Directors

EERSEEEASHE

RARZEZERREEEABBENENEIBEES
438 -

Bth MRt )
AR RN B B (18 - BEN%RS
BEHRAR AR WRENEREARZAE

Zit B ERRN —TE - F-A=T-HRREHAE
Lt ZEEERZE-—F A=t RER - E
SEARAERSEER KN R AFAEREE
ERRER AREHRTICSHHTES (JERERE
ZAT) MAKEZEFREE  BOTIFRTESHR
UMBEERZETE ASEZERERH  FXR
W&H@@ﬁZﬁﬁAéﬂﬁz(Y%L%§EZA
1) ARATHAHRTIERR  AREZHEAR
ARAZES  THREHRITIRBRRMBEA &Ex
KRMES -BEZ2EEVEZRHR (BRKTE
E THERIIBRRARTZEZHEA RN S
B)RERERETOLMRRAAMAFOLR - RS
EOTEERE LM RANBEARTNET

ARRRNZEERFRA-T=AETNREEF RS
I BRREBLRAZRTIAAENET LR Bt
A —H R 2B T H815313,138.369 IR 69 AR A AR

g -

RAFHRHEER - RE B AT HBETOAR KRG
5,697 500 5% 5 ARD B)E AR TR 2. 0.10% °

Fat BIMER AT R H R 2 BHRE - TAX
R XHBRI T SEARERERRY -

REZF R RO REENAARE 2 BEFT
FoBORERRLZ AR TERNREE TR
BAORRT 2 AENFZHRART

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the Company
are set out on pages 36 to 43.

Share Option Scheme

The Company operates share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the purpose
of promoting additional commitment and dedication to the objective of the
Company by the participants.

The Scheme was approved by the Shareholders at the extraordinary general
meeting held on 31 January 2002 and has expired on 31 January 2012. The
Board may grant options to eligible participants including employees,
executive or non-executive directors of the Group (or any proposed
candidates), any discretionary object of a discretionary trust established by
any employee, executive or non-executive director of the Group, any executive
or employee (or any proposed candidates) of consultants, professionals and
other advisors to the Group, chief executive, substantial Shareholders of the
Company, associated companies of the Group, associates of Directors, chief
executive and substantial Shareholders of the Company, and employees of
substantial Shareholders. The maximum entitlement of each participant
(including options to be granted to the Directors, chief executive or
substantial Shareholders or any of their respective associates) is equal to the
maximum limit permitted under the prevailing Listing Rules. The exercise
prices of the share options are determined pursuant to the provision of
prevailing Listing Rules.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 23 May 2006,
Shareholders approved the ordinary resolution to refresh the mandate limit of
the Scheme, whereby further options can be granted to subscribe up to
313,138,369 shares of the Company.

As at the date of this report, the number of shares available for issue under
the Scheme is 5,697,500 shares of the Company and represents 0.10% of the
issued share capital of the Company.

The offer of a grant of share options under the Scheme may be accepted
within 28 days from the date of the offer upon the payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee.

Share options granted under the Scheme are exercisable for a period of ten
years from the date of grant. Certain share options are fully vested or
exercisable within ten years from the date of grant while part of them are
vested within four years after the date of grant.
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Option

Exercise outstanding

Date of Grant rice at1/1/2013

Save as disclosed below, no other share options has been granted, exercised
or lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Scheme during the year in
relation to each of the Directors, chief executive of the Company, substantial
Shareholders or their respective associates and employees of substantial
Shareholders.

(a) Directors
As at 31 December 2013, none of the Directors had any interests in
respect of option to subscribe for shares under the Scheme.

(b) Employees and other participants
Details of share options granted to the employees (other than Directors)

of the Group and other participants by the Company are set out below:

(i) Employees (Other than directors)

ARARAER?
BT
BB Price of Company's share®
Number of share option”! [HKS)

WMIE
REEE  BMAEE REREE RAEE nAYE  BRERD  EOERG
R ot i QY <o g i

Granted Exercised Cancelled Expired Option
during during during during outstanding Option (Option
the year the year the year theyear  at31/12/2013 granted exercised

26/4/2004 1.04 862,500

29/4/2005 142 1,600,000

3/1/2006 3205 3615000

17/2/2006 3965 375,000

26/6/2006 358 1,360,000
Hifst

1 ROOHES AR ODFES R F R AR -

2 RERRGFEFREZ AR ARG ER  BE
R BT AHA— AR 5 AR OB B RF AT
K2 MEFHE -

= 525,000 = = 321,500 = 23

= 375,000 = = 1,225,000 = 210

- 1,430,000 - - 2,185,000 - 20

= = = = 375,000 = =

= = = = 1,350,000 = =
Notes:
1. Number of share options refers to the number of underlying shares in the Company

covered by the share options.

2. The price for the Company's share disclosed for the options exercised during the

year is the weighted average of the closing prices quoted on the Stock Exchange
immediately before the date of exercise of options.
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(i) Other participants

ARARRERY
AR
R BEzE" Price of Company's share®
Number of share option” (HKS)
ylkE3
REERE RAER WMREE RREE NANE BRERG  EORED
it i it v G VS EiL B
Granted Exercised Cancelled Expired Option
during during during during outstanding Option Option
the year the year the year theyear  at31/12/2013 granted exercised

1/6/2005 123 1,625,000

it

ROBEEEEROBES R 2 AL EERRDY

SRR FEFREZ AR ARG ER  BE
R BT AHA— AR 5 AR ORB AR
KBz MEFHE -

= 900,000

Notes:

= = 625,000 = 14

Number of share options refers to the number of underlying shares in the Company
covered by the share options.

The price for the Company’s share disclosed for the options exercised during the
year is the weighted average of the closing prices quoted on the Stock Exchange
immediately before the date of exercise of options.
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ek HE KR
long position/
Name short position

Directors interests in securities

As at 31 December 2013, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SF0"))
which have been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, including interests and short
positions which the Directors and chief executive of the Company are taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO, or which are required to
be recorded in the register maintained pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise required to be notified to Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code contained in the Listing Rules, were as follows:

(a) Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying shares of the

Company:
ki # A HERNEEY & RIGERA DL
Number of Approximate
Number of underlying percentage of
shares shares'”  Capacity interest?

RAR HE

Wu Xiangdong long position
E B HE

Tang Yong long position
I HE

Yan Biao long position
HXE HE

Du Wenmin long position
R E e

Chen Ying long position
Wi :

1) #EX [RGBl —FFt it B R R TS RA L
KB - ZERDBERBRIEL TN B EA
PTETA

2 EHEASIROEL ARG REEROCHR -F—=F
FZAZ - RIEARAERITR AR BALL -

1,629,000 - EEEAA 0.028
Beneficial owner
10,000 L 0.0002
Interest of spouse
1,992,000 - EBERFAA 0.034
Beneficial owner
640,000 - ERREBA 0.011
Beneficial owner
500,000 - BaRREEA 0.009
Beneficial owner
Notes:
(1) This refers to underlying shares of the Company covered by share options granted as detailed

above under the section headed “Share Option Scheme”, such options being unlisted
physically settled equity derivatives.

2) This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions in shares and underlying
shares of the Company to the total issued share capital of the Company as at 31 December
2013.
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RARRA] 7f BOAE — FHAEBERAREE (b)) Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying shares of China

BIX ) BBTERR BB HEFNER - Resources Enterprise, Limited (“CRE”), an associated corporation of the
Company:
18R g
ez HE /%R B &R -Gl BAL
Number of Approximate
long position/ underlying percentage of
Name short position Number of shares shares!! interest®?
A e 500,000 - 0.021
Yan Biao long position
HXR e 100,000 - 0.004
Du Wenmin long position
gt - Notes:
1) ERIEEHEIZ R R EIE LR gAY REHE (1) This refers to underlying shares of CRE, covered by share option granted under the Share
RIEBRG  ZEROARREBRIELTUEYKUBRE Option Scheme of CRE, such option being unlisted physically settled equity derivatives.
PiETA-
2 EIFEAT S REBEIZ RO RIGHROBER - F—=F 2) This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions in shares and underlying
FA=T—AEBEIFERTRABHBER L - shares of CRE to the total issued share capital of the CRE as at 31 December, 2013.

EA$ AAE AR — =B RERERAE(IZE  (c) Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying shares of China

BAR]) (ABEE Eﬂ?ﬁ(ﬁ RAG)EBEITLAR Resources Gas Group Limited (“CR Gas”, previously known as China
mﬁfﬁﬂxf B R - Resources Logic Limited), an associated corporation of the Company:
iEl gy 3o
4 HE /%R BRig B BiHE B BALY
Number of Approximate
long position/ underlying percentage of
Name short position Number of shares shares!" interest?
RMR HE 45,000 - 0.002
Wu Xiangdong long position
ITEE e 100,000 - 0.004
Wang Hongkun long position
HXE e 54,000 - 0.002
Du Wenmin long position

Mt Notes:

(1) BRI E BB G AR BIE B R 17 AR R E B (1) This refers to underlying shares of CR Gas covered by share option granted under the Share
FIBBRG  ZER G HERBRIELTUEYSUARE Option Scheme of CR Gas, such option being unlisted physically settled equity derivatives.
fT4TE-

2 FEATSREEEMARG RIEERGEHR-F—=F 2) This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions in shares and underlying
f_ﬁ, T—AEEERRE EITRABHNER L o shares of CR Gas to the total issued share capital of CR Gas as at 31 December, 2013
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(d)

Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying shares of China
Resources Power Holdings Company Limited (“CR Power”), an
associated corporation of the Company:

ElE ) iR

BRiHE B EEL E alidd

Number of Approximate

underlying percentage of

Number of shares shares' interest®?

E B e

Tang Yong long position

a R e

Yan Biao long position

HXE e

Du Wenmin long position
Wi -

1) ERFZEBENRGBREABERLR BRI RERE
NIBBRG - ZER G BEZERFLTUEYIUBRE
FT4TA-

2 EHR ISR ERENRG REBR O BHR - F—=F
FTZAZ - REEEENERTRIBEDEALL -

() MADRIEEEE — EEACRERER AR ([E
KR ERITE AR MAABER G P EE KE

)

m :

2

g HEIKR
long position/
Name short position

(e)

Notes:

(1)

2)

1,800 = 0.00004
570,080 = 0.012
480,240 = 0.010

This refers to underlying shares of CR Power covered by share options granted under the
Share Option Scheme of CR Power, such option being unlisted physically settled equity
derivatives.

This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions in shares and underlying
shares of CR Power to the total issued share capital of the CR Power as at 31 December
2013.

Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying shares of China
Resources Cement Holdings Limited (“CR Cement”), an associated
corporation of the Company:

HRER R R

RiHEE EEL B

Number of Approximate

underlying percentage of

Number of shares shares!" interest®?

R E HE
Chen Ying long position
et

1) EREE BRI BIE R LR (0 BB REEK
ERBRG  ZEROFERBRF LTUENMABEA
FTETA -

2 EHEATS RO EENERG RIEBROBER-F—=F
FTZAZ+—AGERKEE R TRABEDEALL -

Notes:

(1)

2)

230,000 = 0.004

This refers to underlying shares of CR Cement covered by share options granted under the
Share Option Scheme of CR Cement, such option being unlisted physically settled equity
derivatives.

This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions in shares and underlying
shares of CR Cement to the total issued share capital of the CR Cement as at 31 December,
2013.
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Strategic Incentive Award Scheme

As an incentive to retain and encourage the employees for the continual
operation and development of the Group, the Board of the Company resolved
to adopt an incentive scheme, which is presently named as Strategic
Incentive Award Scheme (the “Strategic Scheme”) on 30 May 2008 (the
“Adoption Date”). The Strategic Scheme was subsequently amended on 8
December 2009. Unless sooner terminated by the Board, the Strategic
Scheme shall be effective from the Adoption Date and shall continue in full
force and effect for a term of 10 years. According to the Strategic Scheme,
shares up to 2.5% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
Adoption Date will be purchased by the trustee from the market out of cash
contributed by the Group and be held in trust for the relevant selected
employees until such shares are vested with the relevant selected employees
in accordance with the provisions of the Strategic Scheme.

As of 31 December 2013, the Company had through the trustee purchased
52,782,000 shares, representing 1.3080% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the Adoption Date, from the market at an aggregate
consideration of HK$563,619,098.61 (including transaction costs). During the
year ended 31 December 2013, a total number of 9,087,230 shares were
vested. The sale proceeds of the vested shares have been and will be
transferred to the relevant Directors and employees in accordance with the
amended provisions of the Strategic Scheme.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities
Save as disclosed above under “Strategic Incentive Award Scheme”, neither
the Company nor its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company's listed securities during the year ended 31 December 2013.

Directors’ Service Contracts

As at 31 December 2013, none of the Directors has any service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not terminable by the
employing company within one year without payment of compensation other
than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No contracts of significance to which the Company or its subsidiaries were a
party and in which any Director had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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BERARGRGNRRE Shareholders with Notifiable Interests

HE-Z-=F+-A=+—8 UFAL(KLTE Asat31 December 2013, the following persons (not being a Director or chief

ERTRAERIN REARRINRG RBBERMTHEE  executive of the Company) had interests or short positions in the shares and

BE(BEERAEEIENDBEIREIDPHETEMR  underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the

ARABBER DN ER(ES LIS EM)E336/Ef  Company under the provision of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or

ERNECMOERIARNOT which were recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO:

2013

12431 BFTH

RiDET A BE

HARRBEST

BRR 2 30 ERitE HE /%R RH#A SR
Percentage of

the aggregate

long position

in shares to

the issued share

capital of

long position/ the Company

Name of Shareholders Capacity Nature of interest short position Number of shares asat 31/12/2013

i Note:

1) CRHL X % Commotra Company Limited 735 B # F 7 22 7]3,959,501,021 S 44 (1) CRHL directly held 3,959,501,021 shares of the Company, and Commotra Company Limited directly
R2.830,0008% + 2 B4 B ACRHLLX K Commotra Company Limited 2 0 — R & held 2,830,000 shares of the Company, CRH is the sole shareholder of CRHL and Commotra Company
T BE B2 Bluesky £12 BH1B 2] » Bluesky 2 ZBR 17892 ENB A Limited. Moreover, CRH is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Bluesky, which is in turn wholly-owned by
A MEBRGAZPAEENLEMB LR Bt EEEE CRC. CRC is wholly-owned by CRNC. Thus, CRH, Bluesky, CRC and CRNC are deemed to be interested
Bluesky + EBR (7 - # EIE B4R BB 1 713.962,331,021 RIR (94 in an aggregate of 3,962,331,021 shares in the Company.
%
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Save as aforesaid, as at 31 December 2013, no other person had any interest
or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provision of Division 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were recorded in the register kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO.

Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associate
Particulars regarding the significant subsidiaries, joint ventures and the
associate are set out on pages 160 to 165.

Financial Derivative Instruments

During the year 2008, the Company timely seized the opportunity of current
subdued interest rate level caused by the sub-prime mortgage crisis outbreak
in the United States, and has fixed the interest costs of a portion of its HK$
loans at relatively low levels by entering into interest rate swap transactions.
The swap transactions involved HK$3.0 hillion in total, of which HK$1.0
billion had a swap period of four years and the rest in a five year period. In
2012, there was HK$1.0 billion four-year swap transactions came to their
maturity and expired. During the year under review, the remaining HK$2.0
billion five-year swap transactions also came to their maturity and expired.
As at 31 December 2013, the Company did not have any financial derivative
instruments.

Specific Performance Obligations on Controlling
Shareholder

Certain loan agreements of the Group include a condition that imposes one or
more of the following specific performance obligations on the Company's
controlling Shareholder:

(i) CRH remains the single largest Shareholder of the Company which has
an aggregate beneficial ownership (directly or indirectly) of not less

than 51% or 35% (as the case may be);

(i) CRH maintains the direct or indirect ownership of at least 35% of the
shares of the Company;

(iii)  CRH remains the single largest Shareholder (whether directly or
indirectly through its subsidiaries) of the Company;

(iv)  CRH remains to be beneficially owned as to more than 50% by the
central Government of the PRC;

(v)  CRH retains the power to appoint the majority of the Board;
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(vi)  CRH retains the ability from a practical perspective to control the
appointment by the Company’s Shareholders of Directors to the Board;

(vii)  CRH retains the right to appoint, and terminate the appointment of, the
majority of the Directors constituting the Board;

(viii) CRH retains the power to direct the management and the policies of

the Company whether through the ownership of voting capital, by

contract or otherwise.

As at 31 December 2013, the aggregate balance of the loan agreements
subject to the above conditions were HK$37,378,425,000. Such loan
agreements will expire from 13 January 2014 to 19 August 2018.

Connected Transactions and Continuing Connected
Transactions

Intra-Group Lending Between Members of the China Resources
Group

On 22 November 2010, CRH, the holding company of the Company, China
Resources Group listed companies (including the Company) and unlisted
companies entered into the Hong Kong Dollar and United States Dollars
master loan agreement. At the same time, CRC, an intermediate holding
company of the Company, and China Resources Group listed companies
(including the Company) entered into the Renminbi master loan agreement in
order to give the Group greater flexibility in the management of its surplus
cash resources (collectively called “Master Loan Agreements”).
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ADAIR 2T —=F ZHrfE £IR A7 1,900,000,0007T ©
HE-Z-ZF+-A=+—BIFER  ADAEE
ERBHBETHEALZAREBETBZ R BREE
A AR 1,500,000000 7T (#7457 %1,891,738.432.26 7T ) ©
HMERIT KA

Borrower Lender

The Company’s lending cap for 2013 was HK$1,900,000,000. During the year
ended 31 December 2013, the Company’s maximum aggregate amount
outstanding lending to the related parties pursuant to the Master Loan
Agreement was RMB1,500,000,000 (equivalent to HK$1,891,738,432.26).
Details are set out as below:

R2013F

i 12831 BERE

KiE (B8 HR L b (B&T)
Balance at

Principal 31 December

Amount Interest rate 2013

Currency (million)  Duration per annum (million)

EFREM(LR)ERARAR EEEHREBRAF

China Resources Land (Shan Dong) ~ China Resources Land Investment

Development Limited Limited
EHRNBRAA EHENREERAFA
China Resources Co., Limited China Resources Land Investment
Limited

ERENW(LR)BRARAR EHENREEBRAF
China Resources Land (Shan Dong)  China Resources Land Investment

Development Limited Limited
ZHRMNBRAA EHENREERAF
China Resources Co., Limited China Resources Land Investment
Limited

EHENW(LR)BRARAR EHEUNREEBRAF
China Resources Land (Shan Dong)  China Resources Land Investment

Development Limited Limited
RIE-=F+_A+=R  ARAEEREEVH

“ERFETZAZTRIECAFERFIMERE
RBBRER  ARGET  ARBERETER(-F
—ZERIMEREFRGE]) - AR - ARAEFEEER
DA VEE T R"ET A=t HIL=EFENH
MRERNERETHERER  URBARBER(-F
—ZFRNERER R ) (5 [ T = FERER

&) o

ARE 500 13/12/2013- 5.040% 500
RMB 12/6/2014

ARE 1000 9/8/2013- 5.040% 1,000
RMB 8/2/2014

ARE 500 13/10/2013- 5.040% 0
RMB 12/12/2013

ARE 1000 1/4/2013- 4.964% 0
RMB 30/6/2013

ARE 500 15/4/2013- 5.040% 0
RMB 13/10/2013

On 13 December 2013, the Company and CRH entered into new offshore
framework loan agreement for three years ending 31 December 2016 and
guarantee for advances in Hong Kong Dollar, Renminbi and United States
Dollar (“Offshore Framework Loan Agreement 2013"). On the same date, the
Company and CRC also entered into new onshore framework loan agreement
for three years ending 31 December 2016 and guarantee for advances in
Renminbi (“Onshore Framework Loan Agreement 2013") (collectively called
“Framework Loan Agreements 2013").
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FEER-_F-ZFERERHREIRNEZFEER
IR REMLREASERS RFITERRERZR
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MASEREHLEMT :

HENANHIEENSEEER LR

Annual lending cap for the year ending 31 December

W14F 20154

2014 2015
ARERER ARERETL
RMB million RMB million

The proposed annual lending caps for the Group for the term of the
Framework Loan Agreements 2013 and a comparison of these caps with the
Group's gross cash and bank balances and with the size of the Group using
the highest of the applicable percentage ratios as defined under Rule 14.07
of the Listing Rules are as follows:

R13F6ANEH

REEGIRET S
RaRiTHS SEEREALE
Unaudited

consolidated cash

and bank balances Highest applicable

as at 30 June 2013 Percentage ratio
2016F
2016
ARBBEET ARERET
RMB million RMB Million

2,000 2,000

BRI ETARR - —2- S EERERBRRREERE
25

ERRENTERSFZ

RZE-FFE+—AZ+-R ETEBRRNHOMEL
Al e MAERTROERARCABHETERR
TRHERRR(TZRBETD)  ERFERETER
ARI([EBET)EARE  EHAE ZHEH £
B EERERERNETARAR(GEER
EELMARD I —OEBA RS ((BBAER
%)) BRAHE_T--F+-_A=-+-HIL=fA%F
Bt EheENERRTEREERER LT
EEEZHBRRRE—RBETRE (BEFIRE)
Lli|EREASEREREE TR RESZHBLR
RECHRE (BEEEERE  RERET EEEE-
HEEURE  AHEEFIRD)  REZZREBET
BREBRTREBCAZFNERNE  mMEHRT
BEZELHESNANGERERZBTENELER
BEBUGERORSH X B EBARER RS
FIREREPEARRITET - AEEGFHRERR
TNESAZSE(REEMNRESREZANFE) BA
ER#700,000,000 7T,

[+

2,000 16,971 213

Under the Listing Rules, the Framework Loan Agreements 2013 constituted
continuing connected transactions.

Strategic Cooperation Agreement between Members
of China Resources Group

On 22 November 2010, a strategic cooperation agreement (the “Strategic
Cooperation Agreement”) for a term of three years ending 31 December 2013
was entered into between certain subsidiaries of CRC, namely, Zhuhai
Commercial Bank Co., Ltd. (now known as Zhuhai China Resources Bank Co.,
Ltd., “CR Bank”), China Resources SZITIC Trust Co., Ltd. (“CR Trust”) and the
Company, CRE, CR Power, CR Cement, CR Gas and China Resources
Microelectronics Limited (collectively “China Resources Group listed
companies”), pursuant to which, among other things, (i) CR Bank shall provide
general banking services including deposit services to the China Resources
Group listed companies and their subsidiaries; and (i) CR Trust shall provide
trust services including cash management, investment trusts, asset
management structured finance underwriting of bonds and shares to the
China Resources Group listed companies and their subsidiaries. Provision of
these services will be charged at a rate no less favourable than that for
customers of CR Bank and CR Trust, and any deposit made with CR Bank
under these arrangements will bear the same interest and be on the same
terms and conditions as would apply to a similar deposit made by any other
customer of the bank, which rates are presently determined by the People’s
Bank of China. The maximum exposure in relation to the Group’s deposits
with CR Bank, inclusive of interest paid and anticipated to be paid was
RMB700 million.
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On 5 June 2013, the Company and CR Bank entered into the supplemental
agreement to the Strategic Cooperation Agreement (the “Supplemental
Agreement”). Under the Supplemental Agreement, the maximum aggregate
deposits permitted at any one time to be made by the Group has increased
from RMB700.0 million (equivalent to approximately HK$875.0 million) to
RMB2.20 billion (equivalent to approximately HK$2.75 billion), which will be
effective from the date of the Supplemental Agreement until 31 December
2014. The Company may further revise the aggregate deposit limit in the
future, subject to its business development needs and the services and
network capability offered by CR Bank. Save for the aforesaid revision made
under the Supplemental Agreement, the Strategic Cooperation Agreement
remains unchanged as between the Company and CR Bank.

As at 31 December 2013, the maximum daily aggregate amount of exposure
in relation to the Group’s deposits with CR Bank was RMB1,637,677,055.84,
and the aggregate interest income arising from such deposits was
RMB13,745,928.14.

CRC being the controlling shareholder of CRH, which in turn holds a
controlling interest in the Company, CRC and CRH are therefore connected
persons to the Company as defined under the Listing Rules. CRC, being a
controlling shareholder of the Company, holds approximately 75.33% and
51% of the registered capital of CR Bank and CR Trust respectively, CR Bank
and CR Trust are therefore connected persons of the Company; thus, the
above arrangement constitutes connection truncations of the Company.

Establishment of a Joint Venture, Provision of
Financial Assistance by Way of Guarantee, and
Options Arrangement

On 17 December 2013, China Resources Land (Shenyang) Co., Ltd. (“CRL
(Shenyang)”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, CR Trust, Liaoning
Fortune Investment Co., Ltd. (“Liaoning Fortune”), and an independent third
party, Shenyang Furuida Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (“Furuida”)
entered into the investment cooperation agreement (“Investment Cooperation
Agreement”) in relation to the establishment of a joint venture (“Joint
Venture”) to undertake the development of the land parcel in Shenyang which
has a planned site area of approximately 26,986.85 sq.m (the “Shenyang
Land”) and is designated for commercial and residential uses (the “Shenyang
Project”). The terms for the grant of the land use rights of the Shenyang Land
are expected to be 70 years for residential use and 40 years for commercial
use. The Shenyang Land is located in close proximity to the Shenyang MIXc
(ZEFZ 8 538 ), a large scale residential and commercial complex operated
by the Group. The Shenyang Land was acquired by Furuida at the
consideration of RMB491,829,943.88 (equivalent to approximately
HK$618,117,118.57) through the land auction organised by the Shenyang
Land Exchange Center on 30 August 2013.
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Pursuant to the Investment Cooperation Agreement, the registered capital of
Furuida was increased to RMB200 million and owned as to 36% by CRL
(Shenyang), 30% by CR Trust and 34% by Liaoning Fortune. Under the
Investment Cooperation Agreement, CR Trust will provide financing to Furuida
by way of shareholder’s loan or entrusted loan (the “Loan”) (being a sum of
RMB390 million) to Furuida to finance the payment of the consideration of
the Shenyang Land, the construction costs of the Shenyang Project and
repayment of loan due to its related parties. 51% of the outstanding principal
amount of the Loan (together with interest thereon) shall be secured by a
guarantee by CRL (Shenyang) in favour of CR Trust (the “CRL (Shenyang)
Guarantee”) in respect of 51% of the outstanding principal amount of the
Loan (equivalent to RMB198.9 million as of the Loan Drawdown Date) and
the interest thereon, and a guarantee by Liaoning Fortune in favour of CR
Trust (the “Liaoning Fortune Guarantee”) in respect of 49% of the outstanding
principal amount of the Loan (equivalent to RMB191.1 million as of the Loan
Drawdown Date) and the interest thereon.

Pursuant to the Investment Cooperation Agreement, on the date falling 12
months from the date the Loan is advanced to Furuida by CR Trust (the
“Assessment Date”), in the event that any of the performance targets as set
out in the Investment Cooperation Agreement (the “Performance Targets”) is
not met, CR Trust may on the Assessment Date exercise an option (the “First
Exit Option”) to demand Furuida to immediately repay in full the Loan,
together with interest, within six months from the Assessment Date, and
upon full repayment of the said sum, require each of CRL (Shenyang) and
Liaoning Fortune to purchase 15% equity interest in Furuida held by CR Trust
within 10 days after such repayment, the consideration of which shall be
determined by an agreed formula.

Pursuant to the Investment Cooperation Agreement, in the event that the
Performance Targets are met on the Assessment Date, CR Trust may on the
later of: (i) the date on which the sale of the saleable properties of the
Shenyang Project reaches 85%; and (ii) the date on which Furuida has repaid
in full to CR Trust the principal amount of the Loan with interest, exercise an
option (the “Second Exit Option”) to require each of CRL (Shenyang) and
Liaoning Fortune to purchase 15% equity interest in Furuida held by CR Trust,
the consideration of which shall be determined by an agreed formula.

Pursuant to the Investment Cooperation Agreement, each party to the Joint
Venture will grant to the other parties an option (the “Default Option”) to
exercisable upon material default of a party’s obligations under the
Investment Cooperation Agreement. Upon the exercise of the Default Option,
the party/parties not in default may at its discretion require the defaulting
party to acquire its/theirs interest(s) in the Joint Venture at a price equivalent
to 120% of such party/parties’ total investment (including capital injection
and shareholder’s loans) in the Joint Venture.
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CRH is the controlling Shareholder of the Company and a wholly-owned
subsidiary of CRC and CRC beneficially owns 51% of the registered capital of
CR Trust, thus CR Trust is a connected person of the Company within the
meaning of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, each of the Joint Venture, the CRL
(Shenyang) Guarantee, the grant of the First Exit Option, the grant of the
Second Exit Option and the grant of the Default Option to CR Trust constitutes
connected transactions of the Company.

Provision of Property Leasing and Concessionaire,
Construction Services, Decoration Services, and
Furniture Services

1.

Provision of Construction Services, Decoration Services,
and Furniture Services

On 20 September 2010, the Company entered into the provision of
construction services, decoration services and furniture services
framework agreement with CRH to govern the principal terms of the
provision of construction and decoration services and furniture
manufacturing and sale in the PRC by the Group to CRH and its
subsidiaries for the three financial years ended 31 December 2013.

On 13 December 2013, as the Group anticipates the above continuing
connected transactions will continue after 31st December, 2013, the
Company enters into new framework agreement entered into between
the Company and CRH in relation to the provision of construction,
decoration and furniture services by the Group to the CRH Group and
associates of CRH for the three years ending 31 December, 2016
(“Provision of Construction Services, Decoration Services and Furniture
Services Framework Agreement 2013")

Each contract of construction, decoration or furniture services will be
entered into on normal commercial terms and the prices will be either
at market prices or at prices no less favourable to the Group than those
available from independent third parties.

The annual caps are renewed taking into account of the business needs
of members of the CRH Group and associates of CRH and the expected
level of services to be provided by the Group under the Provision of
Construction Services, Decoration Services and Furniture Services
Framework Agreement 2013.
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BE-Z—A"G+-A=t—BI=H%FE = The proposed annual caps for the Provision of Construction Services,
T-ZFRERY - KERBRKERBHERE Decoration Services and Furniture Services Framework Agreement
RipEEAEE LRETIWT - 2013 for the three years ending 31 December 2016 are as follows:
HENANALFE
For the year ending 31 December

0146 015 2016F

2014 2015 2016

ABEBET BEBET AERETL

HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million

EE R The Construction Caps 1,024 1,536 1,920

ZEER The Decoration Caps 4045 383.8 302.1
BHAEER S =FRERY - RERBER It is expected that the aggregate annual amounts of furniture services
FERGHEERBZHEAN  AEREE XK the Group charged to members of the CRH Group and associates of
ERFIREREERE AN GERKBEE CRH during the term of the Provision of Construction Services,
BEEE RSB FmBEERAS L E 2 01% Decoration Services and Furniture Services Framework Agreement
miRE FmiEl ZELHEEERNSERE L 2013 will not exceed 0.1% of the applicable percentage ratios of the
5o Listing Rules, and these arrangements will constitute de minimis

transactions under the Listing Rules.

B EEER SN EERLENT The actual amount of the above continuing connected transactions in
2013 are shown as follow:

B 587
Unit: HK$
TESE WRFERRHEE
The actual
transaction
No. EEER Business Type amount in 2013
]
1 o3 Construction 12,936,827.93
2 & Decoration 238,964,693.06
3 HRIERS% Furniture 15,124,555.95
FZERHBRARANFERERS - Such transactions constitute connected transactions of the Company.
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Provision of Property Leasing and Concessionaire

On 20 September 2010, the Company entered into the leasing and
concessionaire framework agreement with CRH to govern the principal
terms of the leasing and concessionaire arrangements regarding its
property portfolio with members of the CRH Group (including associates
of CRH) from 20 September 2010 to 31 December 2012.

On 30 November 2012, the Company and CRH have further entered into
the leasing and concessionaire framework agreement to govern the
principal terms of the leasing and concessionaire arrangements for a
term of one year (i.e. from 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2013, both
days inclusive).

On 13 December 2013, as the Group also anticipates the above
continuing connected transactions will continue after 31st December,
2013, the Company entered into new framework agreement in relation
to the leasing and concessionaire arrangements between the Group
and the CRH Group and associates of CRH for the three years ended 31
December 2016 (“the Leasing and Concessionaire Framework
Agreement 2013").

Subject to further definitive written agreements, from 1 January 2014
to 31 December 2016 (both days inclusive), the Group will enter into
new leasing agreements or new concessionaire agreements with
members of the CRH Group and associates of CRH in the ordinary and
usual course of business on the following terms:

(a) each of the leasing or concessionaire arrangements to be
entered into by a member of the Group with a member of the
CRH Group or an associate of CRH will be documented in a
separate written agreement with a lease term of not exceeding
three years; and

(b)  each leasing or concessionaire arrangement will be entered into
on normal commercial terms with the rents, management fees
and other charges received by the Group from any members of
the CRH Group or associates of CRH being either at market
prices or at prices no less favourable to the Group than those
available from independent third parties.
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BE_Z-—-FHERTHRELRE HEZ-Z The proposed annual caps for the Leasing and Concessionaire
—/_\i‘%fﬂ_‘l' AE=RAFE s @RFE L Framework Agreement 2013 for the three years ending 31st December
REZINT : 2016 are as follows:
HZLANALFE
For the year ending 31 December

0146 015 2016F

2014 2015 2016

AERET BERET AERET

HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
N

MERTALR The Leasing and 239.3 283.5 300.7

Concessionaire Caps

TRERER SN _E——FFE LRRER The 2013 annual cap and the actual amount of the above continuing
SEOT connected transactions are shown as follow:

Bfy BB

Unit: HK$

WIFFE LR MIFERRHEE

The actual

The annual cap transaction

B3 Business Type in 2013 amount in 2013
N

HENTA LR The Leasing and Concessionaire Caps 280,000,000.00 226,209,357.23
FZERGTEXAD AN FERERS ° Such transactions also constitute continuing connected transactions of

the Company.

BELTRAFUAIEG  BUENTEZEHN Pursuant to Rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-
THEXHUHERLT executive Directors have reviewed the above transactions and

confirmed that:

1. ZERFERDAMBEES 1. these transactions were in the Company’s ordinary course of
business;
2 EHERHRBRB—REBGTET 2. these transactions were entered into on normal commercial
terms;
3 FERGRBEAEIINGTHIE 3. these transactions were carried out in accordance with
1 MXHERAFEE  WAFEAF respective agreement terms which were fair and reasonable, and
PR MR BRI o in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a
whole.
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The Company's auditor PricewaterhouseCoopers was engaged to report
on the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing
his findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group on pages 79 and 83-86 in
accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the
auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to Stock Exchange.

The related party transactions as disclosed in Note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements also fall under the definition of
connected transaction or continuing connected transactions within the
meaning of the Listing Rules, and the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

Model Code Regarding Securities Transactions by the
Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code as code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry with all
Directors, the Company confirmed that all Directors has complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code during the year under review.

Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report, there is
sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as
required under the Listing Rules.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year under review, the Group's five largest suppliers and
customers together accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s purchases
and sales respectively.

Charitable Donation
In 2013, the Group's charitable donation amounted to approximately
RMB20.24 million.

Five Year Financial Summary
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
past five financial years is set out on page 188.
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Pre-Emptive Rights
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's Articles
of Association and there are no restrictions against such rights under the
laws in the Cayman Island.

Audit Committee

As at the date of this report, the audit committee comprises Mr. Wan Kam
To, Peter (Committee Chairman), Mr. Ho Hin Ngai, Bosco, Mr. Andrew Y. Yan,
Mr. Ma Weihua, Mr. Wei Bin, Mr. Huang Daoguo and Mr. Chen Ying, all
members of the audit committee are either independent non-executive
Directors or non-executive Directors of the Company. The audit committee
has reviewed, together with the management and the Company’s auditors,
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed
auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters including the
financial statements for the year.

Auditors

According to the relevant regulations issued by the Ministry of Finance of the
PRC and the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission
of the State Council regarding the audit work on financial statements of
state-owned enterprises, there are restrictions in respect of the years of audit
services that an accounting firm continuously provide to a state-owned
enterprise. Since the number of years of the engagement of Messrs. Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu, the former auditor of the Company, exceeded the
prescribed time limit in early 2012, it retired as the auditor of the Company
with effect from 21 June 2012. Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers was then
appointed as the auditor of Company following the above-mentioned
retirement of the former auditor.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 5 June 2013, Messrs.
PricewaterhouseCoopers was re-appointed as the auditor of the Company
until the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company.
Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers will retire at the end of the AGM and is
eligible for reappointment.

By order of the Board

Chairman
Wu Xiangdong

Hong Kong, 21 March 2014
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Independent Auditor's Report

BEAAE

To the shareholders of China Resources Land Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Resources Land
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages
91 to 173, which comprise the consolidated and company statements of financial
position as at 31 December 2013, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

| EBREATAEL &2

B 55 +852 2289 8888 {HHE: +852 2810 9888

i 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

Tel: +852 2289 8888  Fax: +852 2810 9888

“E-ZFEFR
Annual Report 2013 89



BUBBEHEE Independent Auditor's Report

BRI RATRFAERBBZ S MG RRMESERNEER
HOEREE - MEEMREFIUANZ IO - 25T
AREFFRERMER G AN BRRFEEAERRLOA

B - EREZERRE  ZBHEEEZL T%%?Q%%ﬁ
FAEHEEMATFORKABNOABES  URAEENE

&igF - BEMILEHA TW%?%WE&E%% R B

NERVEESMRASTIRNS B LELSFHENA
Bt M&&F”A%%ﬁ%mgﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ°

HFRE  AARESHERERERRNERHARMNE
BRERRIRLERE -

=z

B

HRA %5 ?é%ﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁ%%%%ﬁiﬁwﬁfﬁ
APRREARNERER T =F+ A=+ Bt

BN - K& mlﬁi&HEEEMEﬂ&ﬁﬁﬁé'ﬁﬁﬁ
REB(DABRIDNEER TR AR -

BEAKERH AFBH
HEEHE

B8 —T-OF=A-1+—H

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2013, and of the
Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 21 March 2014
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Consolidated Income Statement

HET-A=T—HBItFE

Year ended 31 December

Hi5F Notes 2013 2012

BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
Was Revenue 4 71,388,745 44,363,629
SHERK A Cost of sales (51,281,745) (27,667,217)
E Gross profit 20,107,000 16,696,412
BEMEZ DFEES S Gain on changes in fair value of investment
properties 7,168,218 4,000,974
TESBTIAZATEZS MR Gain on changes in fair value of derivative
financial instruments 33,195 27,381
HipA Other income 6 732,535 736,436
EERTIREREY Selling and marketing expenses (2,106,409) (1,901,711)
—BEIBE General and administrative expenses (1,820,157) (1,809,059)
EERaEtER—HEE AT Share of profit of investments in joint ventures
REZFIE and an associate 309,601 414183
BER Finance costs 9 (145,760) (669,582)
BRA BB A Profit before taxation 24,278,223 17,495,034
FraRmY Income tax expenses 10 (9,091,008) (6,298,044)
F R 7 Profit for the year 11 15,187,215 11,196,990
AT ATEEFERERT Profit for the year attributable to:
KARHEA A Owners of the Company 14,696,006 10,568,598
IR R Non-controlling interests 491,209 628,392
15,187,215 11,196,990
ERaM Eamings per share 13
R 25211 181,91
29N Basic HK252.1 cents HK181.9 cents
R 251814l 181,61
BE Diluted HK251.8 cents HK181.6 cents

E A EEE AR EWA =Tl o sk 1 6= e The notes on pages 100 to 173 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.
SIARER RN 2 BIARARHAR ARSF RN 12 Details of dividends payable to owners of the Company attributable to the profit for
the year are set out in note 12.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

HET-A=T—HBItFE

Year ended 31 December

BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FREF Profit for the year 15,187,215 11,196,990
Hth 2 Ea Other comprehensive income
(R AEREZIS2MIEH) (Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss)
HERZFIERMESL Y Exchange differences arising on translation to
[EH =% presentation currency 3,723,670 177,683
BeRYmz ATEZ K= Gains on changes in fair value of cash flow hedges - 8,306
3,723,670 185,989
FREANERE Total comprehensive income for the year 18,910,885 11,382,979
NTALEGEZEREEE Total comprehensive income attributable to:
KRARIERA Owners of the Company 17,829,845 10,730,461
s Non-controlling interests 1,081,040 652,518
18,910,885 11,382,979

HREI0EZS1REZ T AN EEAMKRE ZAKSSH - The notes on pages 100 to 173 are an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

—E—_F
T-A=+-A
Bi#3E Notes | 31 December 2013 | 31 December 2012
BT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FRBEE Non-current assets
ME - BE R Property, plant and equipment 15 5,881,581 4,971,467
T EFE Land use rights 16 1,833,901 1,552,677
REME Investment properties 17 59,611,449 44,356,899
REECER—HMBE R A 2R Investments in joint ventures and an associate 18 2,921,039 2,353,056
AHHERE Available-for-sale investments 19 178,529 177,506
ERBEE BN TUE Prepayments for non-current assets 20 2,464,553 300,231
EILFEHERE Deferred income taxation assets 21 387,150 431,385
73,278,202 54,143,221
MEEE Current assets
HHE 2 ME Properties for sale 22 150,010,531 136,789,703
HitzE Other inventories 447,627 287,044
EMERTR - HAbREMERIR - Trade receivables, other receivables,

BERERE prepayments and deposits 23 22,695,073 13,033,330
BUWEFEAHIRERE Amounts due from customers for contract works 24 210,461 240,878
LA GEL NG Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries 25 709,600 94,139
JEM R AR A B FRIE Amounts due from intermediate holding

companies 25 1,310,017 50
A S ERIE Amounts due from joint ventures 25 1,241,592 611,806
eI — BB N R ZUIE Amounts due from an associate 25 806,142 -
TEUE R R 25 2R Amounts due from non-controlling interests 25 146,114 -
BRTRIE Prepaid taxation 2,280,776 1,102,375
AfHERE Available-for-sale investments 19 381,567 -
R RBTER Cash and bank balances 26 28,238,904 21,952,957
208,478,404 174,112,282

mEEE Current liabilities
ERBRZ R E A ERIB Trade and other payables 27 32,556,534 23,910,202
TEEMEBWBR Advances received from pre-sales of properties 70,571,822 51,631,394
}?EHEF'M{]H 2 2H Amounts due to customers for contract works 24 141,015 194,023
NSRRI A RFE Amounts due to the ultimate holding company 117 =
FERT AR R AR A R 0B Amounts due to intermediate holding companies 167 2,688,738
ERRZHBARZIE Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries 28 188,124 4,731,509
ERNAECETE Amounts due to joint ventures 28 569,458 62,713
TR IR R 25 2R Amounts due to non-controlling interests 28 3,135,175 3,665,999
ERFE Taxation payable 8,341,291 6,746,386
RITEE ——FRT|H Bank borrowings — due within one year 29 16,256,126 5,283,044
TEERIA Derivative financial instruments - 33,195
131,759,829 98,947,203
REBEFE Net current assets 76,718,575 75,165,079
BEBERTDER Total assets less current liabilities 149,996,777 129,308,300
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ZABEMRE Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

—E-——F
+=A=+-AH
B3 Notes | 31 December 2013 | 31 December 2012
BETT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
Gy Equity

PR A Share capital 30 583,063 582,740
=4 Reserves 84,219,125 68,525,919
AREEE AERBRA Equity attributable to owners of the Company 84,802,188 69,108,659
IR Non-controlling interests 8,784,531 7,391,125
93,586,719 76,499,784

FRBEE Non-current liabilities
BITEE — —FEIH Bank borrowings — due after one year 29 40,889,848 39,884,631
BEER Senior notes 32 7,755,279 7,735,149
ELEREHEE Deferred income taxation liabilities 21 7,764,931 5,188,736
56,410,058 52,808,516
BReERIERSaRE Total of equity and non-current liabilities 149,996,777 129,308,300

FI0EZF 1B E ZMFANFLRENBRR ZERDS The notes on pages 100 to 173 are an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.

GNENEEFIBECEARBREEN -Z-NE=F The consalidated financial statements on pages 91 to 173 were approved by the Board

“t-HEEFERATRRESR - on 21 March 2014 and were signed on its behalf.
RER Wu Xiangdong

EZE Director

E B Tang Yong

EZE Director
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Statement of Financial Position

“E——F
+-A=+-H
31 December 2012
BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FRBEE Non-current assets
RIEB AR Z# Interests in subsidiaries 14 27,562,195 27,562,195
Mm% - BifE K& Property, plant and equipment 8,782 10,736
27,570,977 27,572,931
MEEE Current assets
AU 3t RAETE (N R0B Prepayments for acquisition of land use right 1,742,000 =
Hb e BRIE R FE 308 Other receivables and prepayments 96,346 92,766
W RZMB AR ZUA Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries 25 152 -
[ B 2 AlFUE Amounts due from subsidiaries 25 50,266,159 52,109,544
R — A R 2 B 30E Amounts due from an intermediate holding
company 25 26 =
HE RBTERE Cash and bank balances 1,499,780 451,208
53,604,463 52,653,518
RBBE Current liabilities
HiERIRE Other payables 659,961 630,655
[ERSH B AFE Amounts due to subsidiaries 28 7,819,729 3,339,626
ENEE NG Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries 28 - 4,582,181
FE —FE R AR 2 B 3RE Amounts due to an intermediate holding company - 2,454,277
BITEE — —FREIH Bank borrowings — due within one year 29 7,595,122 1,530,000
TEERIA Derivative financial instruments - 33,195
16,074,812 12,569,934
RBEEFE Net current assets 37,529,651 40,083,584
BEBEERTHAR Total assets less current liabilities 65,100,628 67,656,515
e Equity
AR Share capital 30 583,063 582,740
f&iE Reserves 31 28,138,983 31,675,197
28,722,046 32,257,937
FRBEFE Non-current liabilities
BITEE——F%EH Bank borrowings — due after one year 29 28,623,303 27,663,429
BERE Senior notes 32 7,755,279 7,735,149
36,378,582 35,398,578
BReEkIEREEE Total of equity and non-current liabilities 65,100,628 67,656,515
FI0EZF 1B E 2T AN FLRERBIRR ZERDD The notes on pages 100 to 173 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.

GNENEEFIBECEARBRREN -Z—NFE=F  The consolidated financial statements on pages 91 to 173 were approved by the Board

“t-RHEFERAETRRESR - on 21 March 2014 and were signed on its behalf.
RER Wu Xiangdong

EZE Director

E B Tang Yong

EZE Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

RARER AR
Attributable to owners of the Company
FEiE R
BA  ROOEE  ERRE  HtREE  ®EEA Non-
Share Share ~ Translation Other Retained @z controlling o

caiital iremium 1eserve 1ESErves irofits Total intrests Total

BT A%Tr A%t A%Tr BT B¥%Tr BT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
WZE——%—F—H  AtlJanuary2012 582647 35,516,742 8968115  (4748923) 20377844 60696425 6,360,736 67,057,161
BERESEH Exchange differences arising
FEECERER on translation to
presentation currency = = 153,557 = = 153,557 24126 177,683
RemEhe Gain on changes in fair value
ATERNE of cash flow hedges - = = 8306 - 8306 - 8306
ERET Profit for the year - - = - 10568598 10568598 628392 11,196,990
ERZENGER Total comprehensive income
for the year = = 153,567 8306 10568598 10,730,461 52518 11382979
HE-RMEAR Disposal of a subsidiary - - (7,865 - - (7,865 - (7,865
iR E Capital contribution from
non-controlling interests - - = - = - 172,083 172,083
HE-BEHBATE Partial disposal of a subsidiary
iR = = = 85,359 = 86,359 434771 520,136
EE—FHNBARZ Acquisition of additional
& interest in a subsidiary - - - 32,900 - 32900 ([6549)  (2369)
WEER LR 2 Consideration paid for
MBAA acquisition of subsidiaries
ENRE under common control - - - [2117,000] - [2117,000) - (217,000)
WSR2 Capitalisation of amounts
MEARMESER due to a fellow subsidiary
HER-HRAZ arising from acquisition of
MEBARTEL subsidiaries under common
A control - - - 648936 - 648936 - 64893
RBEFER Appropriation of retained profits - = - 156,289 (456,269) = - -
e R Release of shares held for
i ARA Strategic Incentive Award
Scheme = = = 339112 = 339712 = 339,12
ZE-FhHERE Interim dividend for 2012 - - - - 362.877) (362.877) - 362,877)
—E——ERERE Final dividend for 2011 = = - - (967,194) (967.194) _ (967.194)
BIRYh G Release of hedging reserve - - - 271778 - 7,778 - 7,778
TEEFERERSE Additional final dividend for
rior year - - - - (136) (136) - (136)
BSEERERR S Dividend paid to non-controlling
interests = = = = = = (172,440) (172,440)
TR Exercise of share options 3 299 = (862) - 2160 - 2160
RZFE-—F+=A At 31 December 2012
=1-H 582740 35519671 9113807  (5,267505) 29159946 69,108,659 7391125 76499784
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HZERAEHX Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

RARER AR
Attributable to owners of the Company
FiEkER
B BB ERRE  HtEE  REET Non-
Share Share  Translation Other Retained @z controlling @zt

caiital iremium 1eSerVe 1BSEIVES iroﬁts Total interests Total

BETT  ARTR AT B%Tn  B%Tx A%t BT %I
HK§ 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HK§ 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HK§ 000 HK§'000

WZE—=%—F—8  AtlJanuary2013 582740 3551967 9,113,807 (5267505) 29,159,946 69,108,659 7391125 76,499,784
BERESEH Exchange differences arising on
FEEZERZR translation to presentation
currency - - 3,133,839 - - 3133839 589,831 3,123,610
FREF Profit for the year - - - - 146%,006 14,696,006 491,209 15187215
FREEYREE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - 3133839 - 1469006  17,829.845 1081040 18910885
iR E Capital contribution from
non-controlling interests - - - - - - 496,489 496,489
RBEFER Appropriation of retained profits - - - 651,083 (651,053) - - -
EENBARZ Acquisition of additional
i 3 interest in subsidiaries - - - (12,852) - (12,852) (184123) (196,975)
B SR 2 Release of shares held for
i E RN Strategic Incentive Award
Scheme - - - (113,987) - (113,987) - (113,987)
“T-cEdfRe Interimdividend for 2013 - - - - (iME (4258 - |a5u5)
SE-CEREBRE  Final diidend for 2012 - - - - (159089 (1590829 - (15%0829)
fTiRiERE Exercise of share options n 9275 - (2800) - 6,79 - 6,798
WZ—=F+-R At 31 December 2013
== 583063 35528946 12,247,646 (4746091) 41188624 84,802,188 8,784,531 93,586,719

FI0EZF 1B E ZMFANFLRERBIRK ZERLS The notes on pages 100 to 173 are an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HET-A=T—HBItFE

Year ended 31 December

Hi5F Notes 2013 2012

BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
EBEMASRS T Net cash generated from operating activities: 34 24,263,807 20,810,220
BERFER Income tax paid (6,063,672) (4,416,111)
18,200,135 16,394,109
REEBHARES TR Net cash used in investing activities:
ME  BERERENT Payment for property, plant and equipment (1,172,851) (1,094,117)
HEME « BiE KR Proceeds from disposal of property, plant
i C and equipment 7913 136,225
iimﬁ%*fgﬁ,ﬁ Payment for land use rights (88,573) (378,141)
REMENT Payment for investment properties (5,771,966) (3,817,094)
HEREMEMGHE Proceeds from disposal of investment properties 169,606 171,327
YE-—RaE L% Acquisition of a joint venture (228,940 (683,450)
WEER L ERE Acquisition of available-for-sale investments (376,905) -
YEEERBEEL B NRE Deposits paid for acquisition of non-current
assets (2,455,151) -
ReB AT —HRAZKBAR Cash advance to a fellow subsidiary (1,888,287 =
—RRRMBARER Repayment from a fellow subsidiary 1,252,342 =
BEB2AT AR EERAR Cash advance to an intermediate
holding company (2,523,374) -
—RPEER AR Repayment from an intermediate
holding company 1,238,697 -
ReBAT—HEELE Cash advance to a joint venture (218,122) (221,742)
BRLEEN Repayment from joint ventures - 206,229
ReBRT—2IEERER Cash advance to a non-controlling interest (146,114) =
SUNE it i 1] —W/NG] Payment of cash advance to an associate (806,142) -
HE—RMBARMEHE Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary - 130,165
BYHIS Interest received 355,365 211,289
HEfREERRERETHE Cash flows of other investing activities, net (13,130) 32,068
(12,665,632) (5,307,241)
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ZEHLHE% Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HET-A=T—HBItFE

Year ended 31 December

BT BRI
HK$'000 HK$'000
BMEEBME/ (A REFE Net cash generated from/(used in) financing
activities:
BITEESHA Proceeds from bank borrowings 24,871,641 26,857,206
EERITEE Repayments of bank borrowings (13,391,527) (35,832,253)
BB ER Finance costs paid (1,978,151) (2,603,890)
RZMBARIZE BN Cash advance from fellow subsidiaries 3,243,394 2,595,174
EBERZNMBARZZE Repayment to fellow subsidiaries (7,815,568) (140,000)
RREERARZBERT Cash advance from intermediate
holding companies 8,730,000 3,674,321
BEPEERAR 2B Repayment to intermediate
holding companies (11,404,154) (1,067,690)
LEMEZESET Cash advance from joint ventures 504,781 62,713
FERER  BEEN Cash advances from non-controlling interests 618,409 2,285,056
EE IR 2 8 Repayment to non-controlling interests (1,149,233) (275,943)
IR E Capital contribution from non-controlling
interests 496,489 172,083
ENARAREE ARE Dividends paid to owners of the Company (2,016,275) (1,330,207)
BT IR R R Dividends paid to non-controlling interests - (172,440)
R —HNB AR 2 s Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary (50,298) (563,228)
HE—ENEARBAERFEZE  Proceeds on partial disposal of a subsidiary - 520,136
HEfpEERRERETH Cash flows of other financial activities, net 6,915 2,160
666,423 (5,816,802)
RERBSEEEMFE Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 6,200,926 5,270,066
HVESIE R S E) R & Effect of change of foreign exchange rates 165,397 102,432
FNzHeRELEE Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of
the year 21,164,215 15,791,717
FR7VESRBELEE Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 27,530,538 21,164,215
FI0EEF 1B EZMFANSEENBRR ZERLD The notes on pages 100 to 173 are an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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General information

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Hong Kong Stock Exchange”). The intermediate holding company as at 31
December 2013 is China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited (“CRH"). The
ultimate holding company of the Company is China Resources National
Corporation (“CRNC"), a company incorporated in the Chinese Mainland. The
address of the registered office and principal place of business of the Company
is disclosed in the corporate information of the annual report. The principal
activities of the Group are development and sales of developed properties,
property investments and management, hotel operations and the provision of
construction, decoration and other property development related services in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
("HK$"), unless otherwise stated. The Company is a public company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with its shares listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange where most of its investors are located in Hong Kong and
therefore, the directors consider that HK$ is preferable in presenting the
operating result and financial position of the Group. The majority of the
Company's subsidiaries are operating in the Chinese Mainland with Renminbi
(“RMB") as their functional currency.

The consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by the
Board on 21 March 2014.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRS"). In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of certain financial instruments and investment properties,
which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
accounting policies of the Group. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
Note 3.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)
2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(a)

The Group has adopted HKAS 1 (Revised) “Presentation of
Financial Statements” in 2009 and presented one performance
statement “consolidated statement of comprehensive income”
since then. In 2013, the Group has changed the presentation into
two statements “consolidated income statement” and
“consolidated statement of comprehensive income”, comparative
information has been re-presented. This change only impacts
presentation aspects, there is no impact on earnings per share.

Effect of adopting new standards and amendments to standards
The following new standards and amendments to standards have
been adopted by the Group for the first time for the financial year
beginning 1 January 2013. The adoption of these new and
amended standards and interpretation does not have any
significant impact to the results or financial position of the
Group, except for certain disclosures in respect of amendments
to HKFRS 1 and HKFRS 13.
HKFRS 1 (Amendment) ~ First Time Adoption on Government
Loans
Financial Statements Presentation
regarding Other Comprehensive
Income

HKAS 1 (Amendment)

ERUBREEN  BERFMREER
E15 (BaTA)
AEeHENE 1S AREM2ENEYN
(B3T%) FBRRAZS
ERUBREEN  AHEREER
15 (BATA) SBAR
ERUBREEN  GANEEER
F105
RAUHREREE  EERH
EN%
ERUBREEN  RENE4EEZ
F1% &
BAURRLES  AVENE
F135
AESENENE  ESEF
(Z2—F)
BESIENENE  BUVERR
(Z53—F)
BAGHENENS RBEAARAZAA
(Z8—F) LA
ERUBREES  RAMEHR  £F
F0% 280K THREERL
BEENENRR  EEER:
EREBRSEN  @EEd
F0H(BIX)
BRUBGLEN  —EEAEE
(B3T%) “Z——FEHZ
FREME

HKFRS 7 (Amendment)  Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

HKFRS 12 Disclosures of Interest in Other Entities

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HKAS 19 (2011)
HKAS 27 (2011)

HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11

Employee Benefits
Separate Financial Statements
Investments in Associates and

Joint Ventures
Consolidated Financial Statements,

and HKFRS 12 Joint Arrangements and Disclosure
(Amendment) of Interests in Other Entities:
Transition Guidance
HKFRSs (Amendment) ~ Annual Improvements 2009—2011

Cycle
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2 IEEHBREME#E) 2  Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)
20 EHBRESBRKE(Z) 2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continued)
(e) BB flEE AL FTATER] - BFER (c)  New standard, interpretation and amendments to standards that
ERAIEET have been issued but are not effective
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The following new standard, interpretation and amendments to
standards have been issued but are not effective for the financial
year beginning 1 January 2013 and have not been early adopted

by the Group:

BAEENZR  AEEMHE: HKAS 19 (Amendment)  Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
(B3TE) BRI Contributions'

BESHEAENT HREBRZAH HKAS 32 (Amendment)  Consolidation for Investment Entities’
(B3TE)

ERCHENERR FEREEZIRK HKAS 36 (Amendment)  Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
(B3TE) SERE Non-Financial Assets'

ERGHENENR (IAETERNES HKAS 39 (Amendment)  Novation of Derivatives'

(B3TE)

BAMBHREEN  SRIA? HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?
F95

AREBHREEN  —T-3E% HKFRSs (Amendment)  Annual Improvements 2010-2012
(B3TE) “TCEEER Cycle and 20112013 Cycle!

&%
“E-CEEHY
EENE!

BAMBHREER  AAHEREEN HKFRS 7 and 9 Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9
FIRRE FIR2EHEN (Amendment) and Transition Disclosures?
(BFTE) AHRBFEHE’

BEURREES REEE HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 Investment Entities'

0% BB and HKAS 27 (2011)
ERBIZNHR (Amendment)

o GEEnE
(-2—#)
(637%)
CLEEE
REERS)-
RBEVE

B!

! R-F-NEF—A- Bz KRRz FE

MR

: RZZR-HF— A BRZERBZFE

RS -

HK(IFRIC)-Int 21

Levies'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015.

LAATER - RRRERERT RN
SRR ARG - MAKEZ EFMAR
MREHATRE  RRREREITHA
REHHENZE -

The above new standard, interpretation and amendments to
standards will be adopted in the years listed and the Group is in
the process of assessing the impact on future accounting periods.
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)
2.3 Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up to 31 December 2013.

(a)

(c)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities over which the group has control. The
group controls entities when the group is exposed to, or has
rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entities
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the entities. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances, income and expenses on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Profits
and losses resulting from inter-company transactions that are
recognised in assets are also eliminated. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without change of
control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in
loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions — that
is, as transactions with the owners in their capacity as owners.
The difference between fair value of any consideration paid and
the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of
the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals
to non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

Investments in subsidiaries

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend received
and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

24

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination is
measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of
the acquiree. Acquisition related costs are generally recognised in profit
or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

o deferred income taxation assets or liabilities and liabilities or
assets related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes and
HKAS 19 Employee Benefits, respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the
acquisition date (see the accounting policy below); and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in
accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that
standard.

If, after re-assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held interest in the acquire (if any), the excess is recognised immediately
in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in
the event of liquidation may be initially measured either at fair value or
at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

25

26

Merger accounting for business combination involving
entities under common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statement items of the combining entities or businesses in which the
common control combination occurs as if they had been combined from
the date when the combining entities or businesses first came under the
control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses are consolidated
using the existing book values from the controlling party’s perspective.
No amount is recognised in respect of goodwill or excess of acquirer's
interest in the net fair value of acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities over cost at the time of common control combination, to the
extent of the continuation of the controlling party’s interest.

The consolidated income statement and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income includes the results of each of the combining
entities or businesses from the earliest date presented or since the date
when the combining entities or businesses first came under the common
control, where this is a shorter period, regardless of the date of the
common control combination.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial statements are
presented as if the entities or businesses had been combined at the end
of the previous reporting period or when they first came under common
control, whichever is shorter.

Business combination related costs are generally recognised in profit or
loss as incurred.

Associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence
but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding of between 20%
and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted
for using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is
increased or decreased to recognise the investor's share of the profit or
loss of the investee after the date of acquisition. The Group's investment
in associates includes goodwill identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to
profit or loss where appropriate.
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

26

2.1

Associate (continued)

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in the
consolidated income statement, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in other comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying
amount of the investment. When the Group's share of losses in an
associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any
other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any
objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If
this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the
difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its
carrying value and recognises the amount in the consolidated income
statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream transactions
between the Group and its associate are recognised in the Group's
financial statements only to the extent of unrelated investor's interests
in the associates. Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates are recognised
in the consolidated income statement.

Joint arrangements
The Group has assessed the nature of its joint arrangements and
determined them to be joint ventures. Joint ventures are accounted for
using the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint ventures are
initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group's share of the post-acquisition profits or losses and movements in
other comprehensive income. When the Group's share of losses in a
joint venture equals or exceeds its interests in the joint ventures (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the joint ventures), the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the joint ventures.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.1

2.8

29

Joint arrangements (continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its joint
ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the joint
ventures. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.

Segment information

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The
chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the executive directors of the Company.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold and
services provided in the normal course of business.

Revenue from sale of properties held for sale in the ordinary course of
business is recognised when all the following conditions are satisfied:

° the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the properties, which is when the
construction of relevant properties has been completed, upon
delivery, and collectability of related receivables is reasonably
assured;

° the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to
the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective
control over the properties are sold;

o the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

o it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction
can be measured reliably.

Deposits and installments received from purchasers prior to meeting the
above criteria for revenue recognition are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position under current liabilities.
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2 ZEHHEBE(Z) 2  Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)
29 WARER(E) 2.9 Revenue recognition (continued)

REBEERHELE  HERMRRE AR Revenue from room rental, food and beverage sales and other ancillary

HFRERS 2 W AR R BRI R o services in the hotel are recognised when the relevant services have
been rendered.

BEREERE 2 WENREIRESEER Revenue from construction and decoration service is recognised in the

TR ER H TR R EAAR X accounting period in which the services are rendered, by reference to

BER D ZTEEEBTRE 2 BB R G completion of the specific transaction assessed on the basis of the

Rtz BR% 2Ll actual service provided as a proportion of the total services to be
provided.

%&1’ Eu”uﬁ‘]”ﬁl)\( BEGHRREMEE)RER Revenue from sale of goods (including furnitures and other inventories)

REEREFEEWER  MiAMEEKRZK are recognised when goods are delivered to the customer, the customer

IEIZW&IE’IEE%EEPME% ° has accepted the products and collectability of the related receivables is
reasonably assured.

MEEBIA KRG AR RIS 12 Property management income and service income are recognised when
services are rendered.

TREEZFBMARBEEE  2EHKE Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by

BASKERERMNRAE mMERERFIX reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate

ERSERS G R E ERA T FHERT applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future

B ARAUBA EZEEREFEZF cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that

o asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

210 W% BERRE 2.10 Property, plant and equipment

NE - BERRELEREANEERRHEE Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in the

mERE S ETRBEROEF (T XMtz & production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes

BYERIN) - BRARER REHITE LAES (other than construction in progress as described below) are stated in

B(0A) N B BARR R ARSI o the consolidated statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

WE - BEKREEE (ERIRRIN DHER Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of

BRI ERED - WSHE AR property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress less

BEMKANERE  FB0T - their estimates residual values, over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method, as follows:

EEMERET 20405 Hotel properties and buildings 20-40 years

MEMEEE - RIREE ¥ Leasehold improvements, furniture and equipment 5 years

HE Y3 Maotor vehicles 5 years

G rERAES  FREERFTE SR The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are

|§§¢Hﬂ3{§$ VIR TBER R BT (st reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any

&7 BT changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)
2.10 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

211

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing cost capitalised in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

When buildings are in the course of development for production or for
administrative purposes, the amortisation of land use rights provided
during the construction period is included as part of costs of buildings
under construction. Buildings under construction are carried at cost, less
any identified impairment losses. Depreciation of buildings commences
when they are available for use (i.e., when they are in the location and
condition necessary for them to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management).

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation (including properties under construction for such
purposes).

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair values, representing
open market value determined at each reporting date by external
valuers. Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if
necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the
specific asset. If the information is not available, the group uses
alternative valuation methods such as recent prices on less active
markets or discounted cash flow projections. Gains or losses arising
from changes in the fair value of investment properties are included in
profit or loss for the period in which they arise.
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2 IEEHBRBMEE 2  Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)
L RENEE) 2.11 Investment properties (continued)
ERRENEEEZRRAAE R CBEER Construction costs incurred for investment properties under construction
EME 2 BHIREE are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of the investment
properties under construction.
BREMER L ERFOKARAERBRHLE An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
TeEERREEMSH R IEHER » KRIFHER investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
BEMEENANAB(RLENERRTE economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
BAEFEAEZEEE)REERILER Y arising on derecognition of the assets (calculated as the difference
FEFAER - between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in profit or loss in the year in which the item is
derecognised.
WEREBRE S —H 2 SEHERR - K Properties for sales are transferred to investment properties when it is
HEZMEERZREANE - BENENES evidenced by the commencement of an operating lease to another party.
EHZATERANGFRAEROERNZER Any difference between the fair value of the property at the date of
BaRER - transfer and its previous carrying amount shall be recognised in profit or
loss.

212 AR EEZRERE 2.12 Impairment losses on tangible assets
AEEANSREBR BRI BV EEZERE - At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
EEZEEVEERTHREMBERERD amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any
Ko MEEMZEDRFE  BRTEENK indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
Fl&EAEERBEEBERERE (NE) - Whae such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated
FE—EENTKESE  NASEe G in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it
BEMBREEEEM AIREESHE - N is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
BN —BAREENERT BEEEN asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
SHHEIERMRECELSN BRI H generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and
DEEIA & B MR — B 5 B A2 i P A & consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are
NORSEEBRF o also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are

allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.
AKEeBEARTEEMEERALEAER Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
2BeE  HMLEREER G AKBER value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
ENEATARENREEMRE - ZER are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
R RIS Y E LB RE 2 THEA KRG reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
ARBEREACHARZEENEERR o risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows
have not been adjusted.
WEE(FREEEEN) 2 AR E S B E If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
RAREE  BIBE(XREELSMN) 2EE estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
BERMAETRESE  BEBEIRRNEE the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
Ao amount. An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.
110 “T-CEEFR
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.12

213

Impairment losses on tangible assets (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash generating unit) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.

Construction contracts

Where the outcome of a construction contract (including decoration
contract) can be estimated reliably, revenue and costs are recognised by
reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity at the end
of reporting period, as measured by the proportion that contract costs
incurred for work performed to date relative to the estimated total
contract costs. Variations in contract work, claims and incentive
payments are included to the extent that the amount can be measured
reliably and its receipt is considered probable.

Where the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated
reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the extent of contract costs
incurred that it is probable will be recoverable. Contract costs are
recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract
revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is shown as
amounts due from customers for contract work. For contracts where
progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to date plus recognised
profits less recognised losses, the surplus is shown as amounts due to
customers for contract work. Amounts received before the related work
is performed are recognised as advances received in the consolidated
statement of financial position. Amounts billed for work performed but
not yet paid by the customer are included in the consolidated statement
of financial position recognised as trade receivables.
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.14

2.15

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the profit or loss
on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits received and
receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are
recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a
straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an operating
lease separately based on the assessment as to whether substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements are
operating leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including
any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and
building elements in a proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element of the
lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating lease is
presented as “land use rights” in the consolidated statement of financial
position and is released over the lease term on a straight-line basis
except for those that are classified and accounted for as investment
properties under the fair value model. When the lease payments cannot
be allocated reliably between the land and building elements, the entire
lease is generally classified as a finance lease and accounted for as
property, plant and equipment.
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.16

2.17

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are translated to the respective functional
currency (i.e., the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and
on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in
profit or loss for the period except for exchange differences arising on
the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and
losses are recognised directly in other comprehensive income, in which
cases, the exchange differences are also recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s entities are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and their income
and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for the year,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the year, in which
case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
translation reserve or attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate.

Cash and cash equivalent

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or
less.
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.18

2.19

2.20

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

Government grant

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis
over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses that the
related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or
losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they become receivable.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred income taxation.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated income
statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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EETBRBE(E 2

220 HIE(E)

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)
2.20 Taxation (continued)
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Deferred income tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred income tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
income tax assets are generally recognised for deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred income tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse
in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred income tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle
the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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2 FEESTBRBEE) 2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)
220 HIE(E) 2.20 Taxation (continued)
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Current and deferred income tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
when it relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
income tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively. When current tax and deferred income
tax arises from the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax
effect is included in the accounting for the business combination.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either
the taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Properties for sale

Properties for sale includes properties under development and properties
held for sale which are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

The carrying value of properties for sale comprises the costs of land use
rights together with development expenditure, which includes
construction costs and borrowing costs capitalised.

Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for the
properties less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to
make the sale.

The Group transfers a property for sale to investment property when
there is a change of intention to hold the property to earn rentals or/and
for capital appreciation rather than for sale in the ordinary course of
business, which is evidenced by the commencement of an operating
lease to another party. Any difference between the fair value of the
property at the date of transfer and its previous carrying amount is
recognised in profit or loss.

Other inventories

Other inventories include raw materials and consumables, which are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is calculated
using the weighted average method.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)
2.23 Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

2.23.1 Financial assets
The Group’s financial assets as at 31 December 2013 or incurred
during the year are classified into loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial assets. The classification depends on
the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined
at the time of initial recognition.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)
2.23 Financial instruments (continued)

2.23.1 Financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either so designated or not classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), loans and receivables or
held-to-maturity investments.

Available-for-sale financial assets are initially recognised at fair
value plus transaction costs and subsequently carried at fair
value.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its
cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)
2.23 Financial instruments (continued)

2.23.1 Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial reorganisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group's past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit period,
observable changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the financial asset's original effective
interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in
subsequent periods.
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)
2.23 Financial instruments (continued)

2.23.1 Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables and other receivables, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable
or other receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and
the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment losses was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to
the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

2.23.2 Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liahilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)
2.23 Financial instruments (continued)

2.23.2 Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as
a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the
recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedge
relationship.

2.23.3 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts in the scope of HKAS39 Financial
Instrument: Recognition and Measurement are accounted for as
financial liabilities. A financial guarantee contract is recognised
initially at its fair value plus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial guarantee
contract. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures
the financial guarantee contracts at the higher of the present
value of the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle
the present obligation and the amount initially recognised less
cumulative amortisation.
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2 SITIRBE(E) 2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

223 SRIAE) 2.23 Financial instruments (continued)
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2.23.4 Derecognition
The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Share-based payment transactions

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair
value of share options and awarded shares granted at the grant date is
expensed as staff costs on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
with a corresponding increase in employee share-based compensation
reserve.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of options and the awarded shares that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates
during the vesting period, if any, is recognized in profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to employee share-based compensation
reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised in
employee share-based compensation reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in employee share-based compensation reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.

Retirement benefit contributions

Payment to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are charged
as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions.
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2

3

Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

2.25 Retirement benefit contributions (continued)
The Group participates in a mandatory provident fund scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) for its employees in Hong Kong. MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution scheme in accordance with the principle of Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance. Under the rules of MPF Scheme, the
employer and its employees are required to contribute 5% of the
employees’ salaries, up to a maximum of HK$1,250 per employee per
month. The assets of MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
group companies in an independently administered fund.

The employees of the Group in the Chinese Mainland are members of
state managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the respective
local government in the Chinese Mainland. The Group is required to
contribute a specified percentage of payroll costs to the schemes to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to these
schemes is to make the specified contributions.

Critical accounting estimates and judgement

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.
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3

Critical accounting estimates and judgement
(continued)

3.1

3.2

3.3

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties, including those completed investment properties
and investment properties under construction, are carried in the
consolidated statement of financial position at their fair value, details of
which are disclosed in note 17. The fair value of the investment
properties was determined by reference to valuations conducted on
these properties by independent firms of property valuers using property
valuation techniques which involve certain assumptions of prevailing
market conditions. Favourable or unfavourable changes to these
assumptions may result in changes in the fair value of the Group's
investment properties included in the consolidated statement of
financial position and corresponding adjustments to the changes in fair
value reported in the consolidated income statement.

Income taxes and deferred income taxation

The Group is subject to corporate income taxes in the PRC. Significant
judgment is required in determining the provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such difference will impact the
income tax and deferred income tax provision in the year in which such
determination is made. Deferred income tax assets relating to certain
temporary differences and tax losses are recognised when management
considers to be probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
The outcome of their actual utilisation may be different.

Land appreciation taxes

The Group is subject to land appreciation taxes in the PRC (“LAT").
However, the implementation and settlement of LAT varies among
various tax jurisdictions in cities of the PRC, and the Group has not
finalised its LAT calculation and payments with most of local tax
authorities in the PRC. Accordingly, significant judgment is required in
determining the amount of LAT. The Group recognised the LAT based on
management’s best estimates according to the understanding of the tax
rules. The final tax outcome could be different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, and these differences will impact the taxation
and tax provisions in the years in which such taxes have been finalised
with local tax authorities.
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Revenue
An analysis of the Group's revenue for the year is as follows:

4 W& 4
AEBRAFEE Z WS DMMT :

HETZA=T—BILEFE

Year ended 31 December

BT AT

HK$'000 HK$'000

HEBERME Sale of developed properties 64,817,627 38,521,782
LN Rental income 3,293,866 2,466,122
WS EERIRT Property management and related services 1,335,717 1,045,864
G R Hotel operations 661,641 574,214
BE - ZERBRAM Construction, decoration services and others 1,279,894 1,755,647
71,388,745 44,363,629

2RER
AAATHTEE ARBIERERRE) 2ROE
HETNHEDHENE  NERARER B
¥ R% BERBREMENR KARAIERE
BiFERE -

PREEERNBZERAMRRZENKEL 2B
B HYE ) RBFEEHERETERERRET
RSB BERRERIWARES  fImRED
ERTESRMTANTEEY  BHTHAA B
REELEN—HBERRREZNBARMBER
PRBERXEARERIRRRAFEMAIRE
ERREERNTA o

5

Segment information

Information reported to the executive directors of the Company, who are the
chief operating decision makers ("CODM") of the Group, was specifically
focused on the segments of sale of developed properties, property investments
and management, hotel operations and construction, decoration services and
others for the purpose of resource allocation and performance assessment.

Segment result represents the profit earned or loss incurred before taxation by
each segment without allocation of income or expenses which are not recurring
in nature or unrelated to the CODM's assessment of the Group's operating
performance, e.g. changes in fair value of investment properties and derivative
financial instruments, central administration costs, share of profit of
investments in joint ventures and an associate and finance costs. Segment
revenues and results are the measure reported to the CODM for the purposes
of resource allocation and performance assessment.
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5 PEENE) 5  Segment information (continued)
5.1 ’\*Eqﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ 5.1 Segment revenues and results
AEERNERRELHBEA D 2 ME R EE The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results by
AW reportable and operating segments.

BE_Z-—=F+-_A=1t—HALEE Year ended 31 December 2013

MERE BE - R
HEE RER FRis I Ept
BREYX Property Construction,
Sale of  investments EERZ  decoration
developed and Hotel services e
properties management operations and others  Consolidated
BT BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Ugs Revenue
IhEB MR External sales 64,817,627 4,629,583 661,641 1,279,894 71,388,745
£ Result
GECES Segment results 14,682,339 2,016,245 (93,379) 1,965 16,607,170
RAOEEMRA Unallocated other income 732,535
REME 2 N THE Gain on changes in fair value of
2Ea investment properties 7,168,218
TEEMIAZATE Gain on changes in fair value of
2Ea derivative financial instruments 33,195
AOES Unallocated expenses (426,736)
EitRaEtER—H Share of profit of investments in
HRARZRENE joint ventures and an associate 309,601
B ER Finance costs (145,760)
B AT A Profit before taxation 24,278,223
126 —T-=FEFR
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5 2EEN(E)

51 DHEWERES(E)
BE_Z-——F+-_A=t+—HItFE

Segment information (continued)
5.1 Segment revenues and results (continued)
Year ended 31 December 2012

e
bl

24

SR
RABAMMA
BANE AT
e
FESBTALATE
e
RAOBEY
BERARREY
BETE

B

BB

Revenue
External sales

Result
Segment results

Unallocated other income

Gain on changes in fair value of
investment properties

Gain on changes in fair value of
derivative financial instruments

Unallocated expenses

Share of profit of investments in
joint ventures

Finance costs

Profit before taxation

MERE BE - R
HEE RER FRis I Ept
BREYX Property Construction,
Sale of  investments EERZ  decoration
developed and Hotel services e
properties management operations and others  Consolidated
BT BETT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
38,521,782 3,511,986 574,214 1,755,647 44,363,629
12,096,391 1,443,666 (3,836) (14,405) 13,521,816
736,436
4,000,974
27,381
(536,174)
414,183
(669,582)
17,495,034
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5 DEERE)
52 Hta@EER
BE-E-=Et-A=1t—HIEE

Segment information (continued)
5.2 Other segment information
Year ended 31 December 2013

MERE BE - R

HEE RER FRis I Ept

BREYX Property Construction,

Sale of  investments EERZ  decoration
developed and Hotel services Bt
properties management operations and others Total

BARY Capital expenditures
e Depreciation
HOR kS E 2 3 Write-down of properties for sale

BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

698,055 6,167,863 489,546 77122 7,432,586
103,825 115,502 111,258 37,897 368,482
1,204,898 - - - 1,204,898

BE—Z-——F+-A=1t—HLEE

Year ended 31 December 2012

MERE BE - R

HEE RER FR7s I Ept

BREY% Property Construction,

Sale of  investments EEAZ  decoration
developed and Hotel services Bt
properties management operations and others Total

BARY Capital expenditures
nE Depreciation
HOR kS E 2 3 Write-down of properties for sale

BETT BETT BETT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

586,196 7,806,108 1,025,927 68,833 9,487,064
118,132 75,205 100,946 37,659 331,942
52,969 = = = 52,969

53 HBRAEERBNG YGRS FERDE
EZEBRENER  Boh AEEEBI%
RERBEE(RTREMEHEEAEERY
72,891,052,0007C( =T — =4 : 5%£53711,836,000
70)) IR B - Bk W 2 5 iR El D 2

04 HARLEE-FPEREEREI0%UL - &
FEEYEIBREP(CF-—F %)

5.3 No geographical segment analysis is shown as more than 90% of the
Group's revenue are derived from activities in, and from customers
located in the Chinese Mainland and more than 90% of the carrying
values of the Group’s non-current assets excluding deferred income tax
assets amounting to HK$72,891,052,000 (2012: HK$53,711,836,000) are
situated in the PRC.

5.4  The Group does not have major customers as no single customer
contributes more than 10% of the Group's revenue (2012: none).
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6 HiA 6 Otherincome

HETZA=T—BILEFE

Year ended 31 December

BT BEFT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEMA Interest income 380,655 211,289
HEREMEESE 2 Wa Gain arising on disposal of investment properties 114,258 130,763
DR Government grants 44,067 103,991
Hith Others 193,555 290,393
732,535 736,436
1 EEMe 7 Directors’ emoluments
ERSEMNFI6E(ZE——F 158 EE2HEm The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 16 (2012: 15) directors were as
T follows:
BE—Z-=F+-fA=1t—-RI5E Year ended 31 December 2013
ik Hibfe
Fees QOther emoluments
RIRAEH
By #e2R STEIfER
FHTES HiEF Contribution
BIEF  FUTES Independent Salaries o retirement
Executive ~ Non-executive  non-executive and other benefit kS
directors directors directors benefits schemes Total

e
BEFT  BETT  BETT  BETR  BETR  BETR

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEN(Hfita) Wang Yin (Note &) 80 - - 3066 71 3217
RER Wu Xiangdong 8 - - 6514 144 6,73
BE(Kitb) Tang Yong (Note b) 80 - - 5,461 m 5685
TEBE (Ko Re)  Wang Hongkun (Note band e) 80 - - 5,349 144 5,573
T2R Ding Jiemin . 80 - _ _ 80
=EH Huang Daoguo - 80 - _ _ %0
(3 Chen Ying - 80 _ _ _ %0
Rzl Wang Shi - - 160 - - 160
ER Ho Hin Ngai Bosco - - 160 - - 160
b9 Andrew Y Yan - - 160 - - 160
FiRH Wan Kam To Peter - - 160 - - 160
SR (Hiztc) Frederick Ma Si Hang (Note c) - - 160 - _ 160
BEE (Hizta) Ma Weihua (Note d) - - 160 _ _ 1680
@t Total 320 240 960 20,390 503 22413
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1 ExMe# 7 Directors’ emoluments (continued)
BE-Z——&#+-R=+—RAItEE Year ended 31 December 2012
e Hiv&
Fees QOther emoluments
RRER
B Hek BESA
FRTES H AR Contribution
WOIEE  FHOES Independent Salaries to retirement
Executive  Non-executive  non-executive and other benefit BE
directors directors directors benefits schemes Total

|
BETT  %Fn  RETn  B%Tn BETn B%Tx

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FE) Wang Yin 80 = = 11,728 136 11,944
RAE Wu Xiangdong 80 - - 10,242 136 10,458
1 B Yan Biao - 80 - - - 80
HXR Du Wenmin - 80 - - - 80
TER Ding Jiemin - 80 - - - 80
it WeiBin = 80 - - - 80
BEH Shi Shanbo - 40 - - - 40
SRl Zhang Haipeng - 40 - - - )|
HEH Huang Daoguo - 40 - - = )|
BE Chen Ying - 40 - - = 40
IR Wang Shi - - 160 - - 160
Rk Andrew Y Yan - - 160 - - 160
EER Ho Hin Ngai Bosco = - 160 _ _ 160
FE Wan Kam To Peter - - 160 - - 160
Ek= Frederick Ma Si Hang - - 160 - - 160
e Total 160 480 800 21970 272 23,682

st - Notes:

a) E—E—ZENA+EARK - (a) Resigned on 17 June 2013.

(b E-F—=F FA+tHEZK- (b)  Appointed on 17 June 2013.

e E_F—=F+ARARE- (c) Resigned on 5 July 2013.

d) E-T—=F+ARAEZT- (d)  Appointed on 5 July 2013.

fe) E=F—WENA=+=AEHE - (e) Resigned on 22 April 2014.

BE-_Z-=F+_A=t-HIFER HES= During the year ended 31 December 2013, none of the directors have waived

MEEEME  TEEFRMAIERMARRR M the directors’ emoluments and none of the directors have received any

WHEmES (T ——F &) o inducement pay for joining or upon joining the Company (2012: none).
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8 [EEM= 8 Employee’s emoluments
AEBREESFMALBRE=4(CE——F : M%) 0f the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, three (2012:
ARAEE EMSHN EXHET - EBmA(ZF two) were directors of the Company whose emoluments are included in the
——F =) ALZMEWT : disclosures in note 7 above. The emoluments of the remaining two (2012

three) individuals were as follows:

HETZA=T—BILEFE

Year ended 31 December

BT BEFT
HK$'000 HK$'000
HeREMET Salaries and other benefits 9,278 28,206
RIRBHFIBIE R Contributions to retirement benefit schemes 288 345
9,566 28,551

WA (ZE—=F : %) AL ZHMEN T TSR : The emoluments of these two (2012: three) individuals were within the

following bands:

HET-A=T—BItFE

Year ended 31 December

BETT BETT

HK$'000 HK$'000

754,500,001 7T 2 7 # 5,000,000 7T HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 2 -
756,500,001 TTA & Over HK$6,500,001 - 3
2 3
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9 HKEHR 9  Finance costs

BE+-_A=t—HBILEE
Year ended 31 December

BB BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI HEEEER ZRITERR Interest and bank charges on bank borrowings and
BAERZFIS RETHE senior notes wholly repayable:
—hER — Within five years (2,250,662) (2,392,975)
—hFR — Over five years (38,726) (196,619)
W ERRERYE  EEREMER Less: amount capitalised in properties under
TEIRRRERZGE development, investment properties under
construction and construction in progress 1,803,068 1,942,142
(486,320) (647,452)
TE 5 s/ (B518) Exchange gain/(loss) 340,560 (22,130)
(145,760) (669,582)
10 FIBHHEX 10 Income tax expenses

BE+-_A=t—HIEE
Year ended 31 December

BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
AEEHE : Current income tax:

BBHEH Hong Kong profits tax (1,057) (790)

B EREH R PRC corporate income tax and withholding
MG income tax (3,945,383) (3,188,110)
(3,946,440) (3,188,900)
TiIEER LAT (2,690,020) (2,090,654)
EIEFT5H Deferred income tax (2,454,548) (1,018,490)
(9,091,008) (6,298,044)
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10

Fri&

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

B (&

BBEAEH
BE-ZE-—=£+-A=1t—HItEE &R
ERFEHBRA165%( —F— 5 : 165%) °

PEIRRAEH
BE-T-SHt-A=t-BLEE %%
BEFARGZHBAARREN(Z2—=
& 25%) Z MR P ELERSH -

FEBMAEHR
RPBERINARAEBIMEESRE-F
TNF—A—RRRRZ TR ERI0%
MR RG AR ERHMAEH - AP AMERF
REAEMA L XL EL N SR EEEBL
MRBEOZRENERERRAME 7
TRFA 5% MR BB X

TR ER

TR AR A DR B AR T EBOA KRB
BT - THEERCREER L R
REEERE BAETUIMRER -

BN

ARARHERERENEHSERENED
AEEMAL AR EERAR - Al EH
SAMRAEHBAEH - ARANRABRLE
BRI MBELRNREXBRLHSAREE
ARERRAL - B - EREABRERL
HBMEH -

10

Income tax expenses (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Hong Kong profits tax
The applicable Hong Kong profits tax rate is 16.5% for the year ended
31 December 2013 (2012: 16.5%).

PRC corporate income tax

The Group's subsidiaries in the Chinese Mainland are subject to PRC
corporate income tax at the rate of 25% for the year ended 31 December
2013 (2012: 25%).

PRC withholding income tax

PRC withholding income tax of 10% shall be levied on the dividends
declared by the companies established in the PRC to their foreign
investors out of their profits earned after 1 January 2008. A lower 5%
withholding tax rate may be applied when the immediate holding
companies of the PRC subsidiaries are incorporated or operated in Hong
Kong and fulfil the requirements to the tax treaty arrangements between
the PRC and Hong Kong.

LAT

The provision for LAT is estimated according to the requirements set
forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations. LAT has been
provided at ranges of progressive rates of the appreciation value, with
certain allowable deductions.

Overseas income tax

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law, Cap 22 of
Cayman Islands and accordingly, is exempted from Cayman Islands
income tax. The Company's subsidiaries in the British Virgin Islands
were incorporated under the International Business Companies Act of
the British Virgin Islands and, accordingly, is exempted from British
Virgin Islands income tax.
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10 FEHEX(E) 10 Income tax expenses (continued)
()  FRAMEHBEIRRAKERTRBHATET (f)  The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit
ZHEMT before taxation per the consolidated income statement as follows:

HETZA=T—BILEFE

Year ended 31 December

BT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRAE AR A Profit before taxation 24,278,223 17,495,034
W EIERAERER —fHEE A Less: share of profit of investments in joint ventures
REZFHE and an associate (309,601) (414,183)
23,968,622 17,080,851
R R 5% (ZT——F : 25%) 182 Tax charge at effective rate of 25% (2012: 25%)

BIERZ (5,992,155) (4,270,213)
=N EE e % Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries (57,992) (53,684)
AEMBAS 2 BT & Effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose (97,131) (118,928)
BARHBAZ BT E Effect of income not taxable for tax purpose 48,801 23,766
AEATEEBREREE L Effect of tax losses and temporary differences

M2 not recognised (261,930) (27,331)
BRBET AR EER Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised 1,753 22,495
BB TSR B Write-down of deferred income taxation assets (208,198) -
HERBERERTEFEL Recognition of deferred income taxation asset on

EXFHEEE tax losses previously not recognised 43,626 20,353
THEET 2 B2 Tax effect of LAT 664,585 522,664
Hith Others 1,593 (9,719)

(5,857,048) (3,890,597)
TS ER LAT (2,690,020) (2,090,654)
HETEIHAEH PRC withholding income tax (543,940 (316,793
AEEMEHEY Income tax expense for the year (9,091,008) (6,298,044)
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N FREA 11 Profit for the year

HETZA=T—BILEFE

Year ended 31 December

BT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FRmFEMG/GEA) THISE : Profit for the year has been arrived at after
charging/(crediting) the following items:
EINA(BEESHE) Staff costs, including directors’ emoluments 2,175,001 1,316,397
RIRAERB A Retirement benefit cost 139,103 187,250
RN Total staff costs 2,314,104 1,503,647
BRRHAX ZHHEZ Cost of properties for sale and other inventories
MEREMEERA recognised as expenses 48,139,258 22,409,386
ZEME & Auditor's remuneration 3,359 1,559
MEENEE A Operating lease payments 67,496 52,577
FEUERS R A EWERE Impairment losses reversed on trade and
BELZREEE other receivables (26,757 (86,987)
B E 2 % Write-down of properties for sale 1,204,898 52,969
mE - BEREETE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 368,482 331,942
+ 3 {35 PR A 5 Amortisation of land use rights 9,357 7,614
12 KRE 12 Dividends

HET-A=T—BItFE

Year ended 31 December

BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000

REIRE - BIREEARBE T3 Interim dividend, HK7.3 cents (2012: HK6.3 cents)
(ZF2——F : B%630) per ordinary share 425,446 362,877

BRAERE - GRS 36410 Final dividend, proposed, of HK36.4 cents
(ZZ——F B8 21.300) (f172) (2012: HK27.3 cents) per ordinary share (Note) 2,122,349 1,590,829
2,547,795 1,953,706
Hit: R-F-MF=HA-1—RB{72EFC0# EFEH Note: At a meeting held by the Board on 21 March 2014, the Board proposed a final dividend of

FRNEE—F—=F T A=1—AULFEHERRARY
REGREERER64M - Bt #)EH2122490007C © B
FREUAREFR L ERETRBIEENRE - EH
R-F—HEF-A=1— I FRRBER -

HK36.4 cents per ordinary share of the Company, totalling approximately HK$2,122,349,000
for the year ended 31 December 2013. This proposed dividend is not reflected as a dividend
payable in these consolidated financial statements, but will be reflected as an appropriation
for the year ending 31 December 2014.

BE-F— G+ A=+ HIERHFHREFRER
RAEB 27311 - o498 %15908290007C  EXR=F—=%
NARAZARAAERREAFAGHER  WREARST o

A final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2012 of HK27.3 cents per ordinary share,
totalling approximately HK$1,590,829,000 has been approved in the Company's Annual
General Meeting on 5 June 2013 and paid during the year.
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13 BREF 13 Earnings per share
ARRHER AEEEREAREERAZ AT EIE The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to the
i owners of the Company is based on the following data:

HETZA=T—BILEFE

Year ended 31 December

BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
B Earning
BIETEEREARESRF 2 BF Earnings for the purposes of basic and diluted
(ADAER NEGEREH) earnings per share (profit for the year
attributable to owners of the Company) 14,696,006 10,568,598

HETZA=T—BILEFE

Year ended 31 December

BB EE Number of shares
BIERTEERERRA 2 Weighted average number of ordinary shares
MEFHLERBREE for the purpose of basic earnings per share 5,828,915,050 5,810,018,346
BRE EERELARNYE Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares
on share options 6,929,891 8,606,650
BIEREBREERA 2 Weighted average number of ordinary shares for
MEF LB E the purpose of diluted earnings per share 5,835,844,941 5,818,624,996
14 RBATZER —ADF 14 Interests in subsidiaries — the Company
—E—=fF —E-—CF
+-A=1+-A +-A=+-H
31 December 2013 | 31 December 2012
BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
RE RKAE Investments, at costs:

—JEEmRA — Unlisted shares 27,562,195 27,562,195
HIEA B R ERRATE  AIEARENATE - Investments in subsidiaries are recorded at cost, which is the fair value of the
ARRETENBARN-ZE—=F+_-fA=+—8Z consideration paid. Particulars of the Company's significant subsidiaries as at
BRI - 31 December 2013 are set out in Note 39.
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15 Y% BERRE

BA

R=ZZ——%—HF—AH

BEAR

NE

HE

R-ZE——F+=A
==

BEAR

NE
ERENENE
EEte
S bk
HE
R-Z—=%+_FH
==E
R E
R=ZE—=%—HF—H
BERAR
AEFRE
T E R E 3
R-ZE——4F+-f
==
BEAR
KEERE
S B 8
EHNNE
RZZE—=%1+=FH
==
fREE
R-Z—=%+—-FH
==
RZZE——%+=FH
==

Cost

At 1 January 2012
Currency realignment
Additions

Disposal

At 31 December 2012

Currency realignment

Additions

Transfer to investment properties
Transfer

Reclassification

Disposal

At 31 December 2013

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2012

Currency realignment
Provided for the year
Eliminated on disposal

At 31 December 2012

Currency realignment
Provided for the year
Eliminated on disposal
Reclassification

At 31 December 2013

Carrying values
At 31 December 2013

At 31 December 2012

15 Property, plant and equipment

HEME
K5 i
P&
Leasehold
BIEYE improvements, AE EETE
Hotel EF furniture and Motor Construction Hos
properties Buildings equipment vehicles in progress Total
e
BT BT BB BT BB AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Hita)
(Note a)
1,537,767 1,090,796 1,147,396 143,390 1,077,392 499,74
(246) (738) 138 - 4871 4,031
- 44,693 384,515 10,655 957,931 1,397,794
- (160,295) (42,979) (8.216) (30,264) (241,754)
1,537,521 974,456 1,489,070 145,829 2,009,936 6,156,812
65,206 29,624 42,372 4,562 66,390 208,654
- 6,093 168,131 28,400 1,021,356 1,223,980
- - - - (106,703) (106,703)
992,458 572,980 70,447 - (1,635,885) -
339,856 (134,390) (205,466) - - -
- - (17,511) (12,036) - (29,547)
2,935,041 1,448,763 1,547,043 166,755 1,355,594 7,453,196
137,777 327,162 391,636 67,403 - 923,978
(16) 14 770 (79) - 689
51,121 42704 211,310 26,807 - 331,942
- (30,247) (33,507) (7,510) - (71,264)
188,882 339,633 570,209 86,621 - 1,185,345
6,390 12,616 16,997 2,909 - 38,912
70,854 37,297 231,106 29,225 - 368,482
- - (11,074) (10,050) - (21,124)
214,078 (107,588) (106,490) - - -
480,204 281,958 700,748 108,705 - 1,571,615
2,454,837 1,166,805 846,295 58,050 1,355,594 5,881,581
1,348,639 634,823 918,861 59,208 2,009,936 4,971,467
Note:

i

a) REF-—=ZFR-F——F+-A=+-HIFBELERZ

PERMEES 2 BEYE -

(a)

Amounts as at 31 December 2013 and 2012 mainly represented the hotel properties which
are under construction in the Chinese Mainland.
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16 TiERRE

16 Land use rights

—E-—F

TZA=t-H
31 December 2012

BT

HK$'000
AL B A2 1 30655 FR The carrying amounts of land use rights located in
REERS the Chinese Mainland comprise:
— REHA (BANF) — Long-term lease (over 50 years) 118,805 488,686
—RERN(0ENEF) — Medium-term lease (10 to 50 years) 1,715,096 1,063,991
1,833,901 1,552,677
17 REYE 17 Investment properties
ERRENZE
ERIREE Investment
Completed properties
investment under Bt
properties construction Total
S
BT Jiotiom BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Hizte)
(Note e)
DA Fair value
R-ZT——%—F—H At 1 January 2012 26,936,927 4,524,478 31,461,405
HERE Currency realignment 19,479 14,283 33,762
NE Additions 21,971 7,500,524 7,522,495
mEHEZMEEA (F5Fd) Transfer from properties for sale (Note d) 1,601,748 - 1,601,748
HERSHEE Y Transfer to properties for sale (124,310) (98,611) (222,921)
B Transfer 4,257,167 (4,257,167) -
RERER 2 ATEEM Increase in fair value recognised in
profit or loss 3,325,377 675,597 4,000,974
= Disposal (40,564) - (40,564)
RZE——F+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2012 35,997,795 8,359,104 44,356,899
HEHE Currency realignment 1,140,924 370,783 1,511,707
NE Additions 46,262 6,071,079 6,117,341
RAEETEREA Transferred from construction in progress 106,703 - 106,703
b Transfer (1,024,941) 1,024,941 -
REHE 2 MEB A (Ktd) Transfer from properties for sales (Note d) 665,347 497,923 1,163,270
ER R E s Transfer to properties for sales (17,456) (557,778) (575,234)
RS i A Transfer to land use rights = (182,107 (182,107
REEHRER 2 AT ELM Increase in fair value recognised in
profit or loss 2,055,802 5,112,416 7,168,218
He Disposals (53,658) (1,690) (55,348)
R=ZE—=F+-A=+—H At 31 December 2013 38,916,778 20,694,671 59,611,449
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17 REWEE

Mzt -

a)

b)

c)

FEENREESF

AEERL FEHEREYFETHE - AEARENER
ZF-ZHFE A= AN A TERREE ARELER
RAE(TEARER])  —EBURELEEBAEMN  #17
HIEEETE °

EEEAAENENEAARL BRI AEEERER
il AR FE L B RFRRERL o

FER T
EERBANERS AR L FE—RRAUSERIE
HEmE -

REETETEARNEEELFE REEEEHREEN
ABRMLIEL - BBENTIRA TS HERBEMKED
- KR IGEAISEE AR EE R RAFH 2 - [ EFIR
ARETEHEELBAENRERAM L EYREHE

E-

ERRENFNATE—REAMERELTE - WGBS
EEEBUSELHEREN MY RETHEN L 1
EaFtREREE (RREFMGEAER) BB X EPHS F
BRAL RERBOFER A

FABERR G ERT -

RAERFABEH 22 FEMEREH

17

Investment properties (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Valuation processes of the Group

The Group measures its investment properties at fair value. The fair value of the Group’s
investment properties as at 31 December 2013 has been determined on the basis of
valuation carried out by CBRE Limited (“CBRE"), an independent and professionally qualified
valuer.

Discussions of valuation processes and results are held between the management and valuer
at least once every six months, in line with the timing of Group’s interim and annual
reporting.

Valuation techniques
Fair values of completed commercial properties and office buildings are generally derived
using the income capitalisation.

This valuation method is based on the capitalisation of the term and reversionary income
potential by adopting appropriate capitalisation rates, which are derived from analysis of
sale and rental evidences in the market and valuers’ interpretation of prevailing investor
requirements or expectations. The prevailing market rents adopted in the valuation have
made reference to recent lettings, within the subject properties and other comparable
properties.

Fair values of the investment properties under development are generally derived using the
residual method. This valuation method is essentially a means of valuing the land by
reference to its development potential by deducting development costs together with
developer's profit and risk from the estimated capital value of the proposed development
assuming completed as at the date of valuation.

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during the year.

Information about fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs

RZZT—=F EHESS DTN
+=ZA=+-H BRAMENES
ZAYE Assessed fREHRT EETRES
Fair value prevailing BAL BIRHE
as at BARE market rents Estimated Estimated
31 December Capitalisation per sqm percentage to developer's
2013 rate per month completion profit margins

BETT % BT % %
HK$000 HK$
B5ER Completed:
—EAnE — Commercial properties 33,883,273 71095 50 to 601 N/A N N/A TNER
—RaKE — Office building 5,033,505 61095 125 to 350 N/A i N/A NiEA
38,916,778
BRS Under development:
—ERAE — Commercial properties 20,694,671 81010 75 t0 225 15 to 100 51030
59,611,449
—g-=f%
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U e/ g g g
17 REWE(E) 17 Investment properties (continued)

Wi : (&) Notes: (continued)

{c) RAEA B 55  A TEMIER AR (Z) (c) Information about fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (continued)
FE AR N FERBR - Relationship of unobservable inputs to fair value:

. BEXEERE A FERE o The higher the capitalisation rate, the lower the fair value;

. BiliEHeRE A FERS o The higher the prevailing market rents, the higher the fair value;

. RAEI AL LAE A FERE o The higher the estimated percentage to completion, the lower the fair value;
. REEREERFIERE  AFERE - o The higher the estimated developer's profit margin, the lower the fair value.

d) FEFAERETETYREZ %  BLYERAFRE IR E (d) The Group had changed the use of certain properties, of which had commenced the operating
IBRALETUAEETL Al B EHBHEETYFEE lease to outsiders during the year. Accordingly, it results in a transfer from property for sales
EREYE -EENAHER  GHEBEEEN fﬁﬁ VES to investment properties. On the date of reclassification, the amount included an increase in

RERHEZ N AL EEE73461000 (ZF—=4F : )% fair value upon transfer to completed investment properties of approximately
#1,578,132,0007T) ° HK$873,461,000 (2012: HK$1,578,132,000).
(e) TR B2 1] B3 A PRI o (e) The investment properties are situated in the Chinese Mainland under medium term leases.

18 REELER—BHENRZRE 18 Investments in joint ventures and an associate

—E-—F

+ZA=1+-H

31 December 2013 | 31 December 2012

BT BT

HK$'000 HK$'000

REEREZIELETRE (Hita) Unlisted investments in joint ventures (Note a) 2,907,902 2,353,056
R E AR 2 LTRE Unlisted investment in an associate 13,137 =
2,921,039 2,353,056
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18 ReEhER—HEENATZRE 18 Investments in joint ventures and an associate

() (continued)
(a) BRREERA SO Ly Sy IR ERIEE (@) The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s interests
T in joint ventures is set out below:
—E—_F
+ZA=1+-H
31 December 2013 | 31 December 2012
BT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRAE AL A Profit before taxation 412,792 552,244
FRHA Profit for the year 309,594 414,183
Htv2EMam — RER2FIE%R Other comprehensive income — exchange differences
EXvERESR arising on translation to presentation currency 73,139 (52)
2EEESE Total comprehensive income 382,733 414131
AEBLREPERN T =%+_A=1+—H Particulars of the Group’s joint ventures as at 31 December 2013 are set
L %EH’\\WE%(M out in Note 39(b).
19 AEHERE 19 Available-for-sale investments
—E-—-F
T-A=t-A
31 December 2013 | 31 December 2012
BT BRI
HK$'000 HK$'000
B A 3E E TR E S Unlisted equity securities in the
(Hita) Chinese Mainland (Note a) 165,810 164,652
HIRE (faF 380 i) Other investments (Note 38(a(iii)) 394,286 12,854
560,096 177,506
W ARERSEEZ S Less: amounts included in current assets (381,567) -
178,529 177,506
st - Note:
(a) hE A FE [ TR A E 2 A FE I IRE A ER TSR % (a) The fair value of unlisted equity securities in the Chinese Mainland are based on the cash
RIEFHEFRTENRBRE EOFIRTRNE S REET flows discounted using a rate based on the market interest rate and the risk premium
specific to the unlisted securities.
N FRBEEZENE 20 Prepayments for non-current assets
BHSERZREE G S Imiﬁiim‘;)ﬂﬁéﬁf’ﬁ Amounts represent the prepayments made by the Group for the acquisition of
BAERE R EE LR RS . land use rights in the Chinese Mainland for the development of investment
BE-T-=E+-A=+—R A£EFDEL properties and properties held for own use. The land use right certificates have
3165 PR o not yet been obtained by the Group as at 31 December 2013.
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20 EEFREHEE (RE) 21
REAMBRREZ2AIME  BTEEHENAE
RABETFINEH » THAREEBROEEABH
EHH -

Deferred income taxation assets (liabilities)

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of financial
position, certain deferred income tax assets and liabilities have been offset.
The following is the analysis of the deferred income tax balances at the end of
the reporting period:

“ZT-ZF -

TZA=1+-H +ZA=1+-H

31 December 2013 | 31 December 2012

BT BT

HK$'000 HK$'000

RIEFEHREE Deferred income taxation assets 387,150 431,385
EIEFEHARE Deferred income taxation liabilities (7,764,931) (5,188,736)
(7,377,781) (4,757,351)

UTARTERERBEFE CHERT BEEMEHR

The followings are the major deferred income taxation assets (liabilities)
EE (BB REHED -

recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior years.

MR S 2
EYEE)
HXEEZ
B
Temporary
differences
arising from the Hith
write-down of TREE
REME properties for Other
Investment sale and other MISEE temporary o
properties expenses Tax losses differences Total
N
BB BETT BT BT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZE——%—Ff—H At 1 January 2012 (4.461,368) 459,931 264,088 - (3,737,349)
BEAE Currency realignment (949) (675) 112 - (1512)
(3n8) /st A Bz (Charge)/crediit to profit or loss (1,021,049) (150,965) 153,524 - (1,018,490)
RZZT——F+-HA=+—H At31December 2012 (5,483,366) 308,291 417724 - (4.757,351)
BERE Currency realignment (187,819) 8,754 14,257 (1,074) (165,882)
CIENHPN (Charge)/crediit to profit or loss (1,932,534) (119,686) (70,375) (331,953) (2,454 548)
W-F—Z&+-H=+—F A3 Decomber 2013 (7608,719) 197,359 31,606 1333.027) 1377781
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2N EEFREHEE(RE)(E)

(a)

(b

R-ZB-=F+-A=1+—-0 KEBFKH
BRIEEREE19732000T(ZT——F:
1 2,1490120007T ) AT AR {EHE SE B R R -
HA 64400 ( ZS——F: B
1670896,0007T ) BiE BB E BR AELEFEH
BE - BARAAREERAENBHZENE
AR RBRETEE S ERGBTHEASSE
7B 556,796,000 70 (= F — —4F : 5% 478,116,000
T EREEHREHEE - HEBBRL UL
BRE o

RZB-—=F+-A=1+-R  AEELE5
FR B0 72 ] ) A B L 17 1 16,170,844,000 72 (=
ZT——F : E#18,901,960,000 ) sHREIEFTS
BB G B 00854200 L(ZE——F: B
945,098,0007c) + FREARAEE W EATEA
PEZERH o

22 HEECYE

EERES
HEME

Properties under development

Deferred income taxation assets (liabilities)
(continued)

(a)

At 31 December 2013, the Group had unused tax losses of
HK$1,973,220,000 (2012: HK$2,149,012,000) available for offset against
future taxable profits, of which HK$1,446,424,000 (2012:
HK$1,670,896,000) tax losses have been recognised as deferred income
tax assets. No deferred income tax asset has been recognised on the
remaining tax losses of HK$526,796,000 (2012: HK$478,116,000), as in
the opinion of the directors of the Company, the future profit streams of
these subsidiaries are uncertain. The tax losses could be carried forward
for a maximum of five years.

At 31 December 2013, the Group has not made provision of deferred
income tax of HK$808,542,000 (2012: HK$945,098,000) for the
unremitted earnings of the PRC companies of HK$16,170,844,000 (2012:
HK$18,901,960,000) as the Group does not have a plan to distribute
these earnings out of the PRC.

Properties for sale

Properties held for sale

—E-—F

TZA=t-A

31 December 2013 | 31 December 2012
BT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
126,117,253 122,691,709
23,893,278 14,097,994
150,010,531 136,789,703

HEE 2 MEMRREANS  YARHROEE - @
MMEEEZDERAATRBERE T —EARKD -
BrEEIR2ERANER  YIRRBEE

The properties for sale were located in the Chinese Mainland under medium
term lease. Properties for sale which are expected to be recovered in more
than twelve months after the end of the reporting period are classified under
current assets as it is expected to be realised in the Group’s normal operating

cycle.
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B EUERR - HtEKERE  BAR0R
Kils

pall}

23 Trade receivables, other receivables,

prepayments and deposits

—E-—=F —T-CF

TZA=1+-H +ZA=1+-H
31 December 2013 | 31 December 2012

BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
IR (Kfzta) Trade receivables (Note a) 776,365 2,686,360
B REEE (Wita) Less: allowance for doubtful debts (Note a) (136,756) (146,6186)
639,609 2,539,744
SLUREE L 35 R 2 FAS FROE (Kt ) Prepayments for acquisition of land use rights (Note b) 14,855,064 4,207,268
Hio Ui iRE (A c) Other receivables (Note c) 2,785,104 1,637,349
B RERRHE (fatc) Less: allowance for doubtful debts (Note c) (262,309) (266,562)
2,522,795 1,370,787
BEFERE Prepayments and deposits 4,677,605 4,915,531
22,695,073 13,033,330
Kt Notes:
(a) SR (a) Trade receivables

HENREZ RS RRR BB GAFRIEAXAT - —RME
NEEZRREEGHARCEDRAX NG LT R B EM
EEH -

BUHENEZBRFE  FENFHLUARBLEENZE
WUHBLERBE AR RERAZ FEE KL TE
FIEBBRNEEY -

W T BHEHREHFRER N Z RN IR DI ¢

Proceeds receivable in respect of sale of properties are settled in accordance with the terms
stipulated in the sale and purchase agreements. Generally, purchasers of properties are
required to settle the balance within 30 days as specified in the sales and purchase
agreements or not granted with any credit period.

Except for the proceeds receivable from sale of properties, rental income from lease of
properties and proceeds from construction contracts which are payable in accordance with
the terms of the relevant agreements, the Group generally allows a credit period not
exceeding 45 days to its customers.

The following is an aging analysis of trade receivables (net of allowance of doubtful debts)
at the end of the reporting period:

+=ZA=+—-8

—FR Within one year
BE—F Over one year

31 December 2013 il December 2012
BT BT
HK$°000 HK$'000

549,753 2,405,177

89,856 134,567

639,609 2,539,744
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X
4

Wik » HAEWARIE - FANF0E

=
Al 3z (A8

Wi : (&)

a)

W (&)

REEE A At EFE AR A2 (B8 % 15,061,000 (= F —=
F : ERI0727,0007T) BN AR RIS R
—FRIBEHREBY - A BN E L RERRER
FEEBRRZAERERABNEUABE -

R EFE (55 B2 S RSB K 1367560007 (= F
—Z4F B U66160007T) - AFEREFZXANGER
REEHBEERTARE - FEBYEGI S HFIFIE
A o U T BEREARER G2 2B

23

Trade receivables, other receivables,
prepayments and deposits (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(a) Trade receivables (continued)
Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amount
of HK$15,061,000 (2012: HK$30,727,000) which are aged over one year and past due at the
end of the reporting period for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss. The
Group is entitled to take over the legal title and possession of the underlying properties for
re-sales.

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually impaired trade receivables of
HK$136,756,000 (2012: HK$146,616,000), which have been in severe financial difficulties
and irrecoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. Movements
in the allowance for doubtful debts for trade receivables are as follows:

2013 2012

BT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
N Balance at the beginning of the year 146,616 161,136
[EH A% Exchange realignment 4543 (21)
BRAZAERE Impairment losses recognised 2,063 1,709
R U o L B X T A L (B S 1 Impairment loss reversed due to collection of receivables (16,270) (14,687)
F R Wiritten off during the year (196) (1,521)
FiREER Balance at the end of the year 136,756 146,616
b SR L HE R B3R (b) Prepayments for acquisition of land use rights
ZECRRRAEBEFEAN BERLENFATRIELH The amount represents the prepayments made by the Group for the acquisition of land use
REREMZ T ZEITHE - REEHE  AEBHKREZL rights in the Chinese Mainland for property development for sale. The land use right
HEREE - certificates have not yet been obtained by the Group at the end of the reporting period.
{c) p-v1) 33 (c) Other receivables

ZEL BT RELENEERA RRAHBRE X2 BET
B ARGIEEE TR R -

HitfER R RET RS MAREZBLS NS
A (T AR — FRE R

UTFBEMERRERE SR Rl 717 (EHIB RIERE
) ZEEUEBIIA BB BERE

The amount mainly includes temporary payments paid for potential projects and project-
related deposits which would be refundable upon completion of the development projects.

There is no fixed repayment term for other receivables and the Group considers they are
repayable on demand and will be recovered in one year from the date of advance.

The following is an aging analysis of other receivables (net of allowance for doubtful debts)
at the end of the reporting date which are considered not impaired:

= —2——F
+=A=t+—-8H +=A=+—-H
31 December 2013 31 December 2012
BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
—£R Within one year 2,305,056 1,109,315
BB—F Over one year 217,739 261,472
2,522,795 1,370,787
—E-=FE
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23 %ﬂ&ﬁﬁ%ﬁ; HttfEWRE » AR

AJ Az /Ayg
izt : (8)

(c) A ENEE (8)
REBRS A5 (EI5Rl1E 2 At A AR TR % 1% 262,309,000 7T (=
B4 BR2665620007T) * ZFRMERERZIRFA
HEBRREN BN R T AYE - ZEF LRI EHE
FAEAEA D - A TREMENERRERE 2 REHIE

23 Trade receivables, other receivables,

prepayments and deposits (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(c) Other receivables (continued)
Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually impaired other receivables of
HK$262,309,000 (2012: HK$266,562,000), which have been in severe financial difficulties.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. Movements in the allowance for
doubtful debts for other receivables are as follows:

2013 2012

BT BT T

HK$'000 HK$'000

N Balance at the beginning of the year 266,562 346,309
[ A% Exchange realignment 8,297 (61)
BRRAZAERE Impairment losses recognised - 16,160
R U [ L B X T A L (B S 1 Impairment losses reversed due to collection of receivables (12,550) (90,169)
ERHE Written off during the year - (5,677)
FIREER Balance at the end of the year 262,309 266,562

d) FEBERBIZHREREFT AL TEERETREM (d) The Group assessed the credit quality of trade and other receivables based on historical

YR GERE Ul BERREHRIFL TR o

% ER(EN)ZEFSHTIRENEA

default rates and the repayment records and considered adequate allowance has been made
at the end of the reporting period.

24 Amounts due from (to) customers for contract

works
ZE-=F —E-CF
T-A=t+-A T-A=+-A
31 December 2013 | 31 December 2012
BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
RERREELRE Contracts in progress at the end of the year
BESMTREMANE #ER Contract costs incurred plus recognised profits
B E RS less recognised losses 3,900,614 3,599,997
W EEWE Less: progress billings (3,831,168) (3,553,142)
69,446 46,855
HE|E MFEA - Analysed for reporting purposes as:
BREFEAHNTRRIUE Amounts due from customers for contract works 210,461 240,878
EREFEHTRIE Amounts due to customers for contract works (141,015) (194,023)
69,446 46,855

REE-T-—=F+-A=+—HIFE AHMkx
75 620,771,000 (= B — = & : 5 %1,010427,0007T)
BRRAWE  EPHEE29693000T( =T ——4F:
75 %619,306,0007T ) SR B )[Rl R FiT B A Al iR 2 B AR
f% o

During the year ended 31 December 2013, contract revenue of HK$620,771,000
(2012: HK$1,010,427,000) is recognised as revenue, of which HK$296,930,000
(2012: HK$619,346,000) arise from the construction services provided to fellow
subsidiaries.
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25

26

ERMBARRIFERES B TRRRRBK
P AEER RBREELREE -

ERHBZRAF  RENERR
BERARAFRIERRBNZEHERN
BRX %ﬂﬁ#&&ﬁﬁgﬁ%mxAi

A%ﬁ%& f#
o ERA

o

IE%&%E{TI“Q T?
Iﬁﬁ&fiﬂiﬂ% BERRTERENE01%Z62%(=
—ZF 03BN EL%)FEZEBRTER - A
@%ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%@;‘%ﬁ%27,530,538,0007%(:2—:¢ :
i %21,164,215,0007‘5 ) URZBRHBITERSE
708,366,000t (= — =4 : B 7887420007L) ° B
HETER Exﬁﬁ$E@%$%¥$EEHZim
MERZEREERZETES °

Re RRTRFRU T B E -

25

26

Hong Kong dollar

United States dollar

ok

AR¥ Renminbi
e

Hith Others

Amounts due from subsidiaries/fellow
subsidiaries/intermediate holding companies/
joint ventures/an associate/non-controlling
Interests — the Group and the Company

Amounts due from subsidiaries and non-controlling interests mainly represent
the current accounts which are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

Amounts due from intermediate holding companies, fellow subsidiaries, joint
ventures and an associate mainly represent short-term loan advances which
are with interest charges, unsecured and repayable according to respective
loan agreements.

Cash and bank balances

Cash and bank balances comprise short-term bank deposits carry interest at
prevailing deposit rates which range from 0.01% to 6.2% (2012: 0.35% to
4.2%) per annum, which included cash and cash equivalent of
HK$27,530,538,000 (2012: HK$21,164,215,000) and restricted bank deposits of
HK$708,366,000 (2012: HK$788,742,000). The restricted bank deposits are
mainly funds designated for relocating existing residents on the lands of the
Group's certain property development projects.

The cash and bank balances are denominated in the following currencies:

—Z-=F —E--f
TZA=1+—H +ZA=1+-H
31 December 2013 | 31 December 2012
BT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000

1,177,175 907,131
26,559,633 20,563,673
502,079 480,564

17 1,589

28,238,904 21,952,957

ARBEHERS LR BINE ROASMESHEM RITEE
EReELPERY  REFTEABBARGNE
BSNEZBIRAIRIAR °

The conversion of RMB denominated balances into foreign currencies and the
remittance of such foreign currencies denominated bank balances and cash out
of the Chinese Mainland are subject to relevant rules and regulation of foreign
exchange control promulgated by the Chinese Mainland government.
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21 BARRREMEMSREE 27 Trade and other payables
—E-—F
+ZA=1+-H
31 December 2013 | 31 December 2012
BT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI (fiita) Trade payables (Note a) 24,560,380 16,026,752
H e BRIE (FizED) Other payables (Note b) 7,996,154 7,883,450
32,556,534 23,910,202
it - Notes:
(a) W TR E AR FET A REAHT - (a) The following is an aging analysis of trade payables at the end of the reporting period:
—ZT-=% —T—fF
+=ZA=+-H +=A=t+-8
31 December 2013 31 December 2012
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
—FR Within one year 22,759,861 13,299,753
BA—F Over one year 1,800,519 2,726,999
24,560,380 16,026,752
b) LFELZOFRYTE  BITEMBF  TRARERTE (b) Amounts include mainly receipt in advance, other taxes payable, temporary receipts and

accrued salaries.

28 EAMBAR/EZRMEAR/S%%E 28 Amounts due to the subsidiaries/fellow
XIFERERRE —AEERAD subsidiaries/joint ventures/non-controlling
Gl interests — the Group and the Company
ENRERR  BERNBLRAIRGERETEEER Amounts due to subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries and joint ventures mainly
ERBRE  AREH RS RERENESR - represent the current accounts which are unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand.

FEfTSEERER 2 FERREHMER Hﬂ Amounts due to non-controlling interests mainly represent short-term loans
BRY  AEERRABESENERBZER with interest charges, unsecured and repayable according to respective loan
agreements.
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29 HITEE —FEERERF 29 Bank borrowings — the Group and the Company
—E-—F
+ZA=1+-H
31 December 2013 | 31 December 2012
BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BER Secured 11,033,887 10,808,090
E: S Unsecured 46,112,087 34,359,585
57,145,974 45,167,675
FATEE B BERDITHT : The maturity of the bank borrowings is analysed
as follows:
—&ER Within 1 year 16,256,126 5,283,044
—E—F Between 1 and 2 years 23,076,061 11,628,940
“ERF Between 2 and 5 years 15,889,840 25,981,210
RFENRE Over b years 1,923,947 2,274,481
57,145,974 45,167,675
e B ERT—FREE A Less: amounts due within 1 year shown under
current liabilities (16,256,126) (5,283,044
40,889,848 39,884,631
AEEZBTEENEERETE  SIWT - The Group's bank borrowings denominated in HK$ and US$ are set out below
—E——F
+ZRA=t-H
31 December 2013 | 31 December 2012
BB BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
ok Hong Kong dollar 36,447,843 28,267,843
e United States dollar 775,460 775,174
RZZ—=F+-A=+—H ' BOEERERTH As at 31 December 2013, bank borrowings include fixed-rate borrowings of
EIEERNELD% (ZF— 25 : FFIZE677%) 5t 82 HK$3,653,950,000 (2012: HK$8,423,129,000) which carry interest at average
EEMGEBBIBT(ZE—ZF: &% fixed rate of 5.95% per annum (2012: 6.77% per annum) and variable-rate
84231290007C) RIZER FHER KPR (ZF—= borrowings of HK$53,492,024,000 (2012: HK$36,744,546,000) which carried
& 201%) it B RIRBBRTREREIRARITA average effective interest rate at 3.33% (2012: 2.97%) per annum, that is
EREMNT0B%E28%(ZF— =4 : HARTA contractual interest at HIBOR or LIBOR plus a certain premium ranging from
ERBI0BRE28%) ZANENRAF B2 ZBEE 0.85% to 2.8% (2012: HIBOR plus from 0.85% to 2.8%) per annum. The
78 #553,492,024,000 7 ( = T — — 5« /8 #5.36,744,646,000 borrowings are repayable by installments or in a lump sum upon maturity in
) RERBERBZFMEER - BEED BRI accordance with the terms set out in the respective loan agreements.

M —2BEE -
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29

30

RTEE —AKERARA (F)

RAEBLEABEIIBIBI0T(ZE——4F 8
#2916284200070) 2 RITEEM S « REBHEERR
B2ES EREEERZEERBRNTEREAA
A BITRAZE D 35% 5 51% : AEE ZRITEHREH
7 110475,933,0007C ( = F — = 4 « 75 #5518,871,000
o) AR ARALER o

ADAIZBTEFEAERR BB RETHE
REREBRTFHERR201%(ZF—Z4F : 203%)5t 8 -
LEEBRTRAERERBIRITREREMN T
085% E28% (22— —F : FERTRAEREMN T
085% E28%) @B 2 HEFFIRETE - REBAER
mEREES  BEES PN —2BEE -

[LEN

29

30

Bank borrowings — the Group and the Company
(continued)

In respect of bank borrowings of the Group amounting to HK$37,378,425,000
(2012: HK$29,162,842,000), CRH is required to hold not less than either 35% or
51% of the issued share capital of the Company at any time during the period
of the loans in accordance with the terms of the respective loan agreements;
bank borrowings of the Group amounting to HK$10,475,933,000 (2012:
HK$5,518,871,000) are guaranteed by the Company.

The bank borrowings of the Company are all unsecured, denominated in HK$
and US$ and carrying average effective interest rate at 2.01% (2012: 2.03%)
per annum, that is contractual interest at HIBOR or LIBOR plus a certain
premium ranging from 0.85% to 2.8% (2012: HIBOR plus from 0.85% to 2.8%)
per annum. The borrowings are repayable by installments or in a lump sum
upon maturity in accordance with the terms set out in the respective loan
agreements.

Share capital

fxin# A

Number of shares

AR

Share capital

BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BREESK010T2 @Kk  Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
A Authorised:
FUREL At the beginning and end of
the year 7,000,000,000 7,000,000,000 700,000 700,000
BETREAR Issued and fully paid
F4) At the beginning of the year 5,827,398,790 5,826,468,790 582,740 582,647
TiERERRE Exercise of share options 3,230,000 930,000 323 93
FR At the end of the year 5,830,628,790 5,827,398,790 583,063 582,740
150 —T-=FEFR
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31

32

fite — AR

31 Reserves —the Company

&t

Reserves

BT

HK$'000
R-ZZE——%—F—H At 1 January 2012 33,967,120
FRNEE Loss for the year (1,339,579)
RenmyniTEEH NG Gain on changes in fair value of cash flow hedges 8,306
B BRSBTS E RS Release of shares held for Strategic Incentive Award Scheme 339,712
—E-_FhHKRE Interim dividend for 2012 (362,877)
—T——FREKE Final dividend for 2011 (967,194)
R E Release of hedging reserves 27,778
TR E Exercise of share options 2.067
FEEBINREBES Additional final dividend for prior year (136)
R-ZE——F+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2012 31,675,197
EREE Loss for the year (1,412,427)
EHERAEBEERR Release of shares held for Strategic Incentive Award Scheme (113,987)
—T—=F7HHKRE Interim dividend for 2013 (425,446)
T F7REKE Final dividend for 2012 (1,590,829)
TR E Exercise of share options 6,475
R-ZE—=%+-A=1+—H At 31 December 2013 28,138,983

BLEE 32 Senior notes

RZZE——%F  ARFEETALEA1,000000000E7T
ZEAEE(BEZE])  BAZERFMEESFR
SAERAR LT - BAEBRABKE LIRS ERE
BEIDN:TE LRI ZFFELA R TR
T-RERATNBEE BAERRTHERER
RATII% TS ©

BEZBR -_Z—=F+-A=+—-B2zATEMH:t
£1047,770000E 7T+ FHE R B 1£8,125037,0007c (= F
— 2 1 1,09,440,0003E 7T 0 AHE R 7 18212,503,000
) REARERZAZKMEET -

In 2011, the Company issued senior notes with principal amount of
US$1,000,000,000 (“Senior Notes”), which are listed on the Singapore
Exchange Securities Trading Limited. The Senior Notes are unsecured and bear
coupon interest at 4.625% per annum payable semi-annually in arrears and are
due on 19 May 2016. The Senior Notes carry average effective interest rate of
4.773% per annum.

The fair value of the Senior Notes at 31 December 2013 was approximately
US$1,047,770,000, equivalent to HK$8,125,037,000 (2012: US$1,059,440,000,
equivalent to HK$8,212,503,000), which was determined based on the closing
market price of which at that date.
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3

B By
AR TR (338 SENRERE
HAATZASE  DRENEBARARE

Mt B EARAMRALERRR _ZF_F—4
ST-RAZBRRAE Lk 2 BRE S - EEET
Wéﬁ%ﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ wat8lz BIETTEE
HARAIZEFET  TEERUT=22&5E : K
QE&@E%&%%&QEZWmL B ERER
RERLE BRI R A 2 TORTERRINEE -

ERAARFAENBBEREZENREZAR
ZHNRR - IHARBE I THORBEMABH - i
HERENREL TR EZe2RREET |
SRERTEREZREEMARLERE . BB
ATMERBANERTF - HESRERESBARER
AEE BFMBNERESEAN - RZS—=F
+ZA=+—8 REFMEEREARNRTEZE
BREMEERG S B A608T00K(ZF— =4
9317500%) * HMERAARE BEZTRM01%(ZF

33

Share option schemes

The Company operates share option schemes for the purpose of promoting
additional commitment and dedication to the objectives of the Company by
participants, namely the “New Scheme”.

The New Scheme refers to the share option scheme adopted by the Company
which was approved by the shareholders in general meeting on 31 January
2002. The Board may grant options to eligible participants. The exercise price
of the share option under the New Scheme is determined by the directors of
the Company, and will not be less than the higher of the closing price of the
Company's shares on the date of grant, the average closing price of the shares
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant, and the
nominal value of the share.

The offer of a grant of share options under the New Scheme may be accepted
within 28 days from the date of the offer together with the payment of HK$1 in
total by the grantee. The vesting and exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable at the entire discretion of the Board with the vesting
period not exceeding four years and the exercise period will not exceed a
period of ten years immediately after acceptance of grant. Options are lapsed
if the employee leaves the Group before the options vest. At 31 December
2013, the number of shares in respect of which options had been granted and
remained outstanding under the New Scheme was 6,087,500 (2012: 9,317,500)

152

—Z%F 1 016%) ° shares, representing 0.1% (2012: 0.16%) to the shares of the Company in issue
at that date.
RZZE—=F+-fA=1+—0 BEEEFELD As at 31 December 2013, none of the directors held any share options of the
EERE - (25 —ZF: &) - Company (2012: nil).
—E-=EEEH
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33 BRERE(E) 33 Share option schemes (continued)
TEEBREEREMBBEMB AN RBREFER The following tables disclose details of the Company's share options held by
REE 72 employees and other participants and movements in such holdings during the

year:
BE_Z-—=61+_A=1t—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2013
B ERE
Number of share options
—T-=F “T-=F%
B —A—B +=-A=+—H
TRfE WATE  EREE FRAE FARN WARITHE
Exercise B {765 Outstanding Granted  Exercised lapsed  OQutstanding at
pedar] =f: price Vesting Exercisable  at 1 January during during during 31 December
Date of grant per share period period 2013 the year the year the year 2013
BT
HKS$

#atal 28/04/2004 1040 28/04/2004t0  28/04/2004 to 852,500 - (525,000) - 327,500

New Scheme 01/01/2007 21/04/2014
29/04/2005 1420 29/04/2006t0  29/04/2005t0 1,600,000 - (375,000) - 1,225,000

29/04/2009 28/04/2015
01/06/2005 1230  01/06/2005t0  01/06/2005t0 1,525,000 - (900,000) - 625,000

01/06/2008 31/05/2015
03/01/2006 3225  03/01/2007to  03/01/2006t0 3,615,000 - (1,430,000) - 2,185,000

03/01/2010 02/01/2016
17/02/2006 3965  17/02/2007t0  17/02/2006 to 375,000 - - - 375,000

17/02/2010 16/02/2016
26/06/2006 3580  26/06/2007to  26/06/2006t0 1,350,000 - - - 1,350,000

26/06/2010 25/06/2016
9,317,500 - (3,230,000) - 6,087,500
FIREE AT Exercisable at the end of the year 6,087,500
ETHTRE Weighted average exercise price 247 - 2.10 = 266
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33 BRETE(E) 33
BE-E——F+-R=+—RHItFE

Share option schemes (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012
BREZE
Number of share options

—T-ZF “E-CF
—A—B +=-A=+—H
WATE  EREE FRAE FAXN WARITHE
{765 Outstanding Granted  Exercised lapsed  OQutstanding at
Exercisable  at 1 January during during during 31 December
period 2012 the year the year the year 2012

Bk
1110(E
Exercise B
Gl = i price Vesting
Date of grant per share period
BT
HKS
HRE 04/03/2002 1590  05/03/2002 to
New Scheme 01/01/2005
07/10/2002 0960  08/10/2002 to
05/01/2005
28/04/2004 1.040  28/04/2004 to
01/01/2007
29/04/2005 1420 29/04/2006 to
29/04/2009
01/06/2005 1230 01/06/2005 to
01/06/2008
03/01/2006 3225 03/01/2007 to
03/01/2010
17/02/2006 3965 17/02/2007 to
17/02/2010
26/06/2006 3580 26/06/2007 to
26/06/2010
FREATE Exercisable at the end of the year
IETFHTEE Weighted average exercise price

04/03/2002 to 820,000 - (140,000) (680,000 =
03/03/2012
07/10/2002 to 350,000 - (150,000) (200,000 -
06/10/2012
26/04/2004 to 852,500 = = = 852,500
27/04/2014
29/04/2005t0 1,750,000 = (150,000) = 1,600,000
28/04/2015
01/06/2005t0 1,525,000 = = = 1,525,000
31/05/2015
03/01/2006t0 4,105,000 = (490,000) = 3,615,000
02/01/2016
17/02/2006 to 375,000 = = = 375,000
16/02/2016
26/06/2006t0 1,350,000 = = = 1,350,000
25/06/2016
11,127,500 = (930,000) (880,000) 9,317,500
9,317,500
2.38 = 232 1.45 247

FRATTEBRERTTE RS2 METHIREREE
NNT(ZF—ZF : BE15MT) - TAEERBIRE

GRANT_Z=F KETHE SEE3%Z50%
BN T 5B -

RBE_E-—=FfK-_ZT-——F+-A=1+—HItF
S Y0 4 B PR AR A S TR RR ¢ WL TD R A O R I AT
BRERENREZERESNBEFEREEN -

In respect of the share options exercised during the year, the weighted average
share price at the dates of exercise is HK$22.22 (2012: HK$15.44). All options
were granted with a vesting period of two to three years and 33% to 50% of
which would be vested annually after the grant date.

There was no share option expense recognised during the year ended 31
December 2013 and 2012 as no new share options were granted in the years
and the previously granted share options were fully amortised in the prior year.
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34 Cash generated from operating activities

Profit before tax
Adjustments for:

Finance costs

Gain on changes in fair value of investment
properties

Gain arising on disposal of a subsidiary

Gain arising on disposal of investment properties

Interest income

Share of profit of investments in joint ventures
and an associate

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Others

Changes in working capital

Properties for sale

Trade receivables, other receivables, prepayments
and deposits

Amounts due from/to customers for contract works

Trade and other payables

Advances received from pre-sales of properties

Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries

Amounts due from joint ventures

Others

Cash generated from operating activities

HETZA=T—BILEFE

Year ended 31 December

BRI BT
HK$°000 HK$°000
24,278,223 17,495,034
145,760 669,582
(7,168,218) (4,000,974)
- (102,157)
(114,258) (130,763)
(380,655) (211,289)
(309,601) (414,183)
368,482 331,942
(23,331) (19,370)
16,796,402 13,617,822
(7,788,939) (34,084,142)
(9,374,801) 7,838,957
(21,124) 503,690
7,813,241 8,901,360
17,323,585 24,590,181
59,542 (435,761)
(392,505) -
(151,594) (121,887)
24,263,807 20,810,220
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3B HEEREL
AEEARNEBRMEERARTELER  ERS
B A K172920000n( ZF —ZF: B
13,009549.0007C) © RITHRERER LERMAESE
INEERZRIZBER 2 AREEAE) ERZ
LER - ANREERA BEERANZATAEL
TEK e

3% RE

35 Financial guarantee contracts

Guarantees amounting to HK$17,295,200,000 (2012: HK$13,009,549,000) are
given to banks with respect to loans procured by the purchasers of the Group's
properties. Such guarantees will be released by banks upon the issuance of the
real estate ownership certificate to the purchasers or the satisfaction of
mortgaged loan by the purchasers of properties, whichever is earlier. In the
opinion of directors of the Company, the fair value of the financial guarantee
contracts is not significant.

36 Commitments

+ZA=1+-H

31 December

BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BHLATIER 2 BT ERE B 2 EXEE Material commitments, contracted but not provided,
in respect of
—MEERE — Properties development 31,572,609 36,250,577
— T fERE — Land use rights 18,884,554 1,997,375
50,457,163 38,247,952

3 AELAA
REESR  RREARTERTUTEE - (EAK
REER—RRTBALER

37 Pledge of assets
At the end of reporting period, the Group had pledged the following assets to
banks as securities against general banking facilities granted to the Group:

+=A=1+—H

31 December

BETT BRI

HK$'000 HK$'000

REME Investment properties 21,390,646 23,526,954
HEEZME Properties for sale 11,959,320 7,417,873
I ER NS Property, plant and equipment 1,096,520 1,444,508
T E R Land use rights 164,541 403,340
34,611,027 32,792,675

Wi R-F-Z#+-A=+—A HFEEUHEATESE
HAAER 7773690007 (= F—=4 : JBH1,723400,0007T) »

RoF—=ZF1-fA=+—H WERAFEEHEY

3532.3790007C (= F—=4 : B 35024080007T) °

Note:  As at 31 December 2013, bank borrowings of HK$1,777,369,000 (2012: HK$1,723,400,000) is
secured by pledge of the equity interests in a subsidiary. The net assets of the subsidiary are
approximately HK$3,532,379,000 (2012: HK$3,502,408,000) as at 31 December 2013.
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AEALRS

(a)

HErEEERANELE(HEEE

SE)NEARS
ATAREERERETIEABEALRS

BE

38 Related party transactions

Significant transactions with CRNC and its subsidiaries (the
“CRNC Group”)

The following is a summary of the significant related party transactions
entered into by the Group during the year:

(a)

HETZA=T—BILEFE

Year ended 31 December

(i

(i)

BT BEFT
HK$'000 HK$'000
REBEREBKRA (i) Rental and management fee income from
—RZKBDA — Fellow subsidiaries 206,383 144,238
—Hfb — Others 19,826 18,996
276,209 163,234
RERE - RIERBEREMBA (i)  Construction, decoration services and
other income from
—RZEKBLA — Fellow subsidiaries 312,054 636,596
— Hith — Others 10,445 1177
322,499 637,773

(i)

BINEERRTRNHBRAR ((EHR
T REBRERERERARA(ER
55t ]) 2 B A (EThE

RZZ—=%+-A=1+-R Bk
RITEGAEASEREBRITNGR
A R B1837677.0007C ¢ 47 & R B B
208294500 ( = F——F: AR
680,087,0007T + # & A 75 #838,731,000
L) o L REBIEINENTE
F20.385% 2 2.86% (= F— =4 : 0.385%
E165%) B REEZT—=F
+ZA=+-HLEFE ZEEREL
2RI B ALE AEK172100007T (=
T—— 4 : BH42800007T) ©

R-ZE-=#+-A=1+—-0 " #H
ERBREASBERAERGETELL
R A B 30428600 ( =T — =
F B E2IB00T) REEZT
—=F+-A=t-HLFE ZEK
BIEREERERA A B3 264000 T
(Z2—ZF:%)-

(iii)

Strategic cooperation agreement with Zhuhai China Resources
Bank Co., Ltd. (“CR Bank”) and China Resources SZITIC Trust Co.,
Ltd. (“CR Trust”)

As at 31 December 2013, cash and bank balances include
deposits of RMB1,637,677,000, equivalent to HK$2,082,945,000
(2012: RMB680,087,000, equivalent to HK$838,731,000), made
by the Group to CR Bank. The said deposits carry interest at
prevailing deposit rates which range from 0.385% to 2.86%
(2012: 0.385% to 1.265%) per annum. The aggregate interest
income arising from such deposits was HK$17,210,000 during the
year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: HK$4,280,000).

As at 31 December 2013, available-for-sale investments include
investments of HK$394,286,000 (2012: HK$12,333,000) made by
the Group to the trusts initialled by CR Trust. Investment income
arising from such investment trusts during the year ended 31
December 2013 is HK$3,264,000 (2012: nil).
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B BEALRS(E 38 Related party transactions (continued)

(a) EPEZEBRHEKNBLR(HEES (a) Significant transactions with CRNC and its subsidiaries (the
SBNEARS (&) “CRNC Group”) (continued)
v FEEBRENDESHE (iv)  Intra-group lending with CRNC Group

HE-Z-=F+-A=+—-HL*F
B ASERTEEREEEREE
119733900 ( — 8 —=—F: B&
8,386.4950007T) - FIE AR BHRITRE
FEFIRBABITREREBNE TE
B NFII%EII(=F——F : 17%
%) HBE_E-—=F1+=4
ST BLEFEZSEEEEZRENK
AREEE AT 9 439, 000T( B — 4 ¢
HHEU3800L) c RZF—=F 1=
A=+—H VTEERFEEREET
& #H (=T — = F : E%7246,495,000
) e

B2 =f+-_F=1+—HLEF
£ AEBERTEEBEEERETE
1891738000 (ZF—=F : &) 7
KA FL964%Z504%( = F — —
E) HE-_T-=F+-fA=1—H
HFEZSHAEENFSMAREA
B 626650007 (ZB——4F : &) o ;d
“E-ZH+-A=+—H EkFER
Z= RS BRFIE A 1,891,738,000 7T
(Z2—ZF: &)

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group borrowed
HK$11,973,394,000 (2012: HK$8,386,495,000) from CRNC Group
with interest rate at HIBOR or LIBOR plus a certain premium
ranging from 1.1% to 1.9% (2012: 1.7% to 2.3%). The aggregate
finance costs arising from such borrowings was HK$92,439,000
for the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: HK$24,358,000). As
at 31 December 2013, there are no balances due to CRNC Group
(2012: HK$7,246,495,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group lent
HK$1,891,738,000 (2012: nil) on a rolling basis to CRNC Group
with interest rate ranging from 4.964% to 5.04% (2012: nil). The
aggregate interest income arising from such lending was
HK$62,665,000 for the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: nil).
As at 31 December 2013, amounts due from CRNC Group are
HK$1,891,738,000 (2012: nil).

) FEEEAEZME
ARARTEERARBEEMIRERARR
FERZEMMT :

(b) Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of executive directors of the Company and other
members of key management of the Group during the year was as
follows.

HETZA=T—BILEFE

Year ended 31 December

BETT BEFT

HK$'000 HK$'000

EHESRET Short-term employee benefits 40,612 41,263
BHRAEA Post-employment benefits 1,154 543
41,766 41,806
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38 FMEATRSH(E)

(c)

RREARSHMETEEER ZEX
)

AEBREUNERAMEREREHEE
(TBATRMEE)) (s B B T 2
B uthh AEBAY AR ERARSZ
BN T —ERAREEERA L5 -

BEX (@ RbIBERES - AEETERTRRE
ERETUTES - AR EZRRELTH
FERERETRS BRLREAXEE I
RETSHENET - AEETEHER TR
BR > MaERRL MR T 2 ERFA

-
HER -

il AEREBEREALSREHFILEE
(BRBUTRRER) Wi LA

i) AEBEEERTREBER(BREA
HRER)ETERFRREERS

il ARBREFRUBEETEERS
MARVESRAERAHH 251
BTERZSRERANRAEHER
EALRAL -

38 Related party transactions (continued)

(c)

Significant transactions with other government-related
entities in the Chinese Mainland

The Group operates in an economic environment currently predominated
by entities directly or indirectly owned or controlled by the PRC
government (“government-related entities”). In addition, the Group itself
is part of a larger group of companies under CRNC which is controlled
by the PRC government.

Apart from the disclosure in (a) and (b), the Group also conducts the
following business with government-related entities. The directors of
the Company consider the transactions with these government-related
entities are within normal business operations and are carried out on
market terms. The Group has developed transaction pricing policies and
these policies do not depend on whether or not the counterparties are
government-related entities.

(i) The Group has acquired land use rights through tendering to
those government departments or agencies, which are
government-related entities;

(i) The Group has entered into various deposits and lending
transactions with banks and financial institutions, which are
government-related entities;

(iii) ~ The Group has sales and purchases transactions with customers
and suppliers, in which the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that it is impracticable to ascertain the identity of the
counterparties and accordingly whether the transactions are with
government-related entities.
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39 MBLR  fECXHEBENT 39 Subsidiaries, joint ventures and the associate
@ RZE—=F+-A=1+—H KXAEEEH (@) Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at 31 December

BARZERHIIMT : 2013 are set out as follows:
AASERE 2B BT
Az EfEL
BEITIRAZEE  Proportion of nominal value
B AAME Nominal value of of issued share capital ~ F B

Name of subsidiary issued share capital held by the Group Principal activities

EB83 O BROERDA (FHiEa1) (Note a-1) AR 1,300,000,000 7 917%  BREERENEEE
RMB1,300,000,000 Investment holding and
property development

T RERNAEEEREELA (FiEa-3) Note a-3) AR H1,000,000,000 70 8B56%  WEEE
RMB1,000,000,000 Property development

EHEN(DF)BRAA (MizEa-4) (Note a-4) 21,000,0003 7T 100%  DEEE
1US$21,000,000 Property development

=8 ORI BER A A (FizEa-4) Note a-4) 75 500,000,000 7 100%  YERE
HK$500,000,000 Properties investment

FEHE M () BRABR AR (Fizra4) (Note a-4) 75 756,000,000 7T 0%  WEEE
HK$756,000,000 Property development

EHEM (I EEERAR (FizEa-4) Note a-4) 74,500,000 75 100%  MEEE
US$74,500,000 Property development

EHE i () BB A A (FizEa4) (Note a-d) 141,000,000 57T 100%  YEEE
US$141,000,000 Property development

ZHE () AR DA (Ffiza-4) (Note a-4) 75 240,000,000 7 100%  MEEE
HK$240,000,000 Property development

EHEM(ZR)BEXERAA (Hizka-4) Note a-4) 50,000,000 T 100%  WEER
US$50,000,000 Property development

BERRAEXERERAR (FiiEa2) (Note a-2) AR 200,000,000 7T 100%  MXEE
RMB200,000,000 Property development

EHEN AR BRARAE (Fiztad) (Note a-4) 75 700,000,000 70 100%  DEEE
HK$700,000,000 Property development

EH(KE) B EER A (MiEka4) (Note a-4) 751,200,000000 70 0%  W¥EE
HK$1,200,000,000 Property development
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39 KMBAT AEEHEEENT(£) 39 Subsidiaries, joint ventures and the associate

(continued)
fa (&) (a)  (continued)
AAEERAZEET
BRA 2 EfEL
BEITIAZEE  Proportion of nominal value
MBLAAE Nominal value of of issued share capital T BEH
Name of subsidiary issued share capital held by the Group Principal activities
EHEMAE LR ERAA (Hizka-2) Note a-2) AR 1,150,000,000 70 100%  DEEE
RMB1,150,000,000 Property development
EHEMER (LR ERAR (Hizka-2) Note a-2) ARH1,150,000,000 7 100%  ERE
RMB1,150,000,000 Property development
EHEM &5 BEERA R (Hzka-4) Note a-4) 139,800,000 ¢ 00%  HEEE
US$139,800,000 Property development
EZEE (@M BRA R (FfiFa4) (Note a-4) 75 970,000,000 7 100%  $EEE
HK$970,000,000 Property development
EHE 085 AR AR (FfizFa4) (Note a-4) 90,000,000 7T 100%  ERE
1S$90,000,000 Property development
ZH (%) wEFR DA (Ffiza-4) (Note a-4) 169,900,000 57T 100%  WERR
US$169,300,000 Property development
RABHEREBRAR (M5 a2) Note a-2) AR #50,000,0007C 0%  YDEEE
RMB50,000,000 Property development
EBEN(R2)ARARF (MiEa3) Note a-3) AK#730,000,0007T 9856%  MEEE
RMB730,000,000 Property development
ZHE M (FR) BRD R (Ffizta-4) (Note a-4) AR 646,000,000 7T 100%  WFERE
RMB646,000,000 Property development
EHEMRE (RE) FRAA (Fizka-4) Note a-4) AR 600,000,000 70 100%  ERE
RMB600,000,000 Property development
ZHE M EM) BRERA R (Fizka-4) Note a-4) 99,960,000 T 100%  HEEE
US$99,960,000 Property development
EH (L8 RuEREARAR (MiEa2) (Note a-2) 75 3,400,000,000 7T 100%  #EEE
HK$3,400,000,000 Property development
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39 MEBLR - aEbELEmENT(£)

@ (#)

MEARAH

Name of subsidiary

iy

EBEM(E

1) BB AR (KHizEa4) (Note a-4)

FREN (KH) KEARAR (HiEad) Note a-d)

EHE M) BRAF (MzEa4) Note a-4)

FRE(FIL) ARAF (Mza4) Note a-d)

FREO88) FRAF (Mzta4) Note a-4)

FHEN (REE) AR AR (FiFa4) (Note a-d)

EBEH (M) BRAF (FFEa4) Note a-d)

AEEGEBRHEREERAR

(FfzEa-2) (Note a-2)

ERE () ARAF (Ha2) (Note a2)

£RE(AE)ARAR (Wite2) Notead)

ZHEH (85) ERAF (HiFEas) Note ad)

FREH(FM)BRAF (HzEa4) (Note a-4)

(continued)
(a)  (continued)

ERETRAZEA
Nominal value of
issued share capital

#11,961,000,000 7T
HK$1,961,000,000

50,000,0003 7
US$50,000,000

66,400,00035 7
US$66,400,000

FBH 772,000,000 7T
HK$772,000,000

751 1,080,000,000 7T
HK$1,080,000,000

49,900,0003 7
US$49,900,000

93,000,0003 7T
1S$93,000,000

AR 440,000,000 7T
RIMB440,000,000

A 200,000,000 7T
RMB200,000,000

A 100,000,000 7T
RMB100,000,000

108,662,544 57T
US$108,662,544

277,980,000 7T
US$277,980,000

HAKEREZDET

A 2 EEEL

Proportion of nominal value

of issued share capital
held by the Group

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

39 Subsidiaries, joint ventures and the associate

ITBEH

Principal activities

NEER
Property development

NEER
Property development

MEER

Property development

NEER
Property development

NEER
Property development

NEER
Property development

NEER
Property development

NEER
Property development

NEER
Property development

MEER
Property development

BT
Property development

NEER
Property development
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39 MBLE  A&LEEBENT(£) 39 Subsidiaries, joint ventures and the associate
(continued)
(@) (continued)

@ (#)

MEARAH

Name of subsidiary

HAKEREZDRIT
A 2 EEEL

BEITIAZEE  Proportion of nominal value

Nominal value of
issued share capital

ITBEH

Principal activities

of issued share capital
held by the Group

EREN (FHR)ARAAF (Fia4) (Note a-4) 349,400,00037T 100%  MEERE
US$349,400,000 Property development
EREN (FHE)ERAF (FzEa4) (Note a-d) F581,200,000,000 7T %% MEERE
HK$1,200,000,000 Property development
EEEN(SIE)BERAF (MizEa4) (Note a-4) 49,000,000 7T 100%  MEEE
US$49,000,000 Property development
BEERAGERERZE AR AR (M ad) Note ad) AR 696,900,000 7 0%  ERE
RMBG96,900,000 Property development
EHEW(ER)BRAF (MzEa4) (Note a4) FH1,487573,1157C 100%  MEERE
HK$1,487,573,115 Property development
i Notes:
(a-1)  ZHBAR—RRFERMKLZ R ERRE] o (a-1)  The subsidiary is a joint stock limited company established in the Chinese Mainland.
(a2) BZHIEAA—KREERMK T2 AERE (a-2)  The subsidiary is a domestic enterprise established in the Chinese Mainland.
(a-3) ZHBRAD—FKRPEAMHE T2 EBLE - (a-3)  The subsidiary is an equity joint venture established in the Chinese Mainland.
(a4)  ZHBAR—RRPERMK L IEBERF o (a-4)  The subsidiary is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in the Chinese

Mainland.
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39 KBAR AEEHEEENT(£) 39 Subsidiaries, joint ventures and the associate

(continued)
(b) RZZE—=F+-A=+—H KEEzL% (b)  Particulars of the Group’s joint ventures as at 31 December 2013 are set
CEEREFINT - out as follows:
AEEREREEGER
BELEARE Attributable interest indirectly T2 %7
Name of joint ventures held by the Group Principal activities
Rebound Capital Limited (i) (Note i) 50%  R-TEhERMYEREERREER
Investment holding in a property
development project in the
Chinese Mainland
EREFAEBRB AR (FiFEi) (Note ii) 4859%  MERBRER
Property investment and management
I REREFEMEREERAR (M) (Note ii) 4859%  MEER
Property development
EamaEF#ERAR (M) (Note ii) 50% MELE
Property development
B EBERFAE R AR (FizEii) (Note iii) 33.33%  MEBE
Property development
XEEEE £H5R A7 (FizEii) (Note iii) 50% MELE
Property development
iz Notes:
fi) BEEPEREBRELHSHMAL i) The jointly venture is incorporated in British Virgin Islands.
(i) FEERERPENME T REEZFIEERE (ii) The joint ventures are Sino-foreign equity joint ventures established and operating
BrE- in the Chinese Mainland.
(i) ZEEDFIRBERM T REEZNERE (iii) The joint ventures are domestic enterprises established and operating in the
Chinese Mainland.
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39 KWEBAR - AEhEEEEAF(E) 39 Subsidiaries, joint ventures and the associate
(continued)
) RZBE-—=F+-R=1+—H AEEZHE (c)  Particulars of the Group's associate as at 31 December 2013 are set out
ARERBIWT - as follows:
AEEREREEGER
BEARETE Attributable interest indirectly T2 %7
Name of the associate held by the Group Principal activities
& mBREHEREER A (M) (Note) 3334%  MEBE
Property development
Wizt :  ZBERRNA—KRRFERMELREEZAE R Note:  The associate is a domestic enterprise established and operating in the Chinese
Zo Mainland.
0 BRERER 40 Financial risk management
0] £HMIEZER 40.1 Categories of financial instruments
—E—_F
+=R=+—H
31 December 2013 | 31 December 2012
BT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
SREE Financial assets:
ERREWERE Loans and receivables
— EURERZ R E b U BRIE — Trade and other receivables 3,162,404 3,910,531
— ERRZKTBA ﬂ?’AIE — Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries 709,600 94,139
— R — R R A R RE — Amounts due from an intermediate
holding company 1,310,017 50
— A EETIE — Amounts due from joint ventures 1,241,592 611,806
— RN —EBEARRE — Amounts due from an associate 806,142 =
— EYGEERERIE — Amounts due from non-controlling interests 146,114 -
—RIIFR — Cash in bank 28,233,721 21,947,912
AHHERE Available-for-sale investments 560,096 177,506
36,169,686 26,741,944
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0 BIEEBRERE(E)
01 SRMIBEZER(E)

40 Financial risk management (continued)
40.1 Categories of financial instruments (continued)

—T—=fF —T——&
+=ZR=+—AH +=ZR=+—H
31 December 2013 | 31 December 2012
BT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
PREE: Financial liabilities:
Bk AR E Liabilities at amortised cost
— N ERRELERE — Trade and other payables 30,213,277 21,943,755
—FE SRR A R FUR — Amounts due to the ultimate holding company 17 -
—ENRRHBARIZIE — Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries 188,124 4,731,509
o L UNSIERE] — Amounts due to intermediate holding companies 167 2,688,738
—ENAENERE — Amounts due to joint ventures 569,458 62,713
— e IR R B — Amounts due to non-controlling interests 3,135,175 3,665,999
—RIEE — Bank borrowings 57,145,974 45,167,675
—BEER — Senior notes 7,755,279 7,735,149
99,007,571 85,995,538
BRATHEFAEREZAR Liabilities at fair value through the profit or loss
—fThEERmIA — Derivative financial instruments - 33,195
99,007,571 86,028,733

802 BREREEREERBR
EEEABANTARSERENNSERT
fh EEREBEHALEYHBER - %2
EREETSER(REHZERREEME
B) - EERREGBHESER - TREEER
ENySER  URRERBE U RREE
By o

AEEEY 2 HHERL R ERRETARY
HRLBEARE -

40.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies
Management monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the
Group through internal risk assessment which analyses exposures by
degree and magnitude of risks. These risks include market risk (including
interest rate risk and currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
Management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

There has been no change to the Group's exposure to financial risks or
the manner in which it manages and measures.
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40

MHEREE(E)

40.2

M E

402.1

4022

4023

REEERRICK(£)

SNERBEHE
AEBNEBEENARKET - R
BERLEIMRITIER (M 20) REX
FB (M7 32) RH L AB AR T B
BRoh e AR EBARNEREXZHE
BERE R - ARERE L EEX LD
BR - A EREEEAERETH
EXEE  TREFTERERHHER
EXER o

FEAREE
AEEEES RTEERELSENE
HARBAIEER -

ARERRTRYNERITEE - fE
HRERENZEAR - REEAKER
BEXSMEL 2 HEKEY  FRED
FREESRTASREARR °

RZE—=F+-A=1+—8 " k7
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40

Financial risk management (continued)

40.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
40.2.1 Foreign currency risk management

The Group’s businesses are principally conducted in RMB, except
for bank borrowings (Note 29) and senior notes (Note 32) are
arranged in Hong Kong and overseas and denominated in HK$
and US$. The Group manages its currency risk by closely
monitoring the movements of the currency exchange rates. The
Group currently does not have a currency hedging policy.
However, the management monitors exchange exposure of HK$
and US$ and will consider hedging significant currency exposure
should the need arises.

40.2.2 Interest rate risk management

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to
fixed-rate bank borrowings and senior notes.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate bank borrowings. To manage the Group’s
exposure to fluctuations in interest rates on specific transactions,
appropriate financial instruments may be used to hedge material
exposure.

As at 31 December 2013, if interest rates on bank borrowings
had been 50 basis points higher/lower with all other variables
held constant, post-tax profit would have been HK$216,481,000
lower/higher (2012: HK$212,978,000), mainly as a result of
higher/lower interest expenses on these variable-rate financial
liabilities.

40.2.3 Credit risk management

As at 31 December 2013, the Group's maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to
failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties and
financial guarantees provided by the Group is arising from:

° the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position; and

° the financial guarantees issued by the Group as disclosed
in note 35.
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40

Financial risk management (continued)

40.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
40.2.3 Credit risk management (continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group
has delegated a team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade and other receivables at the end of the reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The credit risk on bank deposits is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies or state-owned banks in the
PRC.

With respect to the amounts due from fellow subsidiaries,
intermediate holding companies, joint ventures, an associate and
non-controlling interests, the directors of the Company consider
the credit risk is limited because they have strong financial
positions.

40.2.4 Liquidity risk management

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group’s operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and
ensures compliance with loan covenants. Details of the Group's
borrowings are set out in note 29.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables
have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay. The maturity dates for non-derivative
financial liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates.

The table includes both interest and principal cash outflows. To
the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted
amount is derived from weighted average interest rate by
reference to the HIBOR of the Group's variable-rate financial
liahilities at the end of the reporting period.
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0 BIEEBRERE(E) 40 Financial risk management (continued)
402 BEERSEEEREE(E) 40.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
024 FTEHECERERE(E) 40.2.4 Liquidity risk management (continued)
ZF-=FTZA=1-H
31 December 2013
1ER
On demand 1226 ENF:3 SEPAE
or less than 1-2 2-5 Over bk
1 year years years 5 years Total

|
BETT  BETT  BETR B%TR BETR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

EEER R ERRE Trade and other payables 30,213,277 - - - 30,213,277
BT SR IER A BFE Amounts dug to the ultimate

holding company 117 - - - 117
IR ENGERE Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries 188,124 - - - 188,124
FE{T R ARIER A BF0E Amounts due to intermediate

holding companies 167 - - - 167
EREEhEE Amounts due to joint ventures 569,458 - - - 569,458
N ERE G Ea 0] Amounts due to non-controlling

interests 3,135,175 - - - 3,135,175
RITEE Bank borrowings 18,080,346 24,185,055 17,071,382 2,945,767 62,282,550
BEZE Senior notes 358,650 358,650 7,933,925 - 8,651,225

52,545314 24,543,705 25,005,307 2,945,767 105,040,093
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024 FEHECEBERE(E)

40 Financial risk management (continued)
40.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

40.2.4 Liquidity risk management (continued)

ZF-ZFTZA=1-H
31 December 2012
1R
On demand 1225 EES SEME
or less than 1-2 2-5 Over B
1 year years years 5 years Total
.
BRI BT BT BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TER R R E e BRIE Trade and other payables 21,943,755 - - — 21,943,755
ERRZHBARFUE Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries 4,731,509 = = = 4,731,509
JERR AR A A FUE Amounts due to intermediate
holding companies 2,688,738 - - - 2,688,738
BREEMERIE Amounts due to joint ventures 62,713 - - - 62,713
JE R FEE A i A TR Amounts due to non-controlling
interests 3,665,999 = = = 3,665,999
RITfEE Bank borrowings 6,820,889 12915717 27,302,174 2,901,773 49,940,553
BEZE Senior notes 358,518 358,518 8,289,517 = 9,006,553
fTESRIA Derivative financial instruments 33,285 = = = 33,285
40,305,406 13,274,235 35,591,691 2,901,773 92,073,105
STABETHEEREL : The amounts have not included financial guarantee contracts:
— EREEBERASEYE —  which the Group could be required to settle under the
BRFESRELABERY arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if that amount
ZH RESERIZEHE is claimed by the counterparty to the guarantee for loans
SEBFEE TREEER procured by the purchasers of the Group's properties (Note
YRS (i E35)  HEE 35), Such guarantees terminate upon the earlier of (i)
ReR(REEEMAEE(E issuance of the real estate ownership certificate which
BN R (R S KT will generally be available within an average period of
HME=ERAERE) : ski) two to three years upon the completion of guarantee
MEBR=RIREE R (&S registration; or (ii) the satisfaction of mortgaged loan by
FRWE) TR L the purchasers of properties;
— ARFBEMBARZEAE — which the Company make for its subsidiaries’ bank
BEY VER(HEN) - 5E borrowings (Note 29). Such guarantees terminate upon
EReNEERTESSER the repayment of relevant bank borrowings.
et
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40 Financial risk management (continued)
40.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
40.2.4 Liquidity risk management (continued)

Based on expectations at the end of the reporting period, the
Group considers that it is more likely than not that no amount
will be payable under the arrangement. However, this estimate is
subject to change depending on the probability of the
counterparty claiming under the guarantee which is a function of
the likelihood that the financial receivables held by the
counterparty which are guaranteed suffer credit losses.

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities is subject to
change if changes in variable interest rates differ to those
estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the reporting
period.

40.2.5 Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group's overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes the bank borrowings disclosed in Note 29 and the senior
notes disclosed in Note 32, net of cash and cash equivalents, and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital, reserves and retained profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a
regular basis.

As part of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital
and the risks associates with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new
share issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new
debt or the redemption of existing debt.
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40 Financial risk management (continued)
40.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
40.2.6 Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined as follows:

° the fair value of derivative financial instruments is
calculated based on discounted cash flow analysis using
the applicable yield curve for the duration of the
instruments for non-optional derivatives; and

o the fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities (excluding derivative financial instruments) are
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities (excluding senior notes) recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate to their fair values. The carrying amounts of short-
term bank borrowings and current portion of long-term bank
borrowings approximate their fair values. The fair values of non-
current bank borrowings are estimated based on discounted cash
flow using the prevailing market rates of interest available to the
Group for financial instruments with substantially the same terms
and characteristics at the balance sheet date. As at 31 December
2013, the carrying values of non-current bank borrowings
approximate their fair values.

The derivative financial instruments liabilities are measured
subsequent to initial recognition at fair value which are grouped
into Level 2 fair value measurements. Level 2 fair value
measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted
prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived
from prices).

The available-for-sale investments are measured subsequent to
initial recognition at fair value which are grouped into Level 3 fair
value measurements. Level 3 fair value measurements are those
derived from inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs).
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42

Event after the reporting period

The Company has issued US$400 million senior notes bearing an interest rate
of 4.375% per annum payable semi-annually in arrear due 2019 at an issue
price of 99.773% (the “2019 Notes”) and US$700 million senior notes bearing
an interest rate of 6.0% per annum payable semi-annually in arrear due 2024
at an issue price of 100.0% (the “2024 Notes"”) on 20 February 2014. The 2019
Notes and 2024 Notes are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 28
February 2014.

The Company has issued US$50 million senior notes bearing an interest rate of
4.375% due 2019 (the “New Notes”) on 13 March 2014. The New Notes have
been consolidated and formed a single series with 2019 Notes, and are listed
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 19 March 2014.

Approval of financial statements
The consolidated financial statements set out on pages 91 to 173 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 21 March 2014.
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Schedule of Principal Properties

BiRESEANE ERENERARMAERREL @R EER
Properties held for Attributable Beneficial Interest of Approximate Total ] HEFR
Investment or Own Use China Resources Land Limited Gross Floor Area Type Lease Term

BHERDL
Shenyang City Crossing
B R The MiXe
FF Office
Z {475 Grand Hyatt Hotel
{3845 Car Park
BETATEEFAHBR
No. 288 Qingnian Avenue, Heping District, Shenyang

TREBAR
Beijing China Resources Building
LRFHRREPE RS
No. 8 Jianguomen North Avenue, Dongcheng District, Beijing
T REFR
Beijing Hi5
7% Commercial
5718 Office
F&15 Car Park
L RTERE B85
No. 68 Qinghe Mid-Street, Haidian District, Beijing

EMESAR
Phoenix Place Tower A
BT Office
&35 Car Park
LRTEBE=TE
San Yuan Qiao, Chaoyang District, Beijing

BIESHE

Phoenix Place Tower F&H
BF12 Office
LRTHBE=TE
San Yuan Qiao, Chaoyang District, Beijing

i ES ME
Block M, Phoenix Plaza
7% Commercial
LRTHGBE=TE
San Yuan Qiao, Chaoyang District, Beijing

AEES
Xidan Cultural Centre

S RTAERE ALK 1805
No. 180 Xidan North Avenue, Xicheng District, Beijing

EMERRES ;
Grand Constellation Shopping Mall
LRTEREEERE

Huayuan Street, Xicheng District, Beijing

EMES

U-Space Shopping Mall
LRTHBEERFN AL S

No 8 Guangqumenwai Avenue, Chaoyang District, Beijing
REEH

Jing Tong Shops

LRTHBEAGHR

Chaoyang Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing

BB i b
Phoenix City Commercial Street

LRTHBE=TE
San Yuan Qiao, Chaoyang District, Beijing

B -mx Z-sus Hpnz ez pi R
C — Commercial CP — Car Park 0 — Office H — Residential H — Hotel
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BiRESEANE
Properties held for
Investment or Own Use

ERENERARMAERREL @R EER
Attributable Beneficial Interest of Approximate Total ] HEFR
China Resources Land Limited Gross Floor Area Type Lease Term

EHAR
Huawei Building

LRTEREAELKE
Xidan North Avenue, Xicheng District, Beijing

E@AR
Huanan Building

LRTEREAELKE
Xidan North Avenue, Xicheng District, Beijing

BRENRE

Building 22, Guanyingyuan
LERTEREHNEABE

Xinjiekou South Street, Xicheng District, Beijing

SEH

Jin Hui Garden
LRTARE

Daxing District, Beijing

ERHEEE N0 _
Building 49, Fortune Island, Jade City
LRTAEE

Daxing District, Beijing

HRABE 1572

Building 1, Plot B2, Jade City
LRTARE

Daxing District, Beijing

HENEAREEAE _
Serviced Apartment, Shanghai The Bound
of Bund

LETREERR

HuangPu District, Puxi, Shanghai

LIBRRES
Shanghai Times Sqaure
&% Mall
BT Office
{2835 Car Park
LIBHERRR K05
No. 500 Zhangyang Road, Pudong, Shanghai

MBI
Hangzhou The MIXc

ES The MiXe

£33 Car Park
MNTITREIHFAROREERAE
Qingchun East Road, Qianjiang New Town,
Jianggan District, Hangzhou

HEEZS
Chengdu The MiIXc
B4 The MIXc
{2835 Car Park
RETRERLERSR
No. 8 Shuangging Road, Chenghua District, Chengdu

B -mx Z-sus
C — Commercial CP — Car Park

Hpnz ez pi R
0 — Office H — Residential H — Hotel
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FEMEME Schedule of Principal Properties

BiRESEANE
Properties held for
Investment or Own Use

ERENERARMAERREL @R EER
Attributable Beneficial Interest of Approximate Total ] HEFR
China Resources Land Limited Gross Floor Area Type Lease Term

YRR L
Shenzhen City Crossing
B4 The MiXe
3| A& Shenzhen CR Building
EENE Grand Hyatt Hotel
£33 Car Park
R HER R 5001 5t R E R A 1881 5%
No. 5001 Shennan East Road and
No. 1881 Baoan South Road, Luohu District, Shenzhen

RUERAE

Shenzhen Hua Rui Building

R B AR 10015

No.1001 Baoan South Road, Luohu District, Shenzhen

Fmann

Nanning The MIXc

B4 The MiXc

#8835 Car Park
ERARERREARRKAE 365
No. 136, Minzu Avenue, Qingxiu District,
Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region

SEEE
Le Meridien Hotel
BETAEE

Shimei Bay, Wanning

i HABEIREMESERENENTOTIRK  URER  HEF EERENEAG 6469804 F 7K 5t B2 R - 5609456 F I K g at DR SETE -

Note:  Not including Beijing other operational investment properties of 34,729 square meters, and other investment properties which are currently under construction or under planning
involving a total gross floor area of 6,489,884 square meters and an attributable gross floor area of 5,689,458 square meters.

B -mx Z-sus
C — Commercial CP — Car Park

Hpnz ez pi R
0 — Office H — Residential H — Hotel
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FEMEME Schedule of Principal Properties

BRTME

Properties under Development

BOHRHEHAREEE
Attributable Beneficial

Resources Land Limited As of 28 February 2014

Shenyang Oak Bay
EBTRE
Yuhong District, Shenyang

BHERTL )
Shenyang City Crossing
EHTATE

Heping District, Shenyang

B e

Shenyang The Arch

EETHAER
Tiexi District, Shenyang

EHERNE

Shenyang The Bound of Mukden
EBTERE

Hunnan New Disitrict, Shenyang

ELERE

Shenyang Park Lane Manor
EETRAE

Changbai District, Shenyang

EELUTEEBEE i
Shenyang Shenhe Stadium Project
EELTR

Shenhe District, Shenyang

EHEmER ,
Shenyang Liutiao Lake Project
EBENE

Huanggu District, Shenyang

REgrE
Dalian Maritime
REFEREENE

Binhai New District, Development Zone, Dalian

REEGE
Dalian Qriental Xanadu
AETHHAAREGEMSE

No. 4 Xinhaiwan Road, Shahekou District, Dalian

RNEENWES
Dalian CR Plaza

RETHAFEHERILE
Zhonghua Road, Ganjingz District, Dalian

RNEEIE—FIEE RSN BIRR
Dalian No. 1 Huabei Road project and
Yaocaichang Project

RETHATE

Ganjingzi District, Dalian

FL=RE

Anshan Park Lane Manor

BLERR

Tiedong District, Anshan
B -mx Z-ses
C — Commercial CP — Car Park

REER B
Estimated ERER
Date of Completion State of Completion
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FEMEME Schedule of Principal Properties

BRTME

Properties under Development

EHERERAT BABRHEHTREER
SRR RS HIF0F2A88
Attributable Beneficial BamnrEE Approximate Unsold EatARBS
Interest of China Approximate Gross Floor Area Ebl] Estimated ERER

Resources Land Limited Total Site Area As of 28 February 2014 Type Date of Completion State of Completion

B
Anshan Oak

BLsHR
Gaoxin District, Anshan

REGEE
Changchun Oak Bay

REMEHIR
Southern New City, Changchun

EEENER
Changchun Gaoxin Project
RERHE

Gaoxin District, Changchun

RREBLIRR
Harbin Fun Sqaure

BEEDIRLE
Songbei District, Harbin

WEAAZIWER
Harbin West Station Project
BEEEHE

Nangang District, Harbin

IRESES

Beijing Majestic Garden
LRTHBERDE

Jian Xiang Qiao, Chaoyang District, Beijing

JRERAIL

Beijing Eco Living
LRTEREERFINAE 055

No. 305 Guanganmenwai Aveune, Xuanwu District, Beijing

Jighe
Beijing Oak Bay
LRMERERA

Qinghe, Haidian District, Beijing

EREAL )
Beijing Positano Vita
LRTPIFER

Mentougou District, Beijing

ERATNE
Beijing Park Land
ERTARE

Daxing District, Beijing

e
Beijing CR Building Ph. 2
LRHTRNE

Dongcheng District, Beijing

RHEBHHE
Beijing Miyun CBD
LRTEES

Miyun County, Beijing

B -mx Z-sus
C — Commercial CP — Car Park

Hpnz ez pi R
0 — Office H — Residential H — Hotel

“E-ZFEFR
178 Annual Report 2013



FEMEME Schedule of Principal Properties

BRTME

Properties under Development

EHERERAT BABRHEHTREER
SRR RS HIF0F2A88
Attributable Beneficial BamnrEE Approximate Unsold EatARBS
Interest of China Approximate Gross Floor Area Ebl] Estimated ERER

Resources Land Limited Total Site Area As of 28 February 2014 Type Date of Completion State of Completion

P GRE L]

Beijing Mengtougou New City
LRBPIEER

Mengtougou District, Beijing

IREE
Beijing Others
LRT

Beijing

REFRAE
Tianjin Central Park

RETEHE
Jinnan District, Tianjin

RpighE
Tianjin Oak Bay
RETEEE
Konggang District, Tianjin

R ,
Zhengzhou City Crossing
BN tE

Erqi District, Zhengzhou

L <
Tangshan Oak Bay

ELTBER
Phoenix New City, Tangshan

o B

Qinhuangdao Oak Bay
ZEBHERETH

Huanghe Road, Development Zone, Qinhuangdao

BEEER
Shijiazhuang Project
GG

Zhongshan Road West, Shijiazhuang

B -mx Z-sus
C — Commercial CP — Car Park

Hpnz ez pi R
0 — Office R — Residential H — Hotel
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BRTME

Properties under Development

EHERERAT BABRHEHTREER
SRR RS #itwuFIABE
Attributable Beneficial BamnrEE Approximate Unsold EatARBS
Interest of China Approximate Total Gross Floor Area Ebl] Estimated ERER
Resources Land Limited Site Area As of 28 February 2014 Type Date of Completion State of Completion

sRERRL
Qingdao City Crossing
BRTTERILRE 0%

No. 10 Shandong Road, Shinan District, Qingdao

B RAE

Zibo Central Park
MEREROAE
Zhangdian Central District, Zibo

EREIEER
Zibo Oak Bay

HEREER
Zhangdian West District, Zibo

REEERL
Weihai City Crossing
RETRREE

Huancui District, Weihai

HERERDL
Rizhao City Crossing
BRFER

Donggang District, Rizhao

REESHIER _
Rizhao Qingdao Road Project

ARTRER
Donggang District, Rizhao

BEEERL
Yantai City Crossing

BATHRLE
Laishan District, Yantai

ARERD L }
Taiyuan City Crossing
ARTREFHHE

Changfeng CBD, Taiyuan

AREHES
Taiyuan CR Plaza
ARTEHHE
Wanbolin District, Taiyuan

BFEAEL
Linyi City Crossing
BmRLE

Lanshan District, Linyi

BROA .
Nanjing Ning Mansion
HRENE

Jianye District, Nanjing

B -mx R
C — Commercial CP — Car Park

H-wanz ff-a= pi
0 - Office H — Residential H — Hotel
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BRTME

Properties under Development

EHERERAT BABRHEHTREER
SRR RS HIF0F2A88
Attributable Beneficial BamnrEE Approximate Unsold EatARBS
Interest of China Approximate Total Gross Floor Area Ebl] Estimated ERER

Resources Land Limited Site Area As of 28 February 2014 Type Date of Completion State of Completion

EEAEEHE

Wuxi Taihu International Community
EHTE K85

No. 88 Jinshi Road, Wuxi

mEyE
Wuxi Top Mansion

EHRE
Binhu District, Wuxi

EHEIIEA
Wuxi Huishan Project

EHTELER
Huishan District, Wuxi

N TPIRT
Suzhou Villa
BENTTIE
Pingjiang District, Suzhou

AL
Suzhou Oak Bay

FNTiERE
Xiangcheng District, Suzhou

HMEENE
Suzhou The Bound of Kunyu

RIS
Honggiao Road, Kunshan

BILERERMEE )
Kunshan CR International Community
B ATER

Qianjin Road, Kunshan

ENERERLE

Changzhou CR International
Community

FNREEPRAE

Zhongwu Avenue, Tianning District, Changzhou

Nantong Oak Bay

PR ERITEEE
Economic and Technological Development Zone, Nantong

EREERL
Nantong City Crossing
BRRER

Changhua Road, Nantong

B

Yangzhou Oak Bay
BNTRIERTE

Jiangwang Town, Hangjiang District, Yangzhou

B -mx R
C — Commercial CP — Car Park

H-wanz ff-a= pi
0 - Office H — Residential H — Hotel
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FEMEME Schedule of Principal Properties

EHERERAT BB AL EH A REEE
SRR RS HIF0F2A88
Attributable Beneficial BamnrEE Approximate Unsold EatARBS
ERPWE Interest of China Approximate Total Gross Floor Area Ebl] Estimated ERER

Properties under Development Resources Land Limited Site Area As of 28 February 2014 Type Date of Completion State of Completion

BB

Xuzhou Royal Palace
BN LE

Tongshan District, Xuzhou

"M EES
Xuzhou CR Plaza
BNTERE

Yunlong District, Xuzhou

BMETHER _
Xuzhou Binggong Road Project
L

Gulou District, Xuzhou

FMERERUE ;
Taizhou CR International Community
MBI

Zhoushanhe, Taizhou

Hi sk
Yancheng Oak Bay
B TARRE

Renmin Road, Yancheng

B -mx R #-nnz ff-a= pi
C — Commercial CP — Car Park 0 - Office H — Residential H — Hotel
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FEMEME Schedule of Principal Properties

EHERERAT BABRHEHTREER
SRR RS #itwuFIABE
Attributable Beneficial BamnrEE Approximate Unsold EatARBS

ERPWE Interest of China Approximate Total Gross Floor Area Ebl] Estimated ERER
Properties under Development Resources Land Limited Site Area As of 28 February 2014 Type Date of Completion State of Completion
LiBSNENE
Shanghai The Bund Side
LETREERR

Huangpu District, Puxi, Shanghai

it
Shanghai Oak Bay
LIBTHAE 1088 5%

No. 1088, Zhenghe Road, Shanghai

IR TN |
Shanghai Central Park
LETEER

Jiading District, Shanghai

HEsLne

Shanghai Eternal Palace
LETIRIE

Songjiang District, Shanghai

HEBEH
Shanghai The MIXc
LBmRAE

Wauzhong Road, Shanghai

LEERASEER
Shanghai Huangpu Wuligiao Project
LETERR

Huangpu District, Shanghai

MBS
Hangzhou The MIXc
RMTITE

Jianggan District, Hangzhou

ANZIAE
Hangzhou Foothill Palace
M2 ITEE

Zhijiang Road, Hangzhou

MHBLEARE

Hangzhou Xiaoshan City Complex
MMELE

Xiaoshan District, Hanghzou

B FHA

Ningbo Tuscany Lake Valley
ERREHR

Donggianhu District, Ningbo

EREEHRARN
Ningbo Cixi Central Park
BEMRBEE

Kandun Street, Cixi, Ningbo

R HGEFS
Ningbo The Arch
ERTILRE

Beilun District, Ningbo

B -mx Z-sus
C — Commercial CP — Car Park

Hpnz ez pi R
0 — Office H — Residential H — Hotel
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FEMEME Schedule of Principal Properties

BRTME

Properties under Development

EHERERAT BABRHEHTREER
SRR RS HIF0F2A88
Attributable Beneficial BamnrEE Approximate Unsold EatARBS
Interest of China Approximate Total Gross Floor Area Ebl] Estimated ERER

Resources Land Limited Site Area As of 28 February 2014 Type Date of Completion State of Completion

EREHAR _
Ningbo Landmark Residence
ERAAEHE

Dongxin District, Yuyao, Ningbo

BNE S
Wenzhou The MiXc
BMTEEE

Ouhai District, Wenzhou

REEMAR ,
Wuhan Landmark Residence
RATHERRER

Minzhu Road, Wuchang District, Wuhan

Wuhan Oak Bay
RETRER
Wouchang District, Wuhan

RERRR
Wuhan Central Park
REMERE

Hanyang District, Wuhan

RELER _
Wuhan Palace Glorious
RETLLE

Hongshan District, Wuhan

AEERE
Hefei Park Lane Manor

AEELE
Shushan District, Hefei

ARXER
Hefei Palace Glorious
AETHER

Yaohai District, Hefei

SEZEDL
Hefei City Crossing
BETRBE

Zhengwu District, Hefei

AligEE
Hefei Oak Bay
AETESE

Luyang District, Hefei

RIEMEERER .
Hefei Xinzhan District Project
AEFE

Xinzhan District, Hefei

FDEBR

Changsha Phoenix City
ROTRDE

Changsha County, Changsha

B -mx Z-sus
C — Commercial CP — Car Park

Hpnz ez pi R
0 — Office H — Residential H — Hotel
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FEMEME Schedule of Principal Properties

BRTME

Properties under Development

EHERERAT BABRHEHTREER
SRR RS HIF0F2A88
Attributable Beneficial BamnrEE Approximate Unsold EatARBS
Interest of China Approximate Total Gross Floor Area Ebl] Estimated ERER

Resources Land Limited Site Area As of 28 February 2014 Type Date of Completion State of Completion

Changsha Oak Bay
RO EHE
Wangeheng County, Changsha

W ENES ;
Changsha Landmark Residence
ROTRDE

Changsha County, Changsha

PEBEE R
Chengdu Jade City
RETHIE

Jinjiang District, Chengdu

AHERE
Chengdu Phoenix City
BAB=REE

South Third Ring Road, Chengdu

7%y 1A
Chengdu 24 City
RB=RER

East Second Ring Road, Chengdu

RSB

Chengdu Oak Bay
RETBEARE

Hongguang Town, Pi County, Chengdu

RS
Chengdu Jinyue Bay
RBTELE

Qingyang District, Chengdu

RARAEE
Chengdu Ginkgo Park
REHEFE

Jinniu District, Chengdu

P ERRANE fE
Chengdu Emerald Forest

RETRER
Chenghua District, Chengdu

BEPERE

Chengdu Park Lane Manor
RETHIE

Jinjiang District, Chengdu
WXL

Chengdu Triumphal Plaza
RBTHIE

Jinjiang District, Chengdu

K#EERAR

Chengdu Longquanyi District Project

REESER
Longquanyi District, Chengdu

B -mx Z-sus
C — Commercial CP — Car Park

Hpnz ez pi R
0 — Office H — Residential H — Hotel
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FEMEME Schedule of Principal Properties

EHERERAT BB AL EH A REEE
SRR RS HIF0F2A88
Attributable Beneficial BamnrEE Approximate Unsold EatARBS
ERPWE Interest of China Approximate Total Gross Floor Area Ebl] Estimated ERER

Properties under Development Resources Land Limited Site Area As of 28 February 2014 Type Date of Completion State of Completion

ity 71
Xian 24 City
RETERIA
Peidong New City, Xian

BEERANE
Chongging Central Park
EETILE

Jiangbei District, Chongging

BE_TIY
Chongging 24 City
EETAREE

Jiulongpo District, Chongging

EEBETARER
Chongging Danzishi Project

EEBAR
Nanan District, Chongging

BEAKOER i
Chongging Dadukou Project
EFTAENE

Dadukou District, Chongging

BBHRAR
Mianyang Central Park
RETREER

Kechuangyuan District, Mianyang

EMGEE
Fuzhou Oak Bay
BNTRLE

Cangshan District, Fuzhou

EFgEE
Xiamen Oak Bay

EMTEXERILE
Xingbei Road, Jimei District, Xiamen

BEPATERER _
Xiamen Bike Factory Project

EMTEHE
Siming District, Xiamen

LG
Nanchang Oak Bay
EERE L
Chaoyang New City, Nanchang

wHEERL
Ganzhou City Crossing
BNETHE

Zhangjiang New District, Ganzhou

i BHHAGET BRERE HL0MFIABA) AR EFRRIRTHESRE SEEZHERER

Note:  Approximate unsold gross floor area as of 28 February 2014 may subject to changes due to the adjustment to planning and designing.

B -mx Z-sus Hpnz ez pi R
C — Commercial CP — Car Park 0 — Office H — Residential H — Hotel
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FEMEME Schedule of Principal Properties

EHERERAT BABRHEHTREER
SRR RS #itwuFIABE
Attributable Beneficial BamnrEE Approximate Unsold EatARBS

ERPWE Interest of China Approximate Total Gross Floor Area Ebl] Estimated ERER
Properties under Development Resources Land Limited Site Area As of 28 February 2014 Type Date of Completion State of Completion
BMMEEER
Huizhou Xiaojing Bay Project
BMNEE
Xiaojing Bay, Huizhou
BMermmER

Guangzhou Finance City Project
EMNTRAR
Tianhe District, Guangzhou

RYASER
Shenzhen Qianhai Project
RImALE

Qianhai, Shenzhen

BEEERL .
Nanning City Crossing
BERKAE

Minzu Avenue, Nanning

MEARER
Liuzhou City Complex
T REE

Yufeng District, Liuzhou

SEAGENE
Hainan Shimei Bay Palace
BEMAEE

Shimei Bay, Wanning

BUMEEEE
Kunming Panlong District Project
RAMEER

Panlong District, Kunming

ERGARAR
Guiyang City Complex
ERTBILNE

Guanshanhu District, Guiyang

i BHHAAEHDRERR HL0MFIABA)  AREERRRGHESRE  SEEZHERER -

Note:  Approximate unsold gross floor area as of 28 February 2014 may subject to changes due to the adjustment to planning and designing.

B -mx Z-sus Hpnz ez pi R
C — Commercial CP — Car Park 0 — Office H — Residential H — Hotel
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B R

Financial Summary

AEEXE Group’s results
- anl o Wi w0
BT BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Yz Revenue 71,388,745 44,363,629 35,794,801 25,729,158 16,650,237
BRETAT @A Profit before taxation 24278223 17,495,034 14,476,010 12,199,454 7,001,853
EREY Income tax expense (9,091,008)  (6,298,044)  (6,151,446)  (4,429,511)  (2,282,459)
FRRF Profit for the year 15,187,215 = 11,196,990 8,324,564 7,769,943 4,719,394
AR AL Attributable to:
AREHERA Owners of the Company 14,696,006 = 10,568,598 8,121,094 6,258,099 4,289,785
R Non-controlling interests 491,209 628,392 203,470 1,511,844 429,609
15,187,215 = 11,196,990 8,324,564 7,769,943 4,719,394
AEBEEREE Group’s assets and liabilities
- anl 2 Wi w0
BT e BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ME - BEKEE Property, plant and equipment 5,881,581 4,971,467 4,072,763 3,307,499 3,073,299
T Land use rights 1,833,901 1,552,677 1,139,920 843,766 685,812
BEYE Investment properties 59,611,449 = 44,356,899 31,461,405 23,028,358 16,742,284
RIEFFEHEE Deferred income tax assets 387,150 431,385 711,117 490,749 474,419
RERE Long-term investments 3,099,568 2,530,562 954,572 897,695 863,139
JE Uy — Bt & 1 B 3008 Amount due from an associate - = = 259,744 238,614
FRBEEENFIE Prepayments paid for non-current
assets 2,464,553 300,231 7,362,103 2,476,969 -
REEE Current assets 208,478,404 174,112,282 138,888,281 102,855,051 81,804,479
BEAE Total assets 281,756,606 228,255,503 184,590,161 134,159,831 103,882,046
mEaE Current liabilities 131,759,829 98,947,203 71,916,457 49,921,151 36,301,039
RHAE Long-term liabilities 48,645,127 47,619,780 41,086,341 30,780,939 26,359,923
EEFEHARE Deferred income tax liabilities 7,764,931 5,188,736 4,448,466 3,231,411 2,165,788
TTESRMTA Derivative financial instruments - - 81,736 152,499 123,101
aEeE Total liabilities 188,169,887 151,755,719 117,533,000 84,086,000 64,949,851
93,586,719 76,499,784 67,057,161 50,073,831 38,932,195
AREEE AEERA Equity attributable to owners
of the Company 84,802,188 69,108,659 60,696,425 46,299,566 37,687,290
E Non-controlling interests 8,784,531 7,391,125 6,360,736 3,774,265 1,244,905
93,586,719 76,499,784 67,057,161 50,073,831 38,932,195
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